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ORDRE DE RENVOI
Extrait des Procés-verbaux du mardi 7 février 1984:

ORDER OF REFERENCE

Extract from the Minutes of Proceedings of the Senate of
Tuesday, February 7, 1984:

“Ordered, that motion No. 3 standing in the name of the
Honourable Senator Sparrow, be brought forward.

The Honourable Senator Sparrow moved, seconded by
the Honourable Senator Marshall:

That the Standing Senate Committee on Agriculture,
Fisheries and Forestry be authorized to examine the
subject-matter of soil and water conservation throughout
Canada;

That the Committee have power to adjourn from place
to place within Canada; and

That the Committee be empowered to engage the ser-
vices of such counsel and technical, clerical and other
personnel as may be required for the purpose of the said
examination.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”

«Ordonné: Que la motion n® 3 inscrite au nom de
’honorable sénateur Sparrow soit avancée.

L’honorable sénateur Sparrow propose, appuyé par
I’honorable sénateur Marshall,

Que le Comité sénatorial permanent de l'agriculture,
des péches et des foréts soit autorisé a étudier la question
de la conservation du sol et de I’eau au Canada;

Que le Comité soit autorisé 4 voyager au Canada; et

Que le Comité soit autorisé a retenir les services des
conseillers et du personnel technique, de bureau et autre
dont il pourra avoir besoin aux fins de son enquéte.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.»

Le greffier du Sénat
Charles A. Lussier
Clerk of the Senate
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

THURSDAY, JANUARY 19, 1984
[Text]

The Standing Senate Committee on Agriculture, Fisheries
and Forestry met this day at 10:05 a.m. for the purpose of
organization.

Present: The Honourable Senators Bonnell, Frith, Le
Moyne, Marshall, Riley, Roblin, Sparrow. (7)

In attendance: Sally Rutherford, Assistant Director of
Research.

The Clerk of the Committe presided over the election of the
Chairman.

On motion of the Honourable Senator Bonnell, it was
agreed:

THAT the Honourable Senator Sparrow do take the Chair

of this Committee as Chairman.

On motion of the Honourable Senator Roblin, it was agreed:

THAT the Honourable Senator Marshall be elected Deputy

Chairman of this Committee.

Following discussion it was agreed that the Chairman, in
consultation with the Deputy Chairman, should select the
members of the Steering Committee and report the names to
the Committee.

On motion of the Honourable Senator Bonnell, it was
agreed:

THAT the Committee print 1,000 copies of its Minutes of

Proceedings and Evidence.

It was moved by the Honourable Senator Bonnell:

THAT the Chairman be authorized to hold meetings to

receive and authorize the printing of evidence when a

quorum is not present.

After debate, the question being put on the motion, it was
agreed to.

On motion of the Honourable Senator Bonnell, it was
agreed:

THAT the Committee be empowered to retain the services

of such expert, professional, technical and clerical staff as

may be deemed necessary.

It was moved by the Honourable Senator Bonnell:

THAT in conformity with Rule 83A(1) the Chairman be

authorized to submit the following budget for the period

December 1, 1983 to March 31, 1984:

Professional and Special Services $14,757.28
Other Expenditures 1,000.00
TOTAL $15,757.28

After debate, the question being put on the motion, it was
agreed to.

It was moved by the Honourable Senator Bonnell:

THAT briefs be distributed immediately upon reception, by
the Clerk on instructions from the Chairman to all members
of the Committee in the language received and as soon as
available in the other official language.

After debate, the question being put on the motion, it was
agreed to.

PROCES-VERBAL

LE JEUDI 19 JANVIER 1984
[Traduction)

Le Comité sénatorial permanent de ’agriculture, des péches
et des foréts se réunit aujourd’hui a 10h05 aux fins
d’organisation.

Présents: Les honorables sénateurs Bonnell, Frith, Le
Moyne, Marshall, Riley, Roblin et Sparrow (7).

Egalement présente: Madame Sally Rutherford, Directeur
adjoint de la recherche.

Le greffier du Comité préside a I’élection du président.
Sur motion de I’honorable sénateur Bonnell, il est décidé:

QUE L’honorable sénateur Sparrow occupe le fauteuil en

qualité de président.

Sur motion de I’honorable sénateur Roblin, il est décidé:

QUE L’honorable sénateur Marshall soit élu vice-président

du Comité.

Aprés discussion, il est décidé que le président, conjointe-
ment avec le vice-président, choisissent les membres du Comité
de direction et communiquent leurs noms au Comité.

Sur motion de I’honorable sénateur Bonnell, il est décidé:

QUE Le Comité fasse imprimer 1 000 exemplaires de ses
proces-verbaux et témoignages.

L’honorable sénateur Bonnell propose:

QUE Le président soit autorisé a présider des séances, a
recevoir des témoignages et en autoriser l'impression en
’absence de quorum.

Aprés discussion, la motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

Sur motion de I’honorable sénateur Bonnell il est décidé:

QUE Le Comité soit autorisé a retenir les services de
conseillers professionnels et techniques et d’engager le per-
sonnel de soutien nécessaire.

Le sénateur Bonnell propose:

QUE conformément a I’article 83A(1) du Réglement, le
président soit autorisé a soumettre le budget suivant pour la
période du 1* décembre 1983 au 31 mars 1984.

Services professionnels et spéciaux 14 757,28%
Autres dépenses 1 000,008
TOTAL 15 757,288

Aprés discussion, la motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

L’honorable sénateur Bonnell propose:
QUE sur instructions du président, les mémoires soient,
aussitdt aprés leur réception, distribués par le greffier a tous
les membres du Comité dans la langue originale et, dés que
possible, dans I’autre langue officielle.

Aprés discussion, la motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.
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There was discussion of limiting to three the witnesses
whose reasonable travel and living expenses could be paid by
the Committee. This matter was referred through the Chair-
man to the Steering Committee.

Two motions which the Chairman would put before the
Senate for its consideration respecting the future work of the
Committee, were presented.

It was moved by Senator Bonnell:

THAT the Standing Senate Committee on Agriculture,

Fisheries and Forestry be empowered, without special refer-

ence of the Senate, to hear submissions from representatives

of Agriculture, Fisheries and Forestries and related
industries.

After debate, the question being put, it was agreed to.

THAT the Standing Senate Committee on Agriculture,

Fisheries and Forestry be authorized to examine and report

on soil and water conservation throughout Canada.

After debate, the Committee concluded that this motion be
referred through the Chairman to the Steering Committee.

Senator Bonnell asked that a package on the soil and water
study be prepared for distribution to members of the
Committee.

At 10:42 the Committee adjourned to the call of the Chair.

ATTEST:

On propose de limiter & trois le nombre des témoins dont les
frais raisonnables de déplacement et de séjour pourraient étre
payés par le Comité. Cette question est renvoyée au Comité de
direction par I'intermédiaire du président.

Deux motions que le président soumettrait a I'examen du
Sénat concernant les travaux futurs du Comité, sont
présentées.

Le sénateur Bonnell propose:

QUE le Comité sénatorial permanent de l’agriculture, des

péches et des foréts soit autorisé, sans en référer spéciale-

ment au Sénat, 4 entendre les représentants du secteur de

I’agriculture, des péches et des foréts et des industries

connexes.

Aprés discussion, la motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

QUE le Comité sénatorial permanent de 1’agriculture, des

péches et des foréts soit autorisé a étudier la question de la

conservation du sol et de I’eau au Canada et d’en faire

rapport.

Apreés discussion, le Comité décide que cette motion soit
renvoyée au Comité de direction par l'intermédiaire du
président.

Le sénateur Bonnell demande qu’une trousse de documenta-
tion sur 1’étude des sols et de I’eau soit préparée et distribuée
aux membres du Comité.

A 10 h 42, le Comité suspend ses travaux jusqu’a nouvelle
convocation du président.

ATTESTE:

Le greffier du Comité
John Desmarais

Clerk of the Committee

THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 16, 1984

The Standing Senate Committee on Agriculture, Fisheries
and Forestry met this day at 9:35 a.m., the Chairman, the
Honourable Senator Herbert O. Sparrow, presiding.

Present: The Honourable Senators Adams, Bielish, Le
Moyne, Marshall, McGrand, Riley, Sparrow and Steuart. (8)

Present but not of the Committee: The Honourable Senator
Anderson.

In attendance: Mr. Leonard Christie and Mrs. Lynne
Myers, Research Officers.

The Committee commenced the examination of the subject-
matter of soil and water conservation throughout Canada.

Two films, entitled “Soil Today—Food Tomorrow” and
“Land—Our Last Resource”, produced by the Ontario Minis-
try of Agriculture and Food, were projected at the meeting.

At 10:30 a.m. the Committee adjourned to the call of the
Chair.

ATTEST:

LE JEUDI 16 FEVRIER 1984

Le Comité sénatorial permanent de I'agriculture, des péches
et des foréts se réunit aujourd’hui a 9 h 35 sous la présidence
de I’honorable sénateur Herbert O. Sparrow (président).

Présents: Les honorables sénateurs Adams, Bielish, Le
Moyne, Marshall, McGrand, Riley, Sparrow et Steuart. (8)

Présent mais ne faisant pas partie du Comité: L’honorable
sénateur Anderson.

Egalement présents: M. Leonard Christie et M™ Lynne
Myers, attachés de recherche.

Le Comité entreprend I’étude de la question de la conserva-
tion du sol et de I’eau au Canada.

Deux films, intitulés «Soil Today—Food Tomorrow» et
«Land—Our Last Resource», produits par le ministére onta-
rien de I’Agriculture et de I’alimentation sont projetés.

A 10 h 30, le Comité suspend ses travaux jusqu’a nouvelle
convocation du président.

ATTESTE:

Le greffier du Comité
Denis Bouffard
Clerk of the Committee
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WEDNESDAY, MARCH 7, 1984

The Standing Senate Committee on Agriculture, Fisheries
and Forestry met this day at 3:45 p.m., the Chairman, the
Honourable Senator Herbert O. Sparrow, presiding.

Present: The Honourable Senators Bielish, Marshall,
McGrand, Riley and Sparrow. (5)

Present but not of the Committee: The Honourable Senator
Anderson.

In attendance: Ms. Sally Rutherford, Assistant Director of
Research for the Committee; Mrs. Lynne Myers and Mr. Len
Christie, Research Officers, Library of Parliament.

Appearing: Hon. Eugene F. Whelan, P.C., M.P., Minister of
Agriculture.

Witnesses:
From the Department of Agriculture:
Dr. Harry M. Hill, Director General,
Rehabilitation Administration;

Mr. J. Nowland, Special Advisor, Resources, Research
Branch;

Dr. Ron Halstead, Director General, Program Coordination,
Research Branch;

Mr. Peter Connell, Deputy Minister.

The Committee resumed the examination of the subject-
matter of soil and water conservation throughout Canada.

The Minister made a statement and he, and the witnesses,
answered questions.

At 5:30 p.m. the Committee adjourned until 9:30 a.m. on
Thursday, March 8, 1984.

ATTEST:

Prairie Farm

LE MERCREDI 7 MARS 1984

Le Comité sénatorial permanent de I’agriculture, des péches
et des foréts se réunit aujourd’hui a 15 h 45, sous la présidence
de ’honorable sénateur Herbert O. Sparrow, (président).

Présents: Les honorables sénateurs Bielish, Marshall,
McGrand, Riley et Sparrow. (5)

Présent mais ne faisant pas partie du Comité: L’honorable
sénateur Anderson.

Egalement présents: Mm™ Sally Rutherford, directeur
adjoint de recherche pour le Comité, M™ Lynne Myers et M.
Len Christie, attachés de recherche a la Bibliothéque du
Parlement.

Comparait: L'honorable Eugene F. Whelan, c.p., député,
ministre de ’Agriculture.

Témoins:
Du ministere de I’ Agriculture:
M. Harry M. Hill, directeur général, Administration du
rétablissement agricole des Prairies;

M. J. Nowland, conseiller spécial (ressources), Direction de
la recherche;

M. Ron Halstead, directeur général, Coordination des pro-
grammes, Direction de la recherche;

M. Peter Connell, sous-ministre.

Le Comité reprend I’étude de la question de la conservation
du sol et de I'’eau au Canada.

Le ministre fait une déclaration et, avec 'aide des témoins,
répond aux questions.

A 17 h 30, le Comité suspend ses travaux jusqu’au jeudi 8
mars 1984, 4 9 h 30.

ATTESTE:

Le greffier du Comité
Denis Bouffard
Clerk of the Committee
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EVIDENCE

Ottawa, Thursday, January 19, 1984

[Text]

The Standing Senate Committee on Agriculture, Fisheries
and Forestry met this day at 10 a.m., to organize the activities
of the committee.

Mr. John Desmarais (Clerk of the Committee): Honourable
senators, we have a quorum. The first item of business on the
agenda is to elect a chairman and I am ready to receive
motions to that effect.

Senator Bonnell: I nominate Senator Sparrow.
Senator Marshall: I second it.

Senator Bonnell: I move nominations close.

The Clerk: Are there any further nominations?

It has been moved by the Honourable Senator Bonnell that
the Honourable Senator Sparrow do take the Chair as Chair-
man of the committee. Is it your pleasure to adopt that motion,
honourable senators?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Clerk: I declare the Honourable Senator Sparrow duly
elected and invite him to take the Chair.

Senator Roblin: It looks to me like he came prepared.
Senator Bonnell: Speech!

The Chairman: Honourable senators, thank you very much
for your confidence in electing me as Chairman again to this
very important committee. I do appreciate and respect the
honour of being able to accept the position. I want to thank the
members who were with us previously in the last session for
their co-operation and good work on behalf of this committee.
I certainly look forward to that same co-operation and hard
work from the members of this committee in this new session.

Senator Bonnell: Mr. Chairman, before you go on I want
you to realize that you have a much more important commit-
tee now. It is not the same committee, you now have fish,
which is one of the greatest resources of this country, and
forestry. So your position has really been elevated.

The Chairman: In my remarks I also wish to state that this

is a more important committee than it was, since we now have
fish.

Senator Riley: Did you bring your fishing gear?

The Chairman: The next duty of the Chairman is to ask for
the election of a Deputy Chairman. I see on the agenda there
is an item with respect to the committee mandate. Do you
suggest that be done first?

The Clerk: No, that is not necessary.

Senator Roblin: Mr. Chairman, if you are ready to receive

nominations for Deputy Chairman, I nominate Senator
Marshall.

TEMOIGNAGES

Ottawa, le jeudi 19 janvier 1984

[Traduction]

Le Comité sénatorial permanent de I’agriculture, des péches
et des foréts tient aujourd’hui, & 10 heures, sa séance
d’organisation.

M. John Desmarais (greffier du comité): Honorables séna-
teurs, nous avons quorum. Le premier point a 'ordre du jour
consiste en I’élection d’un président et je suis disposé a recevoir
les motions a cet effet.

Le sénateur Bonnell: Je propose le sénateur Sparrow.
Le sénateur Marshall: J’appuie la motion.

Le sénateur Bonnell: Je propose que I’on mette fin aux mises
en candidature.

Le greffier: Y a-t-il d’autres mises en nomination?

L’honorable sénateur Bonnell propose que I’honorable séna-
teur Sparrow occupe le fauteuil en tant que président. Honora-
bles sénateurs, étes-vous d’accord avec la motion?

Des voix: D’accord.

Le greffier: Je déclare I’honorable sénateur Sparrow diiment
élu et je I'invite a occuper le fauteuil.

Le sénateur Roblin: Il m’avait tout I’air d’étre prét.
Le sénateur Bonnell: Un discours!

Le président: Honorables sénateurs, je vous remercie beau-
coup de la confiance que vous m’accordez en me confiant une
fois de plus la présidence de ce trés important comité. J’appré-
cie ’honneur que vous me faites et je vous en sais gré. De plus,
je tiens 4 remercier les honorables sénateurs, qui ont fait partie
du Comité a la derniére session, de leur collaboration et du bon
travail qu’ils ont fourni au nom du Comité. Il va sans dire que
j’espére obtenir la méme collaboration et que les membres du
Comité travailleront aussi fort au cours de la nouvelle session.

Le sénateur Bonnell: Monsieur le président, avant d’aller
plus loin, j’aimerais vous faire remarquer que votre comité est
beaucoup plus important maintenant. Il ne s’agit pas du méme
comité, puisqu’on y a ajouté les péches qui sont I'une des
grandes ressources de notre pays ainsi que les foréts. C’est
donc dire que vous occupez maintenant un poste beaucoup plus
important.

Le président: Je tiens aussi 4 signaler que je suis président
d’'un comité plus important qu’auparavant puisque notre
mandat porte aussi sur les péches.

Le sénateur Riley: Avez-vous votre attirail de péche?

Le président: Le président doit ensuite passer a I’élection
d’un vice-président. Je vois que l'ordre du jour contient un
point portant sur le mandat du Comité. Voulez-vous que I’on
régle cette question d’abord?

Le greffier: Non, cela n’est pas nécessaire.

Le sénateur Roblin: Monsieur le président, si vous étes prét
a recevoir les motions de mise en candidature pour le poste de
vice-président, je propose le sénateur Marshall.
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[Text]
The Chairman: Senator Marshall has been nominated.

Senator Roblin: I think it is probably necessary to give some
reason for this extraordinary move on my part. It is because
Senator Marshall is, as far as the Progressive Conservative
Party is concerned, our resident expert on fish. He knows more
about it than anything else. In view of the new responsibilities
of this committee I feel confident in recommending him as
Deputy Chairman.

Senator Marshall: I do not think that is fair because my
expertise is with respect to wheat.

Senator Bonnell: I really don’t think either one of them is
right, I think it is because of the wood.

The Chairman: Can we have a seconder for that motion?
Senator Bonnell: I second it.

The Chairman: Are there any further nominations?
Senator Frith: I move nominations close.

The Chairman: Is it agreed, honourable senators?
Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: I take great pleasure in informing you that
Senator Marshall will be the Deputy Chairman of this
committee.

If honourable senators have the outline of the agenda before
them, there is a motion designed to authorize a steering
committee to be established. If honourable senators would
read that and if there are any comments or if anyone would
wish to make a motion, it would be helpful to the Chair.

Senator Bonnell: Mr. Chairman, now that you have a
Deputy Chairman and you are starting on a completely new
field, that is, with respect to fisheries and forestry, you might
wish to take some time with respect to the formation of your
steering committee. Perhaps it could be left to the Chair to
bring back a report next week with respect to the formation of
the steering committee.

The Chairman: I will comply with the wishes of the mem-
bers of the committee.

Senator Roblin: How many members would you suggest,
Mr. Chairman?

The Chairman: 1 would suppose it should certainly be a
minimum of three and perhaps even four members.

Senator Riley: Bearing in mind that we now have forestry,
fisheries and agriculture. You should have someone on with
respect to forestry and fisheries.

The Chairman: | appreciate your comments, Senator Bon-
nell, and in view of that perhaps a motion of that type would
allow the Chairman and the Deputy Chairman to act on it and
establish a steering committee. Is that satisfactory, honourable
senators?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.

[Traduction)

Le président: Le sénateur Marshall a déja fait I'objet d’une
telle motion.

Le sénateur Roblin: Je pense que je devrais probablement
donner les raisons de mon intervention. Si j’ai proposé la mise
en candidature du sénateur Marshall c’est qu’en ce qui con-
cerne le parti progressiste conservateur, le sénateur Marshall
est notre spécialiste en matiére de péche. C’est vraiment son
domaine. Compte tenu des nouvelles responsabilités du
Comité, j’ai confiance en lui et je le propose comme
vice-président.

Le sénateur Marshall: Je ne crois pas que cela soit juste
parce que je suis plutdt spécialiste en matiére de céréales.

Le sénateur Bonnell: Vraiment, je crois que ni I'un ni l'autre
n’a raison, le sénateur Marshall est plutét un spécialiste du
bois.

Le président: Quelqu’un peut-il appuyer la motion?
Le sénateur Bonnell: Je I’appuie.
Le président: Y a-t-il d’autres mises en candidature?

Le sénateur Frith: Je propose que 'on mette fin aux mises
en candidature.

Le président: Honorables sénateurs, étes-vous d’accord?
Des voix: D’accord.

Le président: Je suis heureux de vous informer que le
sénateur Marshall sera vice-président du Comité.

Si les honorables sénateurs veulent bien consulter I'ordre du
jour qui est devant eux, ils constateront qu’on prévoit une
motion visant 4 autorise la création d’un comité directeur. Si
les honorables sénateurs veulent bien en prendre connaissance,
s’ils ont des commentaires 4 formuler ou si quelqu’un désire
déposer une motion, je crois que cela pourrait étre utile pour le
président.

Le sénateur Bonnell: Monsieur le président, maintenant que
nous avons un vice-président et que le mandat du Comité porte
sur un domaine tout a fait nouveau, c’est-a-dire les péches et
les foréts, vous aimeriez peut-étre vous accorder un délai de
quelques jours pour former ce comité directeur. La présidence
pourrait nous présenter un rapport la semaine prochaine a cet
effet.

Le président: Je me conformerai aux désirs des membres du
Comité.

Le sénateur Roblin: Monsieur le président, 4 votre avis,
combien de membres doit compter ce comité directeur?

Le président: Je suppose qu’il doit certainement en contenir
au moins trois, peut-étre méme quatre.

Le sénateur Riley: Compte tenu évidemment du fait que
notre mandat porte sur les foréts, les péches et I'agriculture.
Le Comité devrait compter dans ses rangs un spécialiste en
matiére de foréts et de péches.

Le président: Je reconnais le bien-fondé de vos observations,
sénateur Bonnell; cela dit, peut-étre une motion de ce genre
permettrait au président et au vice-président d’agir 4 ce titre et
de créer un comité directeur. Etes-vous d’accord, honorables
sénateurs?

Des voix: D’accord.
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[Text]

Senator Bonnell: I think that would give you more time to
think about it rather than just forming the committee on the
spur of the moment. You will want to get someone who will
attend your meetings and not someone who will be home all
the time.

The Chairman: Are you suggesting this motion not be
passed at all?

Senator Bonnell: That is right.

The Chairman: All right. We will get together with the
Deputy Chairman.

Item No. 6 on the agenda, do we pass that motion?

Senator Bonnell: 1 so move the motion with respect to
printing 1,000 copies.

The Chairman: Is it agreed? -

Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: We now need a motion with respect to item
No. 7.

Senator Bonnell: I move the motion with respect to item No.
7, that is, to hear evidence and to print without a quorum.

The Chairman: All those in favour?

Senator Roblin: I wish to make a comment about that, Mr.
Chairman, since a quorum of this committee is only four
members. I think we should be very careful about having
committee meetings with less than four, even if it is only for
the purpose of receiving evidence. Although I am not opposing
the motion I would urge you to use your discretion in the hope
that it would not be necessary to go below four, since it gets
rather thin on the ground. I make that request of you but I do
not intend to oppose the motion.

Senator Riley: Bearing in mind the three subjects.

The Chairman: I will certainly try to stick with that pro-
posal in the future, Senator Roblin.

All those in favour?
Some Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: We now need a motion with respect to No. 8
on the agenda, that is, that the committee be empowered to
retain the services of such expert, professional, technical and
clerical staff as may be deemed necessary.

Senator Bonnell: [ so move.
The Chairman: Any comment? All those in favour?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.
The Chairman: The motion is carried.

36712—2

[Traduction]

Le sénateur Bonnell: Je crois qu’ainsi, vous aurez plus de
temps pour songer a la formation du Comité plutdt que de le
créer tout simplement en un rien de temps. Il faudra trouver
quelqu’un qui assistera aux séances et non pas quelqu’un qui
sera toujours a la maison.

Le président: A votre avis, cette motion ne devrait pas étre
adoptée du tout?

Le sénateur Bonnell: C’est exact.

Le président: D’accord. Nous nous réunirons, le vice-prési-
dent et moi-méme a propos de cette question.

Article n° 6 & I’ordre du jour, adoptons-nous la motion?

Le sénateur Bonnell: Je propose que le Comité fasse impri-
mer 1 000 exemplaires de ses Procés-verbaux et témoignages.

Le président: D’accord?
Des voix: D’accord.

Le président: Quelqu’un voudra-t-il présenter une motion
concernant I’article n° 7.

Le sénateur Bonnell: En ce qui a trait a larticle 7, je
propose que le président soit autorisé a présider des séances, a
recevoir des témoignages et en autoriser 'impression en I’ab-
sence de quorum.

Le président: Quels sont ceux qui sont en faveur de la
motion?

Le sénateur Roblin: J’aimerais faire une observation a ce
sujet, monsieur le président, puisque pour avoir quorum au
sein du Comité, seulement quatre membres doivent étre pré-
sents. Je crois que nous devons étre prudents et veiller a ce que
les séances du Comité ne comportent pas moins de quatre
membres, méme s’il ne s’agit que d’entendre les témoignages.
Bien que je ne m’oppose pas 4 la motion, je vous engage a faire
preuve de discrétion en espérant qu’il ne sera pas nécessaire de
tenir des séances avec moins de quatre membres, car alors le
Comité perdrait de son importance. Je vous demande d’en
tenir compte, mais je n’ai pas l'intention de m’opposer a la
motion.

Le sénateur Riley: Tout en tenant compte de notre mandat
qui porte sur trois domaines.

Le président: Sénateur Roblin, je vais certainement essayer
de respecter cette proposition.

Tous ceux qui sont en faveur de la motion?
Des voix: D’accord.

Le président: Quelqu'un doit maintenant déposer une
motion concernant 'article 8 de l'ordre du jour, c’est-a-dire
que le Comité soit habilité a retenir les services de conseillers

et aussi a engager le personnel professionnel et de soutien
nécessaire.

Le sénateur Bonnell: Je propose qu’il en soit ainsi.

Le président: Des observations? Tous ceux qui sont en
faveur de la motion?

Des voix: D’accord.
Le président: La motion est adoptée.
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Item No. 9 is with respect to authorizing a budget for the
period of time December 1, 1983, to March 31, 1984, for a
total of $15,757.28. I would like to receive a motion to that
effect and we can hear discussion after.

Senator Bonnell: I would move the motion if I knew what it
was for. Can you tell me the average salary that we are paying
and how many professional people we have on staff at the
present time?

The Chairman: In the past year or so and up to the present
time, we have two people on the staff of the committee. One is
a secretary who is in the agricultural office and the amount of
salary paid to her in that period of time is shown here as
$5,779.80. Then we have Sally Rutherford who is the research
director of the committee. Her salary is in the amount of
$26,000 per annum and the total for this period is $8,977. The
total, therefore, for salaries is $14,757, plus a $1,000 contin-
gency figure which makes a total of $15,757.

Senator Riley: Do we have anyone on soils, Mr. Chairman?

The Chairman: We have no special soil person at the
moment except Mrs. Rutherford who is the research director
of the committee.

Senator Bonnell: Do you use the library as a research
facility?

The Chairman: Yes, we have been using the library
extensively.

Senator Bonnell: Then I so move, Mr. Chairman.

Senator Marshall: Mr. Chairman, this is the first time that I
have been on any committee in the Senate where there has
been such a detailed agenda, and I would like to compliment
both yourself and the Clerk on this one. I have not previously
seen this amount of detail on an agenda. However, number 9
indicates professional special services which I have never seen
on the agenda of any other committee and I am afraid I just
did not grasp what you were telling Senator Bonnell. What is
the reason for this budget prior to the organization of the
committee?

The Chairman: That is the staff that the committee has.

Senator Marshall: Do you mean staff that other committees
do not have?

The Chairman: That is perhaps true, yes. Perhaps some of
the other committees do not have that type of staff.

Senator Marshall: Yes, I notice that Energy and Natural
Resources has a staff other than library research staff.

The Chairman: Yes, and I think National Finance does also.

Senator Bonnell: Does this amount of money cover the
period from December to March, or is it from January until
March?

The Chairman: It is retroactive to December.

[Traduction)

L’article 9 concerne I’autorisation d’un budget pour la
période allant du 1¢ décembre 1983 au 31 mars 1984, soit un
total de $15,757,28. J'aimerais que quelqu’un dépose une

motion a cet effet aprés quoi nous pourrons passer a la
discussion.

Le sénateur Bonnell: Je serais prét 4 déposer la motion si je
savais de quoi il s’agit. Pouvez-vous me dire quel salaire moyen
nous versons et combien de professionnels compte le personnel
actuellement?

Le président: L’an dernier et jusqu’'a présent, le Comité
comptait deux employés. L’un d’eux est la secrétaire qui reléve
de I’Agriculture a4 qui on a versé un salaire de $5,779,80 au
cours de cette période. Ensuite, nous avons Sally Rutherford
qui est directeur de recherche du Comité. Son salaire se situe
aux environs de $26,000 par année et le total de cette période
est de $8,977. Par conséquent, I’ensemble des traitements
versés est de $14,757, plus un fonds de prévoyance de $1,000,
ce qui fait un total de $15,757.

Le sénateur Riley: Monsieur le président, le Comité compte-
t-il un spécialiste en matiére de sols?

Le président: Non, personne actuellement, sauf Mme
Rutherford qui est directeur de recherche du Comité.

Le sénateur Bonnell: A-t-on recours a la Bibliothéque du
Parlement pour faire de la recherche.

Le président: Oui, beaucoup.

Le sénateur Bonnell: Je le propose alors, monsieur le
président.

Le sénateur Marshall: Monsieur le président, c’est la pre-
miére fois que j’assiste 4 un comité du Sénat dont I'ordre du
jour est si détaillé et j’aimerais vous en féliciter ainsi que le
greffier. Je n’ai jamais vu une telle quantité de détails a 'ordre
du jour. Toutefois, la rubrique n° 9 indique les services profes-
sionnels et autres, ce que je n’ai jamais vu 4 l'ordre du jour
d’aucun autre comité, et je crains ne pas avoir saisi vos propos
au sénateur Bonnell. Pourquoi a-t-on présenté ce budget avant
'organisation du comité?

Le président: Il s’agit du personnel dont dispose le comité.

Le sénateur Marshall: Voulez-vous dire le personnel que les
autres comités n’ont pas?

Le président: C’est peut-étre vrai, oui. Certains autres comi-
tés n’ont peut-étre pas ce type de personnel.

Le sénateur Marshall: Oui, je note que le comité de I'éner-
gie et des ressources naturelles n’a pas disposé d’un personnel
autre que des attachés de recherche de la Bibliothéque du
Parlement.

Le président: Oui, et je pense que c’est également le cas du
comité des finances nationales.

Le sénateur Bonnell: Cette somme d’argent couvre-t-elle la
période qui va de décembre 4 mars, ou celle de janvier 2 mars?

Le président: Elle est rétroactive 4 décembre.
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Senator Bonnell: Does that mean that they were not paid in
December?

The Chairman: No, I do not think they were paid.
Senator Bonnell: In that case, Mr. Chairman, I so move.

The Chairman: Any further questions?

Senator Bonnell: Mr. Chairman, I can tell you that some of
the other committees have in their budgets such things as
telephones, transportation and travelling. I notice that there is
nothing in the budget here for transportation or telephones;
nothing for books or supplies for your committee.

The Chairman: There is the $1,000 for contingencies.

Senator Bonnell: The item for contingencies and other
expenses, then, covers all of those other things?

The Chairman: Yes. All in favour?
Some Hon. Senators: Carried.
The Chairman: Motion carried.

Just on your comment, Senator Marshall, regarding this
format, I understand that this is a new format instituted for
the committees for this session. I understand that most of the
committees have organized, using this type of format which
comes, I understand, from the committees branch so I, as
chairman, cannot take any credit for that.

Senator Bonnell: Senator Marshall, I think you should
understand that some of the chairmen did not bother with this
format. They took it upon themselves to make their own
format.

Senator Marshall: I noticed that, but I did not want to
mention it. I presume they took it upon themselves to organize
their committee without asking anyone’s advice.

The Chairman: The format will change from committee to
committee.

Senator Bonnell: Perhaps if the chairman of one committee
sees something going on in another committee, he may adopt
that for his committee as well.

The Chairman: Item number 10 reads as follows:

THAT briefs be distributed immediately by the Clerk on
instructions from the Chairman to all members of the
Committee in the language received and as soon as avail-
able in the other official language if so requested.

Senator Bonnell: If so requested by whom, Mr. Chairman?
By a committee member or by the chairman?

The Chairman: Which part are you referring to, Senator
Bonnell?

Senator Bonnell: The part which says:
... if so requested.

The Chairman: I would assume if requested by a member of
the committee.

[Traduction)

Le sénateur Bonnell: Cela signifie-t-il que ces employés
n’ont pas été payés en décembre?

Le président: En effet, je ne pense pas qu’ils I'ont été.

Le sénateur Bonnell: Dans ce cas, monsieur le président, je
propose qu’ils le soient.

Le président: Y a-t-il d’autres questions?

Le sénateur Bonnell: Monsieur le président, je puis vous
affirmer que certains autres comités ont inscrit dans leur
budget des rubriques comme le téléphone, les transports et les
déplacements. Je constate que le présent budget ne prévoit rien
pour le transport ou le téléphone; il n’y a rien non plus pour les
livres ou les fournitures destinés a votre comité.

Le président: Une somme de $1,000 est affectée aux
imprévus.

Le sénateur Bonnell: La rubrique des imprévus et autres
dépenses, englobe alors toutes ces autres choses?

Le président: Oui. Adopté?
Des voix: Adopté.
Le président: La motion est adoptée.

Pour faire suite 4 ce que vous avez dit, sénateur Marshall,
au sujet de cette présentation, j'aimerais vous préciser qu’il
s’agit d’une nouvelle présentation créée pour les comités pour
cette session. Je sais que la plupart des comités se sont
organisés en utilisant ce type de présentation qui émane, si j’ai
bien compris, de la direction des comités de telle sorte qu’a
titre de président, je ne puis en retirer aucun mérite.

Le sénateur Bonnell: Sénateur Marshall, je pense que vous
devriez comprendre que certains présidents ne se sont pas
embarrassés de cette présentation. Ils ont pris la responsabilité
de créer leur propre présentation.

Le sénateur Marshall: Je I'ai remarqué, mais je ne voulais
pas le mentionner. Je présume qu’ils ont décidé d’organiser
leur comité sans demander I’avis de quiconque.

Le président: La présentation sera différente d’un comité a
'autre.

Le sénateur Bonnell: Il se peut que le président d’un comité
remarque qu’un autre comité utilise une procédure particuliére
et veuille I’adopter dans le sien.

Le président: La rubrique n° 10 se lit comme suit:

«QUE les mémoires soient immédiatement distribués par
le greffier sur recommandation du président a tous les
membres du Comité dans la langue de rédaction et, sur
demande, dans 'autre langue officielle dés que disponi-
ble.»

Le sénateur Bonnell: Sur la demande de qui, monsieur le
président? D’un membre du Comité ou du président?

Le président: A quelle partie faites-vous allusion, sénateur
Bonnell?

Le sénateur Bonnell: La partie qui dit:
... sur demande.

Le président: Je présume que c’est sur la demande d’un
membre du Comité.
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Senator Bonnell: Would you not think that the chairman
would have to say something?

The Chairman: Pardon me?

Senator Bonnell: Would you not think that the chairman
would have to give that direction to the clerk.

The Chairman: Senator Le Moyne?

Senator Le Moyne: We do not have automatic translation
for documents whenever they come to the committee. We
have, in the past, had quite a bit of trouble with that here at
the Senate and usually, we have to ask. We would like not to
have to ask. It should come automatically and also it should be
of a much better quality than in previous years. In the past,
the translation at times has been so terrible and I feel that we
must do something about that. All documents should be
circulated in French and English.

Senator Bonnell: Mr. Chairman, perhaps we could leave out
the words “if so requested”.

Senator Roblin: I think Senator Le Moyne has a very good
point here. We had some trouble in the Senate the other day
with a bill coming from the Banking Committee because it was
delivered verbally without any French translation at all and I
think it was generally agreed in the Senate that that was not
satisfactory. At that time, I made a mental note to myself that,
if I sat on a committee where this matter was raised, I would
make sure it was not overlooked. I can see the practical
reasons for this but I do agree with Senator Bonnell that the
translation should not be on request; it should be an automatic
matter and unless there is real urgency about the matter, I
think the translation should be done before the distribution. I
would not like to say that that should be an ironclad rule but
unless there are good reasons why we have to take a shortcut
to something, we ought to conform with the regulations of the
Senate and have documents in both languages from the start.

My position then is that I agree that the “if so requested”
clause should be dropped, but I would again request that the
chairman scrutinize the operation of this clause carefully and
unless there is good reason why we have to do without both
languages, we should not. We should make sure that the
material is provided in both French and English.

The Chairman: You are suggesting, Senator Roblin, that, in
regard to any briefs that come before the committee from any
source or organization, if they are distributed at all, they
should be in both languages?

Senator Roblin: Yes, but I think you have to use a little
judgement. If, for example, the people bringing a unilingual
brief were to appear before us in an hour or so, then there is no
chance that the brief could be translated in time. In that case,
you either take it in one language or you do not hear that
brief. However, what I am really saying is that the onus should
be upon us to try and obtain it in both languages as quickly as
possible, as a matter of routine and not upon request. It is
another matter, Mr. Chairman, upon which you will have to

[Traduction]

Le sénateur Bonnell: Ne pensez-vous pas que le président
aurait son mot a dire?

Le président: Pardon?

Le sénateur Bonnell: Ne pense-vous pas que le président
devrait donner cette instruction au greffier.

Le président: Sénateur Le Moyne?

Le sénateur Le Moyne: Les documents ne sont pas automa-
tiquement traduits lorsqu’ils arrivent au Comité. Cela nous a
causé par le passé passablement de problémes ici au Sénat et
habituellement, nous devons demander a ce que les documents
soient traduits. Nous aimerions ne pas avoir a le faire. Ce
service devrait nous étre fourni automatiquement et il devrait
également étre d’une bien meilleure qualité qu’au cours des
années précédentes. Dans le passé, la traduction était parfois
exécrable et je crois que nous devons réagir. Tous les docu-
ments devraient étre distribués en frangais et en anglais.

Le sénateur Bonnell: Monsieur le président, nous devrions
peut-étre retrancher I’expression “sur demande”.

Le sénateur Roblin: Je pense que le sénateur Le Moyne a
parfaitement raison. Nous avons eu des problémes I’autre jour
au Sénat lorsqu’un projet de loi émanant du Comité des
banques a été présenté verbalement sans étre accompagné
d’une traduction frangaise, ce qui 4 mon avis a déplu a tous les
sénateurs. Je me suis alors dit que si je siégeais au sein d’un
comité ou cette question se posait, je veillerais a ce qu’elle ne
passe pas inapergue. Je puis en comprendre les raisons prati-
ques mais je ne suis pas d’accord avec le sénateur Bonnell pour
dire que la traduction ne devrait pas étre sur demande; elle
devrait étre automatique et & moins que I’affaire présente une
urgence réelle, je crois que la traduction devrait étre effectuée
avant la distribution. Je ne veux pas dire que cette régle
devrait étre inflexible mais 4 moins qu’il y ait de bonnes
raisons de prendre un raccourci, nous devrions nous conformer
au Réglement du Sénat et disposer des documents dans les
deux langues dés le départ.

Je conviens donc que I’expression «sur demande» devrait étre
retranchée, mais je demanderais 4 nouveau au président d’exa-
miner attentivement les rouages de cet article et s’il n’y a pas
de bonne raison de se passer de la traduction, nous ne devrions
pas nous en passer. Nous devrions nous assurer que les docu-
ments sont distribués a la fois en frangais et en anglais.

Le président: Vous voulez dire, sénateur Roblin, que tout
mémoire présenté au Comité par une source ou une organisa-
tion quelconque devrait, s’il doit étre distribué, étre présenté
dans les deux langues?

Le sénateur Roblin: Oui, mais j'estime qu’il faudrait faire
preuve d’un peu de discernement. Si par exemple ceux qui
apportent un mémoire unilingue devaient comparaitre devant
nous une heure plus tard, il y aurait certes peu de chance que
le mémoire puisse étre traduit 4 temps. Dans ce cas, ou bien
vous acceptez le mémoire unilingue ou bien vous n’en entendez
pas lecture. Toutefois, ce que je veux dire en fait c’est que nous
devrions avoir la responsabilité d’essayer d’obtenir le mémoire
dans les deux langues aussi vite que possible et ce automati-
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use your discretion, but I would suggest that if there is a
possibility of translating, then it should be done.

The Chairman: I gather in the past that we have received
annual financial statements from various organizations and I
suppose at that point the chairman would have to use some
discretion as to whether it was sent out as is, or whether it had
to be translated.

Senator Bonnell: Perhaps in the case of a large volume, Mr.
Chairman, it could be brought before the committee to decide
whether or not it was worth the expense of having it translated
and, if the committee decided that it was not necessary to do
that, in that case translation could be dispensed with.

The Chairman: Very well. How shall we change that
motion?

Senator Bonnell: If we just take out the words “if so
requeted”’, Mr. Chairman—

The Chairman: Is that agreeable?
Some Hon. Senators: Agreed.

Senator Riley: Mr. Chairman, did I understand you to say
that there was some stipend owing to some of the professional
people for the time between the end of the previous session and
the beginning of this new session?

The Chairman: Yes.

Senator Riley: What is the Internal Economy Committee
going to say about that when there was no such committee in
existence?

The Chairman: That is the reason for asking the committee
to authorize this retroactive budget.

Senator Riley: I am sorry, I did not hear you say “retroac-
tive”. Something came up in a committee yesterday about the
Internal Economy Committee’s intent to scrutinize these budg-
etary items very carefully.

The Chairman: There has been precedent for that commit-
tee to do so in the past, Senator Riley. Do you have an
alternative?

Senator Riley: No, I was merely bringing that to your
attention.

The Chairman: Thank you, Senator Riley. Then motion
number 10 having been moved by Senator Bonnell, is it
agreed, honourable senators?

Some Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: Carried. Agriculture, Fisheries & Forestry.

Item number 11 reads as follows:

THAT in relation to Rule 83, reasonable travelling and
living expenses be paid to a maximum of three (3)
representatives per organization.
It was drawn to my attention earlier that the rules do not
prohibit any number. I am wondering why it is being restricted
to three representatives in this motion.

[Traduction)

quement et non sur demande. Il s’agit 1a d’une autre question,
monsieur le président, ou vous devrez vous servir de votre
pouvoir discrétionnaire, mais j'estime que dans tous les cas ol
il est possible de faire traduire le document, cela devrait étre
fait.

Le président: Dans le passé, en effet, nous avons regu les
états financiers annuels de divers organismes et je présume que
le président a alors dii user de son jugement pour déterminer
s’ils devaient ou non étre traduits avant d’étre distribués.

Le sénateur Bonnell: Peut-étre que dans le cas d’un gros
document, monsieur le président, le comité pourrait décider s’il
y a lieu ou non de faire cette dépense, et, si le comité décidait
que ce n’était pas nécessaire, on pourrait alors se dispenser de
la traduction.

Le président: Trés bien. Comment changerons-nous cette
motion?

Le sénateur Bonnell: Si nous retranchions simplement les
termes «sur demande», monsieur le président . . .

Le président: Etes-vous d’accord?
Des voix: D’accord.

Le sénateur Riley: Monsieur le président, avez-vous bien dit
que nous n’avons pas encore rémunéré certains professionnels
pour le temps pendant lequel ils ont travaillé entre la fin de la
derniére session et le début de celle-ci?

Le président: Oui.

Le sénateur Riley: Qu'en dira le Comité de la régie inté-
rieure puisqu’il n’existait alors aucun comité du genre?

Le président: C’est pourquoi on demande au comité d’auto-
riser ce budget rétroactif.

Le sénateur Riley: Je suis désolé, je n’avais pas entendu que
vous aviez dit «rétroactifs. On a parlé hier au sein d’'un comité
de I'intention du Comité de la régie intérieure d’examiner trés
attentivement les postes budgétaires.

Le président: Il I'a déja fait par le passé, sénateur Riley.
Proposez-vous une solution de rechange?

Le sénateur Riley: Non, je portais simplement cette affaire
a votre attention.

Le président: Merci, sénateur Riley. La motion n° 10 qui a

été proposée par le sénateur Bonnell, est-elle adoptée honora-
bles sénateurs?

Des voix: Adoptée.
Le président: Adoptée. Agriculture, péche et foréts.
La rubrique n° 11 se lit comme suit:
QUE, par rapport a I'article 83 du Reglement, des frais
raisonnables de déplacement et de séjour soient versés a
un maximum de trois (3) représentants par organisme.
Quelqu’un m’a signalé hier que le Réglement n’interdit aucun

nombre. Je me demande pourquoi cette motion restreint le
nombre a trois représentants.
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Senator Bonnell: Mr. Chairman, I believe that the Rules of
the Senate authorize you to pay witnesses’ fees provided that
the Clerk certifies that they were here and were heard and
there is no limitation on the number. Some chairmen like the
idea of having the number restricted to three. For instance, if
five representatives of the Canadian Wheat Board want to
appear before the committee, the chairman can indicate to
them that under our rules we can only pay for three of them. If
it is not indicated that the number is limited to three, then the
five representatives expect to be paid for their expenses.

I think that the Internal Economy, Budgets and Administra-
tion Committee will say that if you did not send for the
witnesses, they are not going to pay for them. If people want to
appear on their own, they will have to pay for their own
expenses. If you send for a specific witness, then you have to
pay for them. They can all be paid without this motion being
passed. As far as [ am concerned, I would tend to leave it out.
As long as you are a strong chairman, you can say how many
you are going to pay for without having this motion to back
you up.

The Chairman: Do you know why the figure three was put
in that item?

The Clerk of the Committee: It is to limit the possibility of
five people appearing as witnesses and expecting their expenses
to be paid.

Senator Roblin: I must confess that I do not know what
Rule 83 says. Does it refer only to the case where we summon
a witness?

The Clerk of the Committee: Yes.

Senator Roblin: It is my impression that we do not pay for
witnesses as a general rule.

The Clerk of the Committee: We do not pay them a stipend
or an honourariam or anything of that nature.

Senator Roblin: Rule 83 applies only in the case where the
committee asks someone to come, in which case we pay for
their travelling expenses.

Senator Bonnell: That is the suggestion of the Internal
Economy, Budgets and Administration Committee.

Senator Roblin: That suits me then.

The Chairman: When we were having the hearings on
Canagrex, we had a request to pay for witnesses to appear
then, but the decision was made that no witness would be paid
for appearing on the Canagrex hearings because we had not, in
fact, invited them to come.

Senator Roblin: There is a difference between an invitation
and a summons. With an invitation they are on their own, but
with a summons, we pay for them.

Senator Bonnell: We summon someone to appear because
usually they have expert testimony to give and then we pay for
their room and transportation.

[Traduction]

Le sénateur Bonnell: Monsieur le président, je crois que le
Reglement du Sénat vous autorise a payer les témoins pourvu
que le greffier atteste qu’ils ont été présents et qu’ils ont été
entendus et il n’y a aucune limite de nombre. Certains prési-
dents préférent que le nombre soit limité a trois. Par exemple,
si cinq représentants de la Commission canadienne du blé
désirent comparaitre devant le Comité, le président peut leur
indiquer qu’aux termes de notre Réglement, nous ne pouvons
rémunérer que trois d’entre eux. S’il n’est pas indiqué que le
nombre est limité a trois, alors les cinq représentants s’atten-
dent a étre remboursés de leurs dépenses.

Je crois que le Comité de la régie intérieure, des budgets et
de I'administration dira que si vous n’avez pas convoqué les
témoins, il n’a pas 'intention de leur rembourser leurs dépen-
ses. Si les témoins veulent comparaitre volontairement, ils
devront le faire a leur propres frais. Si vous demandez a
entendre un témoin en particulier, vous devez alors assumer
ses dépenses. Elles peuvent toutes étre payées sans que cette
motion soit adoptée. En ce qui me concerne, j'aurais tendance
a laisser cela de coté. Etant donné que vous étes un président
qui sait s’imposer, vous pouvez dire combien vous allez payer
sans avoir besoin de vous appuyer sur cette motion.

Le président: Savez-vous pourquoi le chiffre trois a été
inscrit dans cette rubrique?

Le greffier du comité: C’est pour limiter la possibilité de
cinq personnes pouvant comparaitre tout en s’attendant a ce
que leurs dépenses soient payées.

Le sénateur Roblin: Je dois vous avouer que j’ignore ce que
Iarticle 83 du Réglement stipule. Traite-t-il uniquement du
cas ou nous convoquons un témoin?

Le greffier du comité: Oui.

Le sénateur Roblin: J’ai 'impression que nous ne payons les
dépenses des témoins en régle générale.

Le greffier du comité: Nous ne leur versons pas de traite-
ment ou d’honoraires ou quoi que ce soit de cette nature.

Le sénateur Roblin: L’article 83 du Réglement s’applique
uniquement lorsque le Comité demande a quelqu’un de compa-
raitre, auquel cas nous payons les frais de déplacement de ce
dernier.

Le sénateur Bonnell: C’est ce que propose le Comité de la
régie intérieure, des budgets et de I'administration.

Le sénateur Roblin: Dans ce cas, je ne vois pas
d’inconvénient.

Le président: Lorsque nous avons tenu nos audiences sur
Canagrex, on nous a demandé d’assurer les frais des témoins
qui devaient comparaitre, mais on a décidé qu’aucun de ces
témoins ne seraient remboursés parce qu’en fait, nous ne les
avions pas convoqueés.

Le sénateur Roblin: Il y a une différence entre une invita-
tion et une convocation. Sur invitation, ils viennent a leur frais,
tandis que sur convocation, nous payons pour eux.

Le sénateur Bonnell: Lorsque nous convoquons quelqu’un,
C’est habituellement parce qu’il a des renseignements techni-
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The Chairman: Did you say that when they are summoned
we pay for them?

Senator Roblin: We invite the world to come to speak to us
but we are not obliged to pay for their expenses. If there is a
particular person that we specifically request to appear, we
would pay for their expenses and that is a very rare occasion, I
would think.

The Chairman: Senator Roblin, are you suggesting that we
leave the number three figure in there or, as Senator Bonnell
says, leave it as the rules themselves state so that if we wanted
four we could have them?

Senator Roblin: [ am guided by you, Mr. Chairman.

Senator Bonnell: I move, Mr. Chairman, that we leave it up
to you and your steering committee, and you can always bring
it up at another meeting later on.

The Chairman: In turn, then it will fall under the regular
Rules of the Senate.

Item number 12 is a request for a motion for orders of
reference. It says first:

THAT the Standing Senate Committee on Agriculture,
Fisheries and Forestry be empowered, without special
reference of the Senate, to hear submissions from repre-
sentatives of Agriculture, Fisheries and Forestries and
related industries.

and second:

THAT the Standing Senate Committee on Agriculture
Fisheries and Forestry be authorized to examine and
report on soil and water conservation throughout Canada.

THAT it be empowered:

—to engage the services of such counsel, staff and techni-
cal advisers as may be necessary for the purposes of
such examination;

—to sit during adjournments of the Senate;

—to adjourn as a Committee or Subcommittee from place
to place in Canada for the purpose of such examination
even during such adjournments.

Senator Marshall: If this is a format, why is it authorizing
the committee to examine and report on soil and water conser-
vation? Is that one of the interests of the committee from past
performance?

The Chairman: Yes. We had a motion previously in the
committee before the adjournment of the last session.

Senator Riley: That committee died so it no longer applies.

The Chairman: That is correct.

Senator Marshall: We should have added “environment” to
our umbrella of responsibilities.

Senator Riley: I believe that goes under the Energy and
Natural Resources Committee.

[Traduction]

ques 2 communiquer et nous assumons alors les frais de séjour
et de déplacement.

Le président: Avez-vous dit que lorsqu’ils sont convoqués
nous payons pour eux?

Le sénateur Roblin: Nous invitons le monde entier d venir
témoigner mais nous ne sommes pas obligés d’assumer les
dépenses. Si nous voulons qu’une personne précise comparaisse
nous paierions alors ses dépenses mais cela se produit trés
rarement, je présume.

Le président: Sénateur Roblin, voulez-vous dire que nous
devrions laisser le chiffre 3 ou bien, comme le dit le sénateur
Bonnell, nous en remettre au Réglement méme, pour avoir une
plus grande latitude?

Le sénateur Roblin: Je m’en remets 4 vous, monsieur le
président.

Le sénateur Bonnell: Je propose, monsieur le président, que
nous nous en remettions a vous et a votre comité de direction,
quitte 4 ce que vous souleviez & nouveau cette question lors
d’une autre réunion.

Le président: Oui, et ensuite ce cas sera régi par le Regle-
ment du Sénat.

L’article n° 12 constitue une demande de motion pour les
ordres de renvoi. Il stipule premiérement:

QUE le Comité sénatorial permanent de I’Agriculture,
des péches et des foréts soit habité, sans autorisation
spéciale du Sénat, a entendre des témoignages de repré-
sentants de l’agriculture, des péches et des foréts et
d’industries connexes.

et deuxiémement:

QUE le Comité sénatorial permanent de ’agriculture, des
péches et des foréts soit autorisé a étudier la conservation
du sol et de I’eau au Canada et a en faire rapport.

Qu’il soit habilité:

—a retenir les services d’experts-conseils, du personnel et
des conseillers techniques nécessaires aux fins de cette
étude;

—a siéger pendant les périodes d’ajournement du Sénat;

—a ajourner en tant que comité ou sous-comité d’un
endroit 4 un autre au Canada aux fins de cette étude et
ce, méme pendant les périodes d’ajournement du Sénat.

Le sénateur Marshall: Si ce texte n’est qu'un modéele,
pourquoi y autorise-t-on le Comité a étudier la conservation du
sol et de I’eau et & faire rapport? Le Comité a-t-il déja étudié
cette question?

Le président: Oui. Nous avons eu une motion en Comité
avant I'ajournement de la derniére session.

Le sénateur Riley: Le Comité s’est dissous et cette motion
n’est plus valable.

Le président: C’est exact.

Le sénateur Marshall: Nous aurions di ajouter a nos res-
ponsabilités la question de I’environnement.

Le sénateur Riley:: Je crois que cette question reléve du
Comité de I’énergie et des ressources naturelles.
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Senator Marshall: Does that stay in even though this is a
new committee?

The Chairman: We are asking that it be put back in the
terms of reference for the committee.

Senator Marshall: I have no objection.

Senator Bonnell: Was there ever a term of reference in the
last session to that effect?

The Chairman: To the house or to the committee?
Senator Bonnell: To the Senate.
The Chairman: No, just to the committee.

Senator Bonnell: Now you are asking that it be put before
the house.

The Chairman: Yes.

Senator Le Moyne: I think it is very important that it stands
because we cannot conceive of soil without water. This a is
most important pre-occupation for us in the years to come.

Senator Marshall: I think it is important enough that we
could have worded it including the word “environment.” How-
ever, I move that it be replaced, as well as the responsibilities
that the committee seeks.

Senator Bonnell: The way Senator Marshall put that, it
sounds to me as if it is asking that the responsibility of soil and
water be part of the committee on Agriculture, Fisheries and
Forestry, but that is not what this motion means. In my
opinion this motion means that they are asking the Senate to
make a special study now on soil and water across Canada. If
we pass this motion, then the committee is involved immedi-
ately in a major study of soil erosion and water. I thought that
perhaps Senator Marshall was more interested in Atlantic
fisheries and forestry in the Atlantic provinces. When you
make the motion now, you are suggesting that we carry on
with the study of soil erosion and water.

Senator Marshall: In view of what Senator Bonnell says, I
agree with his critique, and I would move that that section of
item 12 be left for reconsideration by the steering committee.
Mr. Chairman, I say this because as I see fisheries and
forestries it is a vast responsibility, and perhaps it might be
better if we discuss the idea of a special study on soil and
water conservation in line with what we can see becoming our
responsibility under fisheries and forestry which to my mind,
are two of the most important subjects for discussion.

The Chairman: Basically, there are two motions that we are
looking at rather than one. One is the terms of reference for
the committee as a whole, which is in the first part, and then
the second motion is that the Standing Senate Committee on
Agriculture, Fisheries and Forestry be authorized to examine
which involves a special study. I certainly have no objection to
delaying that for the steering committee, but in the future
there may be another motion to study fisheries as such or
forestries as such. In the future, there may be another motion
to study fisheries as such or forestry as such.

[Traduction)

Le sénateur Marshall: Méme s’il s’agit ici d’'un nouveau
Comité?

Le président: Nous demandons que ce domaine figure dans
’ordre de renvoi du Comité.

Le sénateur Marshall: Je ne m’y oppose pas.

Le sénateur Bonnell: Existait-il un ordre de renvoi en ce sens
lors de la derniére session?

Le président: A la Chambre ou en Comité?
Le sénateur Bonnell: Au Sénat.
Le président: Non, uniquement en Comité.

Le sénateur Bonnell: Proposez-vous maintenant que le Sénat
soit saisi de cette question.

Le président: Oui.

Le sénateur Le Moyne: Il est trés important que cet élément
reste parce que nous ne pouvons étudier la conservation du sol
sans toucher au probléme de I’eau. C’est une question qui nous
occupera sérieusement pendant les années a venir.

Le sénateur Marshall: Je crois que la question est suffisam-
ment importante pour que nous tentions d’inclure le terme
«environnement». Toutefois, je propose de reformuler la motion
et de préciser les responsabilités du Comité.

Le sénateur Bonnell: D’aprés la formulation utilisée par le
Sénateur Marshall, je crois comprendre que le Comité de
’agriculture, des péches et des foréts veut s’occuper du sol et
de I’eau, mais ce n’est pas ce que dit cette motion. A mon avis,
la motion demande au Sénat l'autorisation d’effectuer dés
maintenant une étude spéciale sur la conservation du sol et de
I’eau au Canada. Si nous adoptons cette motion, le Comité
devra entreprendre immédiatement une étude approfondie por-
tant sur I’eau et I’érosion du sol. Je croyais que le Sénateur
Marshall s’intéressait davantage aux péches de I’Atlantique et
aux foréts des provinces maritimes. La motion telle que formu-
lée demande que nous fassions une étude sur I’eau et I’érosion
du sol.

Le sénateur Marshall: Japprouve les commentaires du
sénateur Bonnell et je propose donc de saisir le Comité direc-
teur de cette partie du point 12. Monsieur le président, je
considére que I’examen du domaine des péches et des foréts
constitue déja une vaste responsabilité et qu’il serait peut-étre
préférable que nous discutions de I'idée d'une étude spéciale
sur la conservation du sol et de I’eau dans I'optique des péches
et des foréts qui, 4 mon avis, sont deux des plus importants
sujets dont nous aurons a nous occuper.

Le président: Il s’agit de deux motions plutét qu'une. La
premiére partie traite de I'ordre de renvoi du Comité dans son
ensemble, tandis que la seconde autorise le Comité sénatorial
permanent de I’agriculture, des péches et des foréts a examiner
certaines questions et a effectuer une étude spéciale. Je ne
m’oppose pas 4 ce que l’on saisisse le Comité directeur de la
question et nous aurons peut-étre 4 I’avenir une autre motion
portant plus particuliérement sur les péches ou sur les foréts.
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The Clerk of the Committee: The first motion is a motion
which the former Standing Senate Committee on Agriculture
had as an order of reference from the Senate that is, to let it
hear submissions from the agriculture industry.

Senator Bonnell: I would move that the Standing Senate
Committee on Agriculture, Fisheries and Forestry be empow-
ered, without special reference of the Senate, to hear submis-
sions from representatives of agriculture, fisheries and forestry
and related industries.

The Clerk of the Committee: That, in fact, is one motion.
Senator Bonnell: I didn’t move the other one.

The Clerk of the Committee: The first one is to allow
representatives of the agriculture industry to make submissions
to the committee without having special reference.

The Chairman: Is it your pleasure, honourable senators, to
adopt that motion?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.

Senator Marshall: So you are leaving that section as another
number?

The Chairman: We will ask for another order of reference.
Under the rules of the Senate, only items referred to the
committee can be considered.

The Clerk of the Committee: That is correct.

Senator Bonnell: My understanding is that you, as chairman
of the committee, will have to put the motion before the
Senate itself.

The Chairman: Yes.

Senator Bonnell: The Senate will have to approve of that
motion; is that correct?

The Chairman: Yes, as it will the first.

The motion having to do with the committee being able to
sit during adjournments of the Senate is another motion.

The Clerk of the Committee: That is part of the second
motion.

Senator Bonnell: The next motion is that the Standing
Senate Committee on Agriculture, Fisheries and Forestry be
authorized to examine and report on soil and water conserva-
tion throughout Canada. I would suggest that that motion be
not passed now but referred to the steering committee for
consideration.

I believe some groundwork has already been laid. Perhaps
the new members of the committee and the members of the
steering committee should consider the matter and report back
rather than the matter being passed today. They may want to
make another motion that we consider another matter and
perhaps two studies will be going on simultaneously.

The Chairman: Yes. The committee is always open for
consideration of other matters and to make other studies. I
would be quite happy to go along with your suggestion that we
refer the matter to the steering committee. Would you like to
make a motion to that effect?

[Traduction]

Le greffier du comité: La premiére motion correspond a
’ordre de renvoi que le Sénat avait donné au Comité sénatorial
permanent de I'agriculture lui permettant de tenir des audien-
ces et de recevoir des mémoires des représentants du secteur
agricole.

Le sénateur Bonnell: Je propose que le Comité sénatorial
permanent de I’agriculture, des péches et des foréts soit habi-
lité, sans autorisation spéciale du Sénat, a recevoir des mémoi-
res et des témoignages des représentants du secteur de I’agri-
culture, des péches et des foréts et de secteurs connexes.

Le greffier du comité: Il s’agit en effet d’'une seule motion.
Le sénateur Bonnell: Je n’ai pas proposé ’autre motion.

Le greffier du comité: La premiére motion vise & permettre
aux représentants du secteur agricole de présenter des mémoi-
res et des témoignages au Comité sans que celui-ci ait un
mandat spécial.

Le président: Plait-il aux honorables sénateurs d’adopter la
motion?

Des voix: D’accord.

Le sénateur Marshall: Ainsi nous reviendrons a ce point
plus tard?

Le président: Nous demanderons un nouvel ordre de renvoi.
En vertu du Réglement du Sénat, le Comité ne peut examiner
que les questions dont il a été saisi.

Le greffier du comité: C’est exact.

Le sénateur Bonnell: Si je comprends bien, vous devrez, en
tant que président du Comité, présenter la motion au Sénat.

Le président: Oui.

Le sénateur Bonnell: Le Sénat devra approuver la motion,
est-ce exact?

Le président: Oui, puisque ce sera la premiére motion.

La motion permettant au Comité de siéger pendant les
ajournements du Sénat est une motion distincte.

Le greffier du comité: C’est la seconde partie de la motion.

Le sénateur Bonnell: La prochaine motion propose que le
Comité sénatorial permanent de I’agriculture, des péches et
des foréts soit autorisé 4 étudier la conservation du sol et de
'eau au Canada. Je propose que la motion soit réservée et
renvoyée au Comité directeur pour étude.

J’estime que nous avons déja déblayé le terrain. Les nou-
veaux membres du Comité et les membres du Comité directeur
devraient peut-étre étudier la question et en faire rapport. Ils
voudront peut-étre proposer que nous passions a une autre
question, de sorte que les deux études se fassent en méme
temps.

Le président: Oui. Le Comité est toujours disposé & aborder
d’autres questions et a entreprendre d’autres études. Je serais
parfaitement d’accord pour que nous renvoyions la question au
Comité directeur. Voulez-vous proper une motion en ce sens?
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Senator Bonnell: I already did.

The Chairman: The next motion deals with the supplemen-
tary budget to provide the necessary funding for the study on
soil and water conservation. Perhaps we should leave that
motion for the steering committee.

Senator Marshall: Without trying to nitpick, I would point
out that agriculture, fisheries and forestry could take in a wide
range of responsibilities.

Senator Bonnell: It could take in the Wheat Board.

The Chairman: This would only provide the necessary fund-
ing for the study on soil and water. The motion to hear
witnesses could mean that we could hear witnesses from the
Wheat Board or the export agency regarding fish if they
wanted to appear before the committee. We would be author-
ized to hear them without there being a special hearing on any
new business.

Senator Bonnell: Perhaps before the next meeting our
research people could put together a package on the soil and
water study so that members of the committee will be
informed and be able to base their questions on some facts.

The Chairman: We have that information and it will be
distributed to members.

Senator Le Moyne: 1 had a conversation with Senator
Molgat concerning the project of the United States to divert
water to the south. Perhaps this could fall within the realm of
responsibility of this committee.

The Chairman: The particular study the committee is deal-
ing with deals with soil and water conservation and irrigation.
The subject which you mention may end up being the basis of
a study on its own since it is an important subject.

The committee adjourned.

Ottawa, Thursday, February 16, 1984

The Standing Senate Committee on Agriculture, Fisheries
and Forestry met this day at 9.30 a.m. to examine the subject
matter of soil and water conservation throughout Canada.

Senator Herbert O. Sparrow (Chairman) in the Chair.

The Chairman: I appreciate very much the attendance of
honourable senators this morning at our first formal hearing
since the Senate gave approval to this committee to hold
special hearings on soil degradation in Canada. The committee
is going to embark upon a number of hearings, hopefully both
in Ottawa and throughout Canada, to hear representations on
behalf of the agriculture community pertaining to soil
degradation.

With respect to the meeting today, it will become informal
once the films begin and, at that point, the Hansard staff will
no longer be required. Upon viewing the films, the meeting for
today will be over.

[Traduction]
Le sénateur Bonnell: C’est déja fait.

Le président: La prochaine motion traite du budget supplé-
mentaire requis pour financer I’étude sur la conservation du sol
et de I'eau. Nous devrions peut-étre demander au Comité
directeur de ’examiner.

Le sénateur Marshall: Sans vouloir chercher la petite béte,
j’aimerais signaler que I’agriculture, les péches et les foréts
pourraient comporter des responsabilités assez vastes.

Le sénateur Bonnell: Ces domaines pourraient inclure la
Commission canadienne du blé.

Le président: Les fonds permettraient uniquement de finan-
cer I’étude sur la conservation du sol et de I'eau. La motion
traitant des témoins a entendre pourrait inclure les témoins de
la Commission canadienne du blé ou de 'organisme responsa-
ble de I’exportation du poisson, s’ils manifestaient le désir de
comparaitre devant le Comité. Nous serions autorisés a les
entendre sans pour cela tenir une audience spéciale sur des
questions débordant le cadre de notre mandat.

Le sénateur Bonnell: Nos recherchistes pourraient peut-étre
rassembler des renseignements sur le sol et I’eau avant notre
prochaine réunion pour que les membres du Comité soient
informés et puissent faire des interventions documentées.

Le président: Nous avons déja ces renseignements et nous
les distribuerons aux membres.

Le sénateur Le Moyne: J'ai déja parlé avec le sénateur
Molgat du projet américain de dérivation des eaux vers le Sud.
Cela ferait peut-étre partiec du mandat du Comité.

Le président: Le Comité sera habilité a étudier uniquement
les questions de la conservation du sol et de l'eau et de
Iirrigation. Le sujet dont vous parlez fera probablement 'objet
d’une étude distincte puisqu’il est si important.

Le Comité suspend ses travaux.

Ottawa, le jeudi 16 février 1984

Le Comité sénatorial permanent de I’agriculture, des péches
et des foréts se réunit aujourd’hui & 9 h 30 pour étudier la
question de la conservation des sols et de I’eau au Canada.

Le sénateur Herbert O. Sparrow (président) occupe le
fauteuil.

Le président: Je remercie beaucoup les sénateurs qui ont
participé ce matin 4 la premiére audience officielle de notre
Comité depuis que le Sénat l'autorisé a tenir des audiences
spéciales sur la dégradation du sol au Canada. Nous allons
avoir toute une série d’audiences, 4 Ottawa, et ailleurs au
Canada je I'espére, pour recueillir les témoignages du milieu
agricole sur cette dégradation.

En ce qui concerne la réunion d’aujourd’hui, elle deviendra
informelle a partir de la projection des films et a ce moment-la
nous n’aurons plus besoin du personnel du hansard. Apreés ie
visionnement des films notre séance d’aujourd’hui sera
terminée.
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There are two films before us today. One is entitled:
“Land—Our Last Resource,” and the other, “Soil Today—
Food Tomorrow.” These films ere produced by the Ontario
Ministry of Agriculture and Food. They indicate part of the
problem, with respect to soils, in Ontario. I believe that, as
honourable senators watch the film, they will realize that this
problem exists not only in Ontario but in some of the Atlantic
provinces and, to some degree, in British Columbia.

Later on, at another meeting, we do hope to view some other
films which will give honourable senators an idea of the soil
degradation problems in the rest of Canada. Shortly we will be
receiving from the Department of Agriculture of Alberta a
film entitled: “Oh, Gully, Where Has the Soil Gone?” That is
not my line, it’s theirs. This film will deal with some of the
problems of soil degradation in western Canada. Soil salinity,
of course, in the west, is a big problem. We hope to obtain
some films on that subject as well. We hope to have a great
deal of input on that problem.

If there are any preliminary questions I would ask honour-
able senators to ask them now, while the reporters are still here
with us. Are there any questions pertaining to the soil study
about which I could perhaps inform honourable senators?

As a further comment, in the first part of March this
committee will embark on the hearings in Ottawa with wit-
nesses appearing before it. If there are no questions, then I will
ask that we proceed with the film. For the benefit of those who
have come today, when the film is over the meeting will be
adjourned.

Ottawa, Wednesday, March 7, 1984

The Standing Senate Committee on Agriculture, Fisheries
and Forestry met this day at 3.30 p.m. to examine the subject
matter of soil and water conservation throughout Canada.

Senator Herbert O. Sparrow (Chairman) in the Chair.

The Chairman: This afternoon we have the first meeting of
the Agriculture, Fisheries and Forestry Committee on soil
degradation in Canada. It is a special study undertaken by the
committee on the authorization of the Senate. We are fortu-
nate to commence our discussion by having with us the
Minister of Agriculture, the Honourable Eugene Whelan, who
will discuss with us his department’s policy. He has with him a
number of officials. Perhaps, Mr. Minister, you would
introduce the officials who are here with you.

Senator Marshall: Mr. Chairman, on a point of order, I am
not one to complain, but, as you know, this is our first meeting
on soil conservation. Coming from Newfoundland, I do not
have a great deal of interest in this subject—other than
perhaps rock. The minister has taken the time to come before
us with approximately 12 of his staff and we barely have a

[Traduction)

Nous avons a regarder deux films dont le premier s’intitule:
«Land—Our Last Resource» (La terre, notre derniére res-
source) et le second «Soil Today—Food Tomorrow» (Le sol
d’aujourd’hui—la nourriture de demain). Ces films ont été
réalisés par le ministére ontarien de I’Agriculture et de I’Ali-
mentation. Ils portent sur une partie du probléme de la
dégradation des sols en Ontario. En visionnant le film je crois
que les honorables sénateurs se rendront compte que ce proble-
me existe non seulement en Ontario mais dans certaines
provinces de I’Atlantique et, dans une certaine mesure, en
Colombie-Britannique.

Lors d’une scéance ultérieure nous espérons visionner d’au-
tres films qui donneront aux honorables sénateurs un apergu
des problémes de dégradation du sol dans le reste du Canada.
Nous recevons en effet bientdt du ministére albertain de
I’Agriculture un film intitulé «Oh, Gully, Where Has the Soil
Gone?» (Dis donc, la mouette, ou donc est passé le sol?) Ce
n’est pas moi qui inventé ce titre. Ce film abordera certains des
problémes de dégradation du sol dans I'Ouest du Canada. Les
terres salines sont, on le sait, un grave probléme dans cette
partie du pays. Nous espérons également obtenir certains films
et recueillir beaucoup de renseignements sur ce probléme.

Si certains sénateurs ont des questions prélimaires je leur
demanderais de les poser maintenant, tandis que les reporteurs
sont encore avec nous. Y a-t-il des questions relatives a I’étude
du sol dont je devrais peut-étre informer les honorables
sénateurs?

Autre remarque: dans la premiére quinzaine de mars, ce
Comité débutera ses audiences a Ottawa et commencera a
entendre les témoins. Puisqu’il n’y a pas de questions, je
propose que ’on passe a la projection des films. Pour I'infor-
mation de ceux qui sont venus aujourd’hui, une fois la projec-
tion terminée la séance sera levée.

Ottawa, le mercredi 7 mars 1984

Le Comité sénatorial permanent de I’agriculture, des péches
et des foréts se réunit aujourd’hui & 15 h 30 pour étudier la
question de la conservation des sols et de I’eau au Canada.

Le sénateur Herbert O. Sparrow (président) occupe le
fauteuil.

Le président: Cet aprés-midi, notre Comité se réunit pour la
premiéere fois pour discuter de la question de la dégradation
des sols au Canada. Il s’agit d’une étude spéciale entreprise
avec l'autorisation du Sénat. Nous avons la chance de com-
mencer nos discussions en ayant avec nous le ministre de
I’Agriculture, ’honorable Eugene Whelan, qui nous parlera
des politiques de son ministére. Il est accompagné de plusieurs
fonctionnaires. Auriez-vous I’obligeance, Monsieur le ministre,
de nous les présenter.

Le sénateur Marshall: Monsieur le président, permettez-moi
un petit rappel au Réglement. Je n’ai pas I’habitude de me
plaindre mais, comme vous le savez, c’est notre premiére
séance sur la conservation du sol. Comme je suis de Terre-
Neuve, cette question ne m’intéresse pas beaucoup si ce n’est
peut-étre pour I’étude des roches. Le ministre s’est donné la
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quorum. There must be something wrong with this part of the
Parliament buildings when we cannot extend the courtesy of
having a quorum. I do not know what all the people on the
other side are doing, but we have perhaps two from our side
here.

The Chairman: Senator, there is a caucus meeting going on
in two other committee rooms. Mr. Minister, would you please
proceed?

The Honourable Eugene F. Whelan, P.C., M.P., Minister of
Agriculture: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. We have several
officials with us today. On my immediate right is Mr. Peter
Connell, Deputy Minister of Agriculture. At the far end of the
row of the people sitting close to the wall on the right, we have
the head of the Prairie Farm Rehabilitation Administration,
Dr. Harry Hill. Next to him is Dr. Ron Halstead, Director
Gen, Program Coordination. Next to him is Mr. R.C. Bailey,
Assistant Deputy Minister, Regional Development Branch.
Next to him is Mr. J. Nowland, Special Advisor, Resources,
Research Branch. Next to him is Mr. Terry Hall, Senior
Secretariat Officer. Then we have Dr. D.J. Demars, the
Departmental Secretary. He is in the same branch as Mr.
Hall.

Without further ado I will proceed with my presention. I
hope you realize that we have with us some highly qualified
people concerning the problem being studied by the commit-
tee: I want to take this opportunity to congratulate you and
your committee, Mr. Chairman, for undertaking this study.
We view the problem as one of the most serious confronting us
in Canada today.

Soil is a provincial resource but there are certain things we
can do federally. Perhaps, if you recall the soil drifting of the
1920s and 1930s on the prairies, you might suppose that
Canadians need little reminder of what soil degradation can
mean for agriculture. In fact, the story of what degradation
can eventually lead to is more eloquently told by the stark
limestone and thorn scrub that today cover the vast, once-fer-
tile areas of the Mediterranean countries. It is not widely
known that some of those bare Mediterranean slopes were still
thickly mandled with rich loamy soil, greater than Prince
Edward Island’s, even as Canada’s Fathers of Confederation
met in Charlottetown scarcely 117 years ago. Thus the decline
can be rapid, in historical terms, and leaves no room for
complacency.

Prince Edward Island now has its own serious soil erosion
problems and they are well illustrated in a booklet entitled
“And So Goes the Soil.” We have copies of that, if senators
have not seen it. Obviously, the problem is speading too fast,
not only on Prince Edward Island but across Canada. It
warrants at least as much attention as some other prominent
national issues, such as forestry renewal, energy self sufficien-
cy and acid rain. I therefore welcome the opportunity to
appear before the Senate committee and wish it success in

[Traduction]

peine de venir ici avec douze membres de son personnel et nous
avons a peine quorum. Il doit y avoir quelque chose qui ne
tourne pas rond dans cette partie des édifices du Parlement si
nous n’avons méme pas la courtoisie d’avoir quorum. Je ne sais
pas ce que font tous les gens de I'autre c6té mais nous n’en
avons peut-étre que deux de notre coté.

Le président: Sénateur, il y a une réunion du caucus en ce
moment dans deux autres salles de comité. Monsieur le minis-
tre, prendriez-vous la parole?

L’honorable Eugene F. Whelan, C.P., député, ministre de
P’Agriculture: Merci, monsieur le président. Plusieurs fonction-
naires m’accompagnent aujourd’hui. Assis immédiatement a
ma droite, je vous présente M. Peter Connell, sous-ministre de
I’Agriculture. Tout a fait au bout de la rangée de ceux qui sont
assis prés du mur, a droite, se trouve M. Harry Hill, directeur
de I’Administration du rétablissement de revalorisation agri-
cole des Prairies (ARAP); a coté de lui vous voyez le D* Ron
Halstead, directeur général, Coordinateur des programmes;
ensuite M. R.C. Bailey, sous-ministre adjoint, Direction géné-
rale du développement régional. A c6té de lui vous voyez, M.
J. Nowland, conseiller spécial (Ressources), Direction gnérale
de la recherche, ensuite M. Terry Hall, agent principal du
secrétariat, et puis le D’ D.J. Demars, secrétaire ministériel qui
fait partie du méme service que M. Hall.

Je passe, sans autres formalités, 4 mon exposé. J'espere que
vous avez compris que les personnes qui m’accompagnent sont
trés qualifier pour vous parler du probléme étudié par le
Comité. Je tiens d’ailleurs & profiter de cette occasion pour
vous féliciter, Monsieur le Président, ainsi que votre comité,
d’avoir entrepris cette étude. Nous considérons en effet que
cette question est une des plus graves auxquelles le Canada
soit confronté aujourd’hui.

Le sol est une ressource provinciale, mais le gouvernement
fédéral peut également agir en ce domaine. Si I’on se souvient
de la dérive des sols dans les Prairies dans les années 20 et 30,
on peut penser que les Canadiens n’ont guére besoin de se faire
rappeler ce que la dégradation des sols implique pour ’agricul-
ture. Le morne calcaire et les brouissailles épineuses qui
recouvrent d’immenses régions autrefois fertiles de pays médi-
téranéens illustrent éloquemment les ravages auxquels cette
dégradation méne parfois. Rares sont ceux qui savent, en effet,
que certaines de ces pentes méditéranéennes dénudées étaient
encore recouvertes de sols riches en terreau sur une superficie
plus grande que celle de I'lle-du-Prince-Edouard, au moment
méme ou les Péres de notre Confédération étaient réunis a
Charlottetown il y a & peine 117 années. Le déclin d’un sol
peut, on le voit, étre rapide, et ne permet aucune complaisance
de notre part.

Aujourd’hui, I'fle-du-Prince-Edouard connait elle-méme de
sérieux problémes d’érosion qui ont été bien mis en relief dans
un petit livre intitulé And So Goes the Soil. Nous avons des
copies de cet ouvrage pour les sénateurs qui ne le connaitraient
pas. De toute évidence ce mal se répand trop rapidement, pas
seulement sur I’lle-du-Prince-Edouard mais dans tout le
Canada. Et c’est un probléme qui doit retenir notre attention
tout autant d’autres grandes questions nationales, telles la
rénovation des foréts, I'autosuffisance énergétique et les pluies
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focusing attention on this most pressing and important
problem.

In western Canada early in this century a number of dry
land farming principles evolved. Farmers were advised to
plough deep and cultivate to keep weeds down and the surface
loose. Creating a dust mulch to prevent loss of moisture was
advocated. Straw burning was common. Ideal summer fallow
consisted of a large block of land kept free of weeds by
constant cultivation. It had to be covered by three inches of
dry pulverized soil. Looking back at those early dry land
farming methods, we can begin to understand the causes of
today’s degradation of land. Erosion and the spread of salt
started then and has been with us ever since.

In Canada, agricultural land has been degraded from coast
to coast and in general the process is accelerating. There are
eight principal kinds of land degradation, and they can be
outlined in order of national importance. The first is loss of soil
by water erosion. We lose as much as 25 metric tonnes per
year. That is common and is caused by rain storms and snow
melt on unprotected fields, where there is no fall seeding and
nothing to hold the soil. Serious in all provinces, this problem
is increasing not only in western Canada but also in Ontario,
Quebec and the maritimes. Loss of soil by water erosion
requires a good level of control and is costly.

Let us move to soil salinity. Man-made deterioration of 2.3
million hectares of farmland is how much we have lost; the
salinity is caused by changed ground water conditions result-
ing from agricultural practices. Soil salinity is serious only on
the prairies, where it has been increasing by 5 per cent to 10
per cent per year. Control is moderately costly. Dr. Hill can
perhaps speak to the problem later.

There is loss of soil by wind erosion. Twenty per cent of the
prairie crop land is damaged. Soil losses amount to 160 metric
tonnes per hectare. You can imagine the terrible loss caused
by winds blowing on dry, unprotected fields. The problem is
most serious on the prairies, worsening in dry years. Control
again is moderately costly.

We have that kind of erosion in certain parts of Ontario,
particularly in southwestern Ontario, which is such a rich
agricultural production area, where we grow early vegetables
and fruits, and also tobacco on the sand lands. There is no
protection and the winds sweep through that level land and
cover the fields with the colour of the soil in that area in a few
short hours. The erosion there is by both water and wind.

[Traduction]

acides. Je suis donc heureux d’avoir été invité a comparaitre
devant ce comité du Sénat et mes veeux de succes I'accompa-
gnent dans les efforts qu’il fera pour sensibiliser 'opinion sur
ce probléme des plus urgent et important.

Dans I'Ouest du Canada, on adopta au début du siécle
plusieurs fagons culturales spéciales pour la terre séche. On
conseilla aux agriculteurs de labourer profondément ce genre
de sol, puis de le travailler sans cesse pour empécher la
croissance des mauvaises herbes et pour maintenir la surface
meuble. On leur conseilla aussi de provoquer une poussiere de
paillis destinée a préserver I’humidité du sol. La coutume de
briler la paille se répandit. On visait idéalement a laisser en
jachére une part importante des terres constamment travaillées
en éliminer les mauvaises herbes. Ces terres devaient étre
couvertes d’une couche de terre séche pulvérisée de trois
pouces. En considérant ces anciennes fagons de travailler la
terre séche, nous comprenons mieux aujourd’hui pourquoi le
sol s’est dégradé. C’est 4 ce moment-1a, en effet, que com-
menga I’érosion du sol et que se répandit le sel, probléme que
nous connaissons encore de nos jours.

Toutes les terres agricoles du Canada d’un océan a 'autre
ont subi une dégradation, et ce phénoméne qui va méme en
s’accélérant. On distingue huit grands types de dégradation du
sol. Je les énumérerai selon leur importance a I’échelle natio-
nale: il y a d’abord la perte de sol due a I’érosion hydrique qui
enléve jusqu’a 25 tonnes métriques de terre par an. Cette
érosion est courante et est causée par la pluie des orages et la
fonte des neiges dans les champs non protégés c’est-a-dire dont
la terre n’est retenue par rien, n’étant pas ensemencée a
I’automne. Toutes les provinces connaissent ce probléme dont
la gravité s’accroit. Il existe non seulement dans I’Ouest, mais
également en Ontario, au Québec et dans les Maritimes. La
lutte efficace contre cette érosion hydrique est colteuse.

Passons rapidement a la salinisation des sols, par laquelle
I’homme a détérioré 2,3 millions d’hectares de terres agricoles.
Voila la superficie de terres que nous avons perdues par
'application de fagons agricoles qui ont attaqué les eaux
souterraines. Les terres salines ne présentent un probléme que
dans les Prairies, ou leur nombre augmentent de 5 a 10 p. 100
par an. La lutte contre ce probléme ne cofite pas trop cher. M.
Hill, ici présent, pourra nous en parler plus longuement tout a
I’heure.

Il y a ensuite dégradation du sol par érosion éolienne.
Environ 20 p. 100 des terres cultivées des Prairies sont endom-
magées par le vent, les pertes qui se chiffrent & 160 tonnes
métriques par hectare. Il est facile de s’imaginer les pertes que
subissent les champs secs et non protégés sous I’effet du vent.
C’est dans les Prairies que ce probléme est le plus aigu et il
s’aggrave pendant les années de sécheresse. La lutte contre ce
type d’érosion n’est pas trop coiteuse.

Cette érosion éolienne existe dans certaines parties de I’'On-
tario, notamment dans le sud-ouest, qui est une riche région de
production de primeurs et de tabac. Les terres sablonneuses et
plates ne sont pas protégées et le vent les balaye, recouvrant en
quelques heures les champs d’une poussiére, de méme couleur
que celle de la terre avoisinante. Ces terres sont érodées non
seulement par I’eau mais également par le vent.
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The loss of soil organic matter is very serious. Forty-five per
cent of organic matter has been lost from the prairie soil since
we started to cultivate. It is caused by oxidization and erosion.
That is serious in most provinces. Again control is moderately
costly.

Soil compaction is widespread. It seriously reduces crop
growth. It is caused by excessive field traffic, big heavy
machinery, and so on. It is most serious in eastern Canada and
is steadily increasing. Control can be costly. We know that we
should possibly be planting clover in some of the heavy land at
least every third year, or perhaps every fourth year and then
leave it for one year—in other words, not harvest it, but let the
clover take its full growth for one year. The roots could then
go down more than two metres into the ground, which is good
for aeration. This can have a tremendous effect on improving
the aeration of the land, making it easier to work and at the
same time providing nitrogen to the soil.

Soil acidification is caused mostly by nitrogen fertilizers. It
is a potentially serious problem in Eastern Canada, Alberta
and Saskatchewan, and is steadily increasing.

As to soil disturbance, that affects about 100,000 hectares
and is caused by strip-mining, gravel extraction, pipelines, etc.
Have you ever noticed how rough it is when you go through an
area where a pipeline has gone through? The provincial and
federal laws of this country do not require the people building
the pipelines to replace the soil in its original different layers.
In most areas where pipelines have gone through, the land
never becomes as productive as it was, because it never drains
the same way as it did before. That is because the natural
drainage that takes place between the different stratas of soil,
gravel or whatever has been affected. This is very serious in
Ontario and is scattered throughout all provinces. Rehabilita-
tion is improving slowly but it takes years and general control
is moderately costly.

Soil contamination is caused by pesticides, chemicals, exces-
sive sewage sludge, disease organisms and so on. It occurs in
all provinces and is slowly increasing. It can be controlled at a
moderate to low cost.

These are the land degradation problems that have become
serious. They cost Canada dearly, as you will see from exam-
ples I shall give in a moment.

Soil conservation means the adoption of management sys-
tems that maintain or enhance soil productivity. They must
arrrest the processes of degradation or reduce them to an
acceptable level. The need is quite urent, particularly in our
northerly latitude soils which are thin and vulnerable. Once
they are damaged or lost it becomes more difficult to sustain
our national goals for crop production, food supply and grain
export. Gradual accumulations of knowledge about the true
costs of soil degradation is behind the growing groundswell of
concern in government and in the farming community.

[Traduction)

Il y a aussi I'apauvrissement organique du sol. Cette perte
est trés importante, puisque le sol des Prairies a perdu 45 p.
100 de son contenu organique depuis que nous le travaillons.
Ce déperrissement est di a I'oxydation et a I’érosion. C’est un
probléme sérieux dans la plupart des provinces et la lutte
contre ce fléau est modérément coliteuse.

Le compactage est également assez répandu. Il réduit de
beaucoup la croissance de la récolte. Il est di au passage trop
fréquent de véhicules lourds, de grosses machines agricoles,
dans les champs. Le compactage sévit surtout dans I’Est du
Canada et augmente sans cesse. Il est assez coiteux d’y
remédier. Nous savons qu’il faudrait peut-étre semer du tréfle
dans les sols plus lourds au moins tous les trois ans, ou
peut-étre tous les quatre ans, pour le laisser ensuite en jache-
re—c’est-a-dire laisser le tréfle pousser jusqu’a maturité sans
le récolter, pour un an. De cette fagon les racines pénétrent a
plus de 2 métres sous terre. C’est une trés bonne fagon d’aérer
le sol, qui est ensuite plus facile a travailler et dont la teneur
en azote augmente.

L’acidification des sols est due a4 I’emploi d’engrais azotés.
Ce probléme, dont I'importance va croissante, pourrait devenir
sérieux dans I’Est du Canada, en Alberta et en Saskatchewan.

Quant a la perturbation des sols enfin, elle touche environ
100,000 hectares et est surtout due a ’exploitation miniére a
ciel ouvert, a I’extraction de gravier et a la construction de
pipe-lines, etc. Si vous avez traversé une région ou un pipe-line
a été construit, vous aurez sans doute remarqué I’état rugueux
du terrain. Nos lois fédérales et provinciales n’exigent pas de
ceux qui posent les pipe-lines qu’ils redonnent au sol sa confi-
guration antérieure. C’est ainsi que dans la plupart des
endroits traversés par des pipe-lines, la terre ne redevient
jamais aussi fertile qu’avant, parce que le drainage naturel qui
se produit entre les différentes couches du sol—argile, gravier,
etc., a été perturbé. C’est un probléme trés grave en Ontario,
que I’on retrouve dans toutes les provinces. On s’est tranquille-
ment mis 4 remettre ces terres en état mais cela prend des
années et c’est une opération modérément coiiteuse.

La contamination du sol est attribuable, elle, aux pesticides,
aux produits chimiques, aux boues d’épuration excessives, aux
microorganismes infectueux etc. Ce phénomeéne se produit
dans toutes les provinces et progresse lentement. La lutte
contre ces agents est modérément voire peu coiliteuse.

Voild donc la liste des principales causes de dégradation du
sol 4 avoir pris des proportions sérieuses. Ce phénomeéne cher
au Canada, comme vous pourrez en juger par les exemples que
je vous donnerai dans un instant.

Conserver le sol signifie adopter des systémes de gestion qui
maintient ou améliore la productivité de la terre. Ces systémes
doivent stoper le processus de dégradation ou les ramener dans
des limites acceptables. Le besoin est assez urgent, surtout
pour nos sols de latitude nord peu profonds et vulnérables. Si
nous endommageons ou perdons ces sols, il nous sera difficile
d’atteindre les objectifs nationaux de production agricole,
d’approvisionnement alimentaire et d’exportations céréaliéres.
L’accumulation graduelle des connaissances relatives aux véri-
tables cofits de dégradation du sol explique la flambée actuelle
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Let me cite some examples. Soil erosion costs prairies
farmers annually $370 million. It costs $30 per hectare to
maintain productivity in potato fields in Prince Edward Island
and cereal fields in British Columbia. The annual loss to
Ontario farmers in soil erosion is $68 million. The accumulat-
ed loss in land values in Western Canada due to the spread of
salts in the soil estimated at $3 billion. The loss to Prairie crop
land due to salinity is estimated at $67 million annually and
has a multiplier effect in the economy of $186 million. The
annual loss to Alberta farmers due to soil acidification is
estimated at $85 million. There are incalculable costs due to
sedimentation and chemical pollution of waters in all areas of
Canada.

On the other hand, PFRA has calculated that $3.2 billion of
benefits to Prairie farmers would accrue by the year 2000 by
halting the further spread of soil salinity by cutting erosion in
half and by lessening organic matter loss by reducing summer-
fallow by 5.5 million hectares. We think this is entirely
feasible. Savings of nitrogen alone from conservation practices
would be worth $70 million annually.

The loss of soil productivity through degradation may
induce farmers to use less suitable land for intensive cropping.
The resulting cost can be very high. When land marginal for
agriculture is cultivated, not only may degradation result due
to the nature of the land, but the community as a whole may
suffer the loss of a natural habitat or a recreational area. In
such instances, the agricultural sector could be held account-
able for the loss of these resources.

I would like to say something about the current programs in
Agriculture Canada. The department’s current soil degrada-
tion and conservation activities include regional development,
research and prairie farm rehabilitation programs. Within the
past three years, Agriculture Canada’s Regional Development
Branch has assumed the federal responsibilities for Agricultur-
al Development Subsudiary Agreements which were formerly
controlled by DREE, now DRIE, under Canada-Provincial
Gen Development Agreements, commonly known as GDA’s.
While the specific objectives of each agreement vary from
province to province, the broad objective of all agricultural
subagreements has been to increase the production and pro-
ductivity of Canada’s agri-food sector. In these agreements,
certain projects directly related to soil and moisture conserva-
tion have been approved. These projects concentrate on erosion
control in the Maritimes and on improving grasslands and
organic soil management in Manitoba. Since 1977 approxi-
mately $850,000 have been spent directly by the federal
government under the subagreements specifically on soil con-
servation projects. This figure includes the many millions of
federal dollars spent for on-farm sub-surface drainage, land
clearing and improvement and on grassland renovations which

[Traduction]

d’inquiétude chez les représentants du gouvernement et du
milieu agricole.

Voici quelques exemples. L’érosion du sol cofite annuelle-
ment 370 millions de dollars aux agriculteurs des Prairies. Il
en coite $30 I'hectare pour maintenir la productivité des
champs de pommes de terre de I'Ile du Prince-Edouard et des
terres céréaliéres de la Colombie-Britannique. Cette méme
érosion du sol coiite 68 millions de dollars par année aux
agriculteurs ontariens. La perte totale de valeur des sols de
’Ouest du Canda attribuable a I’épandage de sel est estimée a
3 milliards de dollars, et on estime 4 67 millions de dollars par
an et, par I'effet multiplicateur, a 186 millions de dollars pour
’ensemble de I’économie, les pertes subies par les terres pro-
ductives des Prairies. L’acidification du sol fait perdre annuel-
lement 85 millions de dollars aux agriculteurs albertains,
estime-t-on. Sans parler des sommes incalculables perdues en
raison de la sédimentation et de la pollution chimique des eaux
dans toutes les parties du Canada.

D’un autre cdté, L’ARAP a calculé que les agriculteurs de
I’Ouest réaliseraient des bénéfices de 3,2 millions de dollars
d’ici I'an 2000 s’ils enrayaient la salinité, réduisaient de moitié
I’érosion et diminuaient la perte de matiéres organiques en
soustrayant 5,5 millions d’hectares aux jacheres. Cela est tout
a fait faisable 4 notre avis. Les méthodes de conservation
permettraient d’économiser 70 millions de dollars par an seule-
ment en azote.

Avec des terres moins productives parce que dégradées les
fermiers seraient peut-étre enclin a utiliser des sols moins
adaptés a la culture intensive. Cela peut nous couter trés cher.
Quand de la terre marginale pour I’agriculture est cultivée,
non seulement cette terre peut se dégrader a cause de sa
composition mais la collectivité peut avoir a souffrir la perte
d’un habitat naturel ou d’une zone récréative. Dans ces cas, le
secteur agricole pourrait étre tenu responsable de la perte de
cette ressource.

Je voudrais dire quelques mots au sujet des programmes
actuels du ministére de I’Agriculture. En matiére de dégrada-
tion et de conservation des sols, le ministére a des activités de
développement régional ainsi que des programmes de recher-
ches et de rétablissement agricole des Prairies. Au cours des
trois derniéres années, la Direction du développement régional
de notre ministére a été chargée de I’administration des
accords complémentaires de développement agricole qui rele-
vaient autrefois du MEER, maintenant nommé MEIR, en
vertu d’Accords cadres de développement le Canada et les
provinces, connus sous le nom de ’ACD. Bien que les objectifs
précis de chaque accord varient d’une province a Il'autre,
I'objectif général de tous les accords agricoles complémentaires
a été d’accroitre la production et productivité du secteur
agro-alimentaire du Canada. Ces accords ont permis d’approu-
ver des projets directement reliés a la conservation du sol et de
son humidité. Ils sont axés par exemple sur la lutte contre
I’érosion dans les Maritimes et sur I’amélioration de la gestion
des terres 4 paturages et des sols organiques au Manitoba.
Depuis 1977, le gouvernement fédéral a déboursé environ
$850,000 dans le cadre de ces accords précisément pour la
réalisation de projets de conservation du sol. Ce chiffre com-
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have also occurred under these agreements. Many of these
expenditures have had the indirect effect of improving the
quality of agricultural soils but were not specifically designed
to combat the soil degradation problems specifically described
above.

In research, current expenditures on land resources, includ-
ing land inventory and agrometeorology, are $9.5 million. Of
this, $2.4 million are spent on soil management and conserva-
tion and the amount allocated to soil degradation and conser-
vation and supporting research is $744,000.

The core research and soil conservation includes the follow-
ing subjects: understanding the effects of erosion and produc-
tivity; restoring productivity to expose subsoil; unravelling the
complexities of minimum tillage; conservation of potato land;
organic soil conservation; identification and control of saline
seepage; using fall cover crops to protect the soil; and a
national resource protection program, which published a na-
tional overview of land degradation.

The Prairie Farm Rehabilitation Administration Programs
in soil conservation currently involve expenditures of $440,000
on soil conservation planning, $12 million on a community
pasture program and $2.4 million on a tree nursery program.

Mr. Hill, is that the tree nursery at Indian Head?

Dr. Harry Hill, Director, Prairie Farm Rehabilitation
Administration: Yes.

Hon. Mr. Whelan: Activities include pilot projects in co-
operation with farm groups and rural municipalities to assist in
alleviating soil salinity, flooding, erosion. The agency has also
made overview assessments of land degradation and impacts of
future droughts and continues longstanding programs for farm
shelterbelts and community pastures against wind erosion.
PFRA has just completed a comprehensive report on land
degradation, which I now wish to table with the committee.
Members may have seen an earlier summary version issued in
1982. This report is dated December, 1983 so I doubt that very
many of you have had an opportunity to see it.

In addition, my department has already had contact with
the Senate committee by verbal submissions from several
officials in 1983 and through a meeting with Senator Sparrow
and his staff in January of this year to assist with economic
assessments of soil degradation and conservation. The depart-
ment staff have since been gathering available information on
this important aspect.

[Traduction]

prend les nombreux millions de dollars dépensés pour le drai-
nage souterrain des fermes, le défrichement et I’amélioration
des terres et pour la rénovation des paturages. Un bonne part
de ces dépenses a eu pour effet indirect d’améliorer la qualité
des terres agricoles, bien qu’elles n’aient pas eu précisément
pour objet de combattre les problémes de dégradation des sols
dont je viens de parler.

Sur le plan de la recherche, le chiffre des dépenses affectées
aux ressources en terre, incluant l'inventaire des terres et
I’agrométéorologie, s’¢léve a 9.5 millions de dollars. Sur ce
montant, 2.4 millions de dollars sont affectés a la gérance et a
la conservation des sols, tandis que 744,000 dollars sont alloués
pour la recherche ralative a la dégradation et a la conservation
des sols.

La recherche fondamentale en ce domaine porte sur les
questions suivantes: comprendre les effets de 1’érosion sur la
productivité, restaurer la productivité pour exposer le sous-sol,
déméler les formes multiples de travail minimal de la terre,
conserver les terres 2 pommes de terre et les sols organiques,
repérer et stoper les infiltrations salines, procéder a des récol-
tes d’automne pour protéger le sol, élaborer un programme
national de protection de la ressource terrestre, qui a déja
publié d’ailleurs un document général sur la dégradation des
sols au Canada.

Les programames de I’Administration du rétablissement
agricole des Prairies en matiére de conservation du sol impli-
quent en ce moment des dépenses de $440,000 pour la planifi-
cation de la conservation du sol, 12 millions de dollars pour un
programme de paturages communautaires et 2.4 millions de
dollars pour un programme de pépiniére.

Monsieur Hill, s’agit-il de la pépiniére d’Indian Head?

M. Harry Hill, directeur, Administration du rétablissement
agricole des Prairies: Oui.

L’honorable M. Whelan: Les activités comprennent des
projets pilotes administrés en collaboration avec des groupes
agricoles et des municipalités rurales, dont le but est d’aider a
atténuer la salinité du sol, les inondations et I’érosion. L’Admi-
nistration fait aussi des évaluations de la dégradation du sol et
des répercussions des sécheresses futures et continue d’admi-
nistrer des programmes 4 long terme relatifs aux brise-vent
agricoles et aux piturages communautaires. L’ARAP vient de
terminer un rapport exhaustif sur la dégradation du sol que je
voudrais maintenant déposer au Comité. Les membres du
Comité auront peut-étre vu la version résumée diffusée en
1982. Ce rapport est daté de décembre 1983 et je doute donc
que bon nombre d’entre vous aient eu 1'occasion d’en prendre
connaissance.

En outre, mon ministére a déja pris contact avec le Comité
du Sénat car plusieurs hauts fonctionnaires du ministére lui
ont présenté des exposés en 1983 et nous avons tenu une
réunion avec le sénateur Sparrow et son personnel en janvier,
pour contribuer aux évaluations économiques de la dégrada-
tion et de la conservation du sol. Depuis, le personnel du
ministére collige les renseignements dont nous disposons sur
cet important aspect de la question.
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What are future plans in the development of conservation
policy?

Before I go any farther, Dr. Hill, is the Indian Head
Nursery Farm the one we visited? Do you have your reports on
how many trees have been given to farmers since the station
was opened?

Dr. Hill: I cannot recall the figure, but I think it is approxi-
mately 500 million seedlings.

Hon. Mr. Whelan: I visited the station a year ago. While I
was there, one of the station workers told me that he could
turn the Prairies into forests, if he had the opportunity. The
trees that I am referring to are given free to farmers for
windbreaks and this type of thing. They have different varie-
ties of trees, some of which were brought to the Praires before
1900 from China and Russia to be studied because of their
ability to survive in cold climates.

I talked about how fragile the soil conditions there are. A
great many people do not realize that we farm 55 per cent of
our agriculture production further north than any other nation
in the world, and that includes China and Russia. So this is
very fragile land that we are working with. The trees are most
important. Some of the things which have been accomplished
with them are amazing. I am sure a great many people are not
aware of most of them. A farmer is entitled to how many free
trees? Is it 10,000 a year?

Dr. Hill: There is no limit on the number of trees. He can
have his needs eventually over time, whatever they happen to
be.

Hon. Mr. Whelan: I refer again to this tree farm in Sas-
katchewan. It was established in 1902 by the Department of
the Interior, transferred to the Experimental Farm Service of
Agriculture Canada in 1931, and eventually to the PFRA in
1963.

I have more details with respect to seedlings. In 1982 some
10,451 farmers received seedling. In 1983 some 10,900 farm-
ers received nearly 17 million trees.

It is a high quality nursery, Mr. Chairman, and if your
committee intends to travel this summer, when the nursery will
be in full operation, I suggest that it is one area you should
visit. You would be amazed to see the work that they are doing
there.

In addition, the future plans we have include the develop-
ment of conservation policy. Cabinet has recently made soil
and water development a federal priority. As a result, Agricul-
ture Canada is currently working to develop a soil and water
policy it can successfully integrate into the body of existing
agricultural policies for which it has responsibility. It is clear
that several principles must guide us. Because of fiscal
restraint, government funding is scarce. Therefore, we must
ensure that any federal initiatives are designed so as to achieve
maximum effect. To succeed, measurable soil and water de-
velopment objectives are needed against which achievement
can be measured. Again, because of the fiscal restraint all soil
and water initiatives supported by the federal government
must be shown to generate positive net social benefits over a

[Traduction)

Quels sont les projets relatifs a I’élaboration d’une politique
de conservation?

Avant d’aller plus loin, j’aimerais savoir, monsieur Hill, si la
pépiniére d’Indian Head est celle que nous avons visitée?
Avez-vous vos rapports sur le nombre d’arbres qui ont été
donnés aux agriculteurs depuis qu’on I’a ouverte?

M. Hill: Je ne puis me souvenir des chiffres, mais je pense
que ¢’était a peu pres 500 millions de plants.

L’honorable M. Whelan: Je n’ai visité cette pépiniere qu’il y
a un an. Auparavant, elle relevait d’Agriculture Canada.
Quand je I'ai visitée, I'un des travailleurs m’a dit qu’il pourrait
transformer les Prairies en foréts si on lui en donnait les
moyens. Les arbres dont je parle sont donnés aux agriculteurs
pour couper le vent, etc. Il y a divers types d’arbres, dont
certains ont été importés avant 1900, de Chine et de Russie
pour en étudier les possibilités de survie dans des climats
froids.

Je me suis alors enquis de la fragilité des conditions du sol
1a-bas. Bon nombre ignorent que 55 p. 100 de notre production
agricole proviennent de régions situées plus au nord que n’im-
porte quel pays du monde, y compris la Chine et la Russie.
Nous travaillons donc sur une terre trés fragile. Les arbres
sont trés importants. A cet égard, certaines de nos réalisations
sont étonnantes. Je suis sir que la plupart sont ignorées du
grand public. A combien d’arbres un agriculteur a-t-il droit: a
10,000 par année?

M. Hill: Il n’y a pas de limite. Eventuellement, il peut
obtenir tous les arbres dont il a besoin, quel qu’en soit le
nombre.

L’honorable M. Whelan: Je voudrais a nouveau parler de
cette pépiniere de la Saskatchewan. Créée en 1902 par le
ministére de ’Intérieur, elle a été transférée au Service de la
ferme expérimentale d’Agriculture Canada en 1931, puis fina-
lement a ’ARAP en 1963.

Jai plus de détails concernant les plants. En 1982, quelque
10,045 agriculteurs en ont regus et en 1983, pres de 10,900
agriculteurs ont regu prés de 7 millions d’arbres.

C’est une pépiniére de haute qualité, monsieur le président,
et si votre comité a l'intention de se déplacer cet été, je lui
suggére de la visiter car elle sera alors pleinement opération-
nelle. Vous seriez étonné de voir le travail qu’on y effectue.

De plus, nos projets comprennent 1’élaboration d’une politi-
que de conservation. Le cabinet a récemment fait une priorité
de I’exploitation du sol et de I’eau. Ainsi, Agriculture Canada
met actutellement au point une politique relative au sol et a
I’eau qu’il pourra intégrer aux politiques agricoles existantes,
dont il a la responsabilité. Il est clair que plusieurs principes
doivent nous inspirer. Etant donné les restrictions financiéres,
les fonds gouvernementaux sont rares. Nous devons donc nous
assurer que toutes les initiatives fédérales sont congues pour
produire des résultats maximums. Pour réussir, il faut des
objectifs en fonction desquels évaluer les réalisations. Encore
une fois, étant donné les restrictions budgétaires, les initiatives
appuyées par le gouvernement fédéral doivent rapporter des
avantages sociaux 4 plus ou moins bréve échéance. A cause de
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reasonable horizon. Because of the site-specific geographic
nature of soil and water degradation problems and solutions
and their intimate relationship with local environmental condi-
tions and farm production practices, a decentralized approach
to the design and delivery of initiatives will be needed.

The overall policy objective of Agriculture Canada in soil
conservation must be to increase the utilization of conservation
practices in Canadian agriculture in order to reduce soil
degradation to an acceptable level and to restore degraded
areas. More research into more cost effective conservation
practices is of crucial importance, mainly because many exist-
ing conservation practices are too costly or have uncertain side
effects. However, the main thrust of the programming must be
utilization of conservation practices on the farm. This means
that a special effort will be required for federal-provincial
co-operation in order to improve all methods of technology
transfer. The key to improved utilization by farmers will be to
demonstrate the costs, benefits and practicality of conservation
tillage and other conservation systems on farms.

Provinces are interested in increasing agricultural produc-
tion and sustaining these increases. Federal concern is to
ensure a strong continuing economic base in the national
interest. Agriculture Canada recognizes the need to co-ordi-
nate programs of all parties and will act accordingly.

An important principle to establish in the development of
conservation policy is to target the effort at the high priority
areas. The problems are so widespread that there could be a
temptation to attack all problems everywhere. Hard-nosed
priority setting will be essential and any incentive programs
that might be developed must be strictly targeted. It will,
therefore, be important to identify precisely those areas where
problems of degradation are the most serious.

Despite the rising groundswell of concern for soil degrada-
tion in Canada, it is mostly confined to the rural and academic
community. It is readily apparent that a much greater effort is
required for raising the level of public awareness of the
implications of soil degradation for all Canadians by every
means possible.

The most effective soil conservation solutions are likely to be
found in a combination of engineering and cultural ap-
proaches. Engineering measures such as terraces and diversion
ditches may sometimes focus too much on the symptoms of the
problem. The causes themselves may be gradually removed by
a shift back to crop rotations with more forages and livestock
on farms. Thus, marketing, transportation and processing
arrangements are all key element in the development of effec-
tive soil conservation measures.

I would now like to deal with some proposed programs. The
Minister of State for Economic and Regional Development is
negotiating Economic and Regional Development Agreements,
which we commonly call ERDAs, with most provinces to
replace the GDAs which have already expired or are about to
expire. Agriculture Canada is in the process of designing
programming initiatives that are expected to lead to a new set

[Traduction]

la nature particuliére a chaque région, des problémes concer-
nant la dégradation de I’eau et du sol et leurs liens étroits avec
les conditions écologiques locales et les pratiques de production
agricole, il faudra une approche décentralisée pour la concep-
tion et Iapplication des programmes.

L’objectif politique global d’Agriculture Canada en matiére
de conservation du sol doit consister & accroitre |'utilisation de
moyens de conservation dans I’agriculture au Canada afin de
ramener la dégradation du sol & un niveau acceptable et de
remettre en état les sols dégradés. Il est capital qu'on fasse
d’autres recherches sur des pratiques de conservation plus
efficaces au niveau des coits, car la plupart sont trop coiteu-
ses ou produisent des effets secondaires incertains. Cependant,
la programmation doit surtout viser I'utilisation de pratiques
de conservation sur la ferme. Ainsi, il faudra une collaboration
fédérale-provinciale accentuée pour améliorer toutes les
méthodes de transfert de technologie. Pour améliorer I'utilisa-
tion de la terre par les agriculteurs, il faudra surtout démon-
trer que par rapport aux coiits, les méthodes culturales de
conservation et les autres procédés de conservation sont avan-
tageux et réalisables.

Les provinces veulent aumgenter et maintenir le niveau de
production agricole. Le gouvernement fédéral veut assurer une
base économique solide et constante, dans I'intérét national.
Agriculture Canada reconnait la nécessité de coordonner les
programmes de toutes les parties et agira en conséquence.

Dans 1’élaboration d’une politique de conservation, axer les
efforts sur les zones prioritaires est un principe important. Les
problémes sont tellement diffus qu’on pourrait étre tenté de s’y
attaquer partout. Il sera essentiel de définir clairement les
priorités et d’orienter rigoureusement tout programme éven-
tuel d’incitation. Il importera donc de délimiter clairement les
zones ou les problémes de dégradation sont les plus graves.

Méme si I'on se préoccupe de plus en plus au Canada de la
dégradation du sol, cette tendance reste principalement limitée
au monde rural et universitaire. On voit déja qu’il faudra
déployer de plus grands efforts pour sensibiliser davantage le
public aux conséquences de la dégradation du sol pour tous les
Canadiens.

Les solutions les plus efficaces consisteront probablement a
combiner les diverses approches techniques et culturales. Les
travaux de génie, comme la construction de terrasses et de
fossés de dérivation, peuvent parfois étre trop centrés sur les
symptdmes du probléme. Les causes elles-mémes peuvent étre
graduellement supprimées par un retour aux cultures rotatives,
en multipliant les cultures fourragéres et en élevant plus de
bétail. Les dispositions relatives a la commercialisation, au
transport et au conditionnement sont donc des éléments clés
dans I’élaboration de mesures efficaces de conservation du sol.

J'aimerais maintenant aborder une partie des programmes
proposés. Le ministre d’Etat a I’expansion économique régio-
nale négocie actuellement avec la plupart des provinces, des
accords d’expansion économique régionale en remplacement de
ceux qui ont expiré ou sont sur le point d’échoir. Agriculture
Canada est en train de concevoir des programmes qui
devraient conduire a une nouvelle série de sous-accords agrico-
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of federal-provincial agricultural subagreements in each prov-
ince. In all provinces where soil degradation has been found to
be a serious problem, Agriculture Canada will be proposing
appropriate soil conservation initiatives. Because many of our
proposals have still to receive cabinet approval and because
federal-provincial negotiations have not been completed,
Agriculture Canada cannot describe these initiatives in any
detail. However, assuming the approval of cabinet and provin-
cial ministers, Agriculture Canada is proposing to commit
approximately $75 million to soil and moisture conservation
programs across the country over the next five years under
new subsidiary agreements.

Research programs need to be strengthened in the following
directions: taking inventory of the extent of the various pro-
cesses of degradation; solving the problems of reduced tillage;
managing spring run-off; assessing cost-effectiveness of conser-
vation practices; evaluating the role of extreme climatic events
in erosion; assessing the seriousness of soil compaction and
discovering methods to reduce it; understanding the hydrologi-
cal aspects of soil salinity; and developing integrated systems
for the reclamation of saline soils.

Part of the department’s plan to increase research support
for soil conservation is a proposed western soil and water
research centre in Saskatoon. The centre would bring together
a team of specialists to work in co-operation with existing
research stations and soil survey units: PFRA, Environment
Canada and its national hydrology research institute, and
provincial agencies. They will be charged with finding solu-
tions to outstanding problems of land degradation and tailor-
ing them to local conditions, which are quite diverse. Funding
for this $24 million centre is being actively sought at this
moment.

The centre must serve all three prairie provinces. We see it
as a key element in ensuring the sustainability of agriculture
on the prairies, but it will also help to open up the potential for
major increases in grain production now that improvements in
transportation can be expected.

I have indicated that the utilization of research results on
the farm will be the key to success in soil conservation. The
process will be facilitated, if some kinds of research can be
performed in partnership with farmers, with the field as the
laboratory. This is best organized through producer groups or
conservation districts. The approach has already been used
successfully on the prairies. Agriculture Canada’s involvement
in this type of operation requires close collaboration with the
provinces, since the provincial extension agencies must remain
the main intermediary for transferring federal research. You
may wonder what that means. It is a provincial resource and
what we are talking about is education. The provincial exten-
sion agency really provides that education. The chief exception
is PFRA in the prairie region, which has a special role in
putting conservation research results to work.

[Traduction)

les fédéraux-provinciaux dans chaque province. Dans toutes les
provinces ou la dégradation du sol s’est révélé un probléme
grave, Agriculture Canada proposera des mesures appropriées
de conservation du sol. Comme bon nombre de nos proposi-
tions n’ont pas encore regu ’approbation du cabinet et que les
négociations fédérales-provinciales ne sont pas terminées,
Agriculture Canada ne peut détailler encore ces mesures.
Toutefois, en présumant que ces propositions seront approu-
vées par le cabinet et les ministres provinciaux, Agriculture
Canada se propose d’affecter environ 75 millions de dollars au
programme de conservation du sol d’ici les cinq prochaines
années, aux termes des nouveaux accords auxiliaires.

Les programmes de recherche devront étre renforcés de
fagon qu’on puisse répertorier plus rapidement les divers pro-
cessus de dégradation; résoudre les problémes issus d’un labour
réduit; contrdler le ruissellement de printemps; évaluer I’effa-
cité des pratiques de conservation par rapport aux coits;
déterminer le rdle de la rigueur du climat dans |’érosion;
évaluer la gravité du compactage et découvrir des moyens de le
réduire; comprendre les aspects hydrologiques de la salinité du
sol et élaborer des systémes intégrés de revalorisation des sols
salins.

Le plan du ministére visant a accroitre 1’aide a la recherche
sur la conservation du sol prévoit notamment la création, a
Saskatoon, d’un centre de recherche sur I’eau et le sol. Ce
centre réunirait une équipe de spécialistes chargés de travailler
en collaboration avec les centres de recherche existants et les
services d’étude du sol c’est-a-dire ’ARAP, Environnement
Canada et son institut de recherche hydrologique national et
des organismes provinciaux. Ils seront chargés de trouver des
solutions aux problémes de la dégradation du sol et de les
adapter aux conditions locales, trés différentes. Actuellement,
on cherche activement un financement pour ce centre qui
cotitera 24 millions de dollars.

Le centre doit servir aux trois provinces des Prairies. Nous
le considérons comme un élément clef non seulement pour
assurer le soutien de I’agriculture des Prairies, mais aussi pour
accroitre les possibilités d’augmenter sensiblement la produc-
tion de céréales maintenant que 1’on peut s’attendre a ce que le
transport soit amélioré.

J’ai mentionné que I'utilisation des résultats de recherche
sur la ferme représentera la clef du succeés dans la conservation
du sol. Le processus sera facilité si de telles recherches peuvent
étre effectuées en association avec des agriculteurs, le labora-
toire étant le lieu de cette activité. Il sera préférable de faire
appel aux groupes de producteurs ou aux districts de conserva-
tion. Cette approche a déja donné des fruits dans les Prairies.
La participation d’Agriculture Canada a ce type d’activité
demande une étroite collaboration avec les provinces, car les
organismes provinciaux auxiliaires doivent rester le principal
intermédiaire du transfert des recherches fédérales. Vous
devez vous demander ce que cela signifie. C’est une ressource
provinciale et nous parlons ici d’éducation. L’organisme pro-
vincial auxiliaire fournit cette éducation. La principale excep-
tion est TARAP de la région des Prairies, qui joue un rdle
spécial dans l'application des résultats de recherche sur la
conservation.
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PFRA is expected to play a major role in soil conservation
in western Canada. It is well placed to supply technical
assistance to farmers in the diagnosis of their problems, and to
develop, demonstrate and implement practical solutions. The
response PFRA has received from co-operative farm groups to
date has shown a very definite desire for greater involvement
by the federal government, along with other expert agencies.
Agriculture Canada will therefore be strongly supporting the
new National Action Committee on Soil Conservation being
set up by the Canadian Federation of Agriculture. I have
pledged up to $100,000 annually to get it under way.

Soil conservation must become a national imperative, like
forest renewal, since it attempts to prevent incurable injury to
the face of Canada. Such injury could sap the productive
capacity of agriculture despite the best efforts of farmers. As a
nationally recognized imperative, but only as a national imper-
ative, it will be possible to restore equilibrium, and to maintain
stability of the productive capability of the soil, even as
agricultural systems become more specialized and intensive.

I would like to end my presentation to you, Mr. Chairman,
by quoting that old Greek philosopher, Socrates. This is a
famous quotation of his that I have always liked because I
think it has such great meaning. He said:

When the land lies idle and barren, all other ways of life

shall suffer.
That is true, because food is the most important thing. The
biggest and most important challenge of all is that of produc-
ing food for our ever-increasing population. Since the begin-
ning of time until 1980, man has put 4.2 billion people on the
face of the earth. By the year 2000, which is only 20 years
from now, there will be nearly 6 billion people to feed.

The things that I am talking about are very important, but
at times it is hard to make the people of Canada realize, since
we are a surplus agriculture producing country, that there is
real concern—that this soil that we are losing through water
erosion, wind erosion and improper farming is irreplaceable.

I can use the Lacombe, Alberta station as an example. I
remember very well the first time I went there. I said to the
director of the station, Jack Stoddard, “Jack, you've sure got
big trees here. It must have been a lot of work clearing the
land.” He said, “No, Mr. Minister, the first director of this
station, who came here in 1908, went about the whole station
and planted all kinds of different trees because he liked trees.
There never was a tree in this area. There were 90 feet of
different kinds of soil produced over thousands of years just by
grass.” That is at Lacombe, Alberta.

Honourable senators can see how soil is a very fragile
resource. It can be seen how futuristic their thinking was at
Lacombe by the very fact that they knew there should be trees,
if the soil were to be cultivated.

[Traduction]

On attend de ’ARAP qu’elle joue un rdle important dans la
conservation des sols de I’Ouest canadien. Elle est idéalement
placée pour fournir une aide technique aux agriculteurs, en les
aidant a cerner leurs difficultés, et mettre au point des solu-
tions pratiques et leur montrer comment les appliquer. Jus-
qu’ici, la réaction que L’ARAP a suscité auprés des coopérati-
ves agricoles indique nettement leur désir absolu de voir le
gouvernement fédéral, ainsi que d’autres agences spécialisées,
s’impliquer de plus en plus dans ce domaine. Agriculture
Canada appuiera donc énergiquement le nouveau Comité d’ac-
tion national sur la conservation des sols que la Fédération
canadienne de I’Agriculture est en train de créer. Je me suis
engagé a verser annuellement la somme de 100,000 dollars
pour I'aider 4 démarrer.

La conservation des sols doit devenir un impératif national,
comme le reboisement, puisqu’on essaie de prévenir les dom-
mages irréparables qui seraient infligés aux terres du Canada.
Ces dommages pourraient saper la capacité productive de
I’agriculture en dépit des efforts énergiques déployés par les
agriculteurs. A titre d’impératif national reconnu, mais seule-
ment 4 ce titre, il sera possible de rétablir I’équilibre et
d’assurer une certaine stabilité a la capacité productive du sol,
méme si les techniques agricoles deviennent plus spécialisées et

plus intensifiées.

J’aimerais terminer, Monsieur le président, par ce mot du
célebre philosophe grec, Socrate, que j’ai toujours aimé person-
nellement & cause de sa profonde signification:

Lorsque la terre git inerte et nue, le reste de la nature en

souffre.
C’est d’autant plus vrai que la nourriture est I’élément le plus
précieux. Nul défi n’est plus important & relever que celui de la
production d’aliments, pour une population qui ne cesse de se
multiplier. Depuis le début des temps jusqu’a nos jours, en
1980 plus précisément, nous avons mis sur terre une popula-
tion de 4.2 milliards. D’ici I’an 2000, c’est-a-dire dans vingt
ans seulement, nous aurons 6 milliards de bouches a nourrir.

Mon sujet a tellement d’importance; et pourtant, parce que
le Canada a un surplus agricole, il nous est parfois difficile de
comprendre que ce sol que nous perdons sous ’action I’érosive
de I’eau et du vent ou encore, a cause de méthodes de culture
qui laissent a désirer, ce sol, dis-je, est irremplagable.

Je puis vous citer en exemple la station Lacombe d’Alberta.
Je me souviens encore de la premiére fois ou je m’y suis rendu.
Jai dit 4 son directeur, Jack Stoddard, «Jack, vous avez la de
biens gros arbres. Vous avez di travailler ferme pour défricher
cette terre». «Du tout, monsieur le ministre», m’a-t-il répondu,
«le premier directeur, qui est arrivé a cette station en 1908, y a
planté partout différentes essences, parce qu’il aimait les
arbres. Auparavant, il n’y avait pas un seul arbre. Seulement
90 pieds de sols de différentes catégories provenant de la lente
décomposition du chaume au cours de milliers d’années.» Telle
est le passé géologique de Lacombe, Alberta.

Honorables sénateurs, vous étes donc en mesure de constater
combien ce sol est chose fragile. On peut voir aussi jusqu’a
quel point Lacombe songeait a I’avenir, puisqu’on a compris
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I can give as another example the area around Indian Head,
where tall trees were planted. To control weeds, they simply
planted grain. In some cases they harvested that grain but,
rather than using pesticides, they planted it and in most cases
ploughed it down as a grain manure crop. The grain conserves
the moisture in the soil. I was told that the wheat there, at
Indian Head, Saskatchewan, would yield 80 bushels to the
acre in between the rows of trees without any fertilizer. Half a
farm could be planted in trees and, using no fertilizer, could
produce more grain with less work. Besides that there would
be shade, there would be birds and bears and animals and all
of those kinds of thing.

The only reason there were no trees on the prairies for
years—even little willows—was that the buffalo ate them all
the time. Once the buffalo were slaughtered, the first trees
started to grow around the waterholes or the sloughs or
whatever you want to call them. Before, however, the buffalo
liked eating the little tender trees, just like—what kind of
cattle is it? Yes, the Simmenthal. The deputy minister raises
Simmenthal cattle and wishes he could feed them trees
because feeding them other things is very costly. The Deputy
Minister of Agriculture is a very charitable man. He grows
cattle for nothing.

We are ready for any questions, Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: Thank you very much, Mr. Minister, I do
appreciate the detail into which you went in your opening
remarks.

Hon. Mr. Whelan: Before we begin the questions, Mr.
Chairman, perhaps I could have delivered to the members of
this committee copies of this tremendous book which has been
prepared for me. It has an index of 28 different subjects.

The Chairman: Thank you very much, I would appreciate
that. In your opening remarks, Mr. Minister, you made refer-
ence to your department officials assisting us in the early
stages in the proposed hearings. I would like to tell you, Mr.
Minister, that we did receive very good co-operation from your
officials. They have been extremely helpful and we have
absolutely no complaints in that regard. I know from your
remarks today that we can expect that co-operation in the
future. I, on behalf of the committee, thank you and extend to
them as well our thanks for the co-operation we have had. I
hope that we will continue this association in the future.

Senator Marshall: Mr. Chairman, first I would like to say
that I was reading some of the letters you received from the
various provinces. It appears that everybody approves of our
beginning this study.

Mr. Minister, as you know, I am not too much of a farmer,
but I have always been concerned about the self-sufficiency of
those people isolated in provinces like P.E.I., Newfoundland
and Nova Scotia, where much of their food-stuffs are trans-
ported in. What is of interest to me, from a national point of

[Traduction)

qu’il devait y avoir des arbres, pour qu’on puisse cultiver la
terre.

Autre exemple: la région d’Indian Head, ou on a aussi
planté des arbres. Pour tenir les mauvaises herbes en échec, on
a tout simplement, semé du grain. Parfois, on a récolté ce
grain; mais souvent, plutdt que de recourir aux herbicides, on a
enfoui la récolte, qui a servi d’engrais verts. La culture des
graminés conserve au sol son humidité. On m’a dit que le blé
cultivé a Indian Head, Saskatchewan, entre les rangées d’ar-
bres et sans aucun fertilisant, rend 80 boisseaux a I’acre. Dans
ces conditions on pourrait planter des arbres sur une moiti¢ de
la ferme et, sans I’aide d’engrais obtenir & moins de peine des
récoltes plus abondantes. Et en plus, il y aurait de 'ombre, des
oiseaux, des ours, et toutes sortes d’autres animaux.

Si, pendant des années, il n’y a eu aucun arbre dans les
Prairies, pas méme un petit saule, c’est que le bison en broutait
les pousses dés qu’elles pointaient. Ces bisons, abattus, les
premiers arbres ont commencé a pousser autour des mares, des
marécages et autres lieux humides. Mais autrefois, le bison
broutait volontiers les tendres pousses, tout comme le. ..
comment s’appelle cette béte? Oui, le Simmenthal. Le sous-
ministre éléve ce genre de bétail et aimerait les nourrir de
pousses d’arbres, parce que le fourrage coite cher. Le sous-
ministre de I’Agriculture est trés charitable. Il ne lui en coiite
rien pour élever du bétail.

Nous sommes préts a répondre a vos questions, monsieur le
président.

Le président: Merci beaucoup, monsieur le ministre; j’ap-
précie les renseignements que vous avez fournis dans votre
déclaration préliminaire.

L’honorable M. Whelan: Un moment, s’il vous plait, mon-
sieur le président. J’aurais peut-étre di remettre aux membres
du présent comité un exemplaire de ce livre formidable, qui a

été préparé a mon intention et dont la table des matiéres
contient 28 sujets différents.

Le président: Merci beaucoup, je vous saurais gré de le
faire. Vous avez dit, dans vos remarques préliminaires, que
votre personnel nous aiderait au cours de nos premiéres
audiences. Je tiens a vous dire, monsieur le ministre, que nous
avons apprécié toute la collaboration que nous ont donnée vos
hauts fonctionnaires. Ils nous ont beaucoup aidés et nous
n’avons absolument rien a redire sur ce point. Les remarques
que vous avez faites aujourd’hui me permettent d’espérer en
votre collaboration a venir. Au nom de mon comité, je vous en
remercie et vous prie de transmettre nos remerciements a vos
hauts fonctionnaires pour I'aide qu’ils nous ont prodigués.
J’espére que ces bons rapports se poursuivront.

Le sénateur Marshall: Monsieur le président, je dois dire
tout d’abord que j’ai lu quelques-unes des lettres que vous avez
regues des diverses provinces. Il semble que toutes soient
d’accord pour que nous commencions notre étude.

Monsieur le ministre, je ne suis pas tellement versé en
agriculture, mais je me suis toujours préoccupé au sujet de
I'auto-approvisionnement de ces gens isolés dans des provinces
comme I'fle-du-Prince-Edouard, Terre-Neuve et la Nouvelle-
Ecosse, ou le transport assure une bonne partie du ravitaille-
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view, is the matter of our selling wheat to various customers
like Russia, China and so on. Is there some concern about the
amount of land we have? Is it a priority or an urgent matter
that we should deal with soil conservation because of the
future amount of food-stuffs we are going to need?

Hon. Mr. Whelan: We can only help take care of the world
needs because we can never fully take care of them. I am very
much involved in the food aid programs. I made an announce-
ment yesterday for the world food program. We are going to
need our food for our own children in Canada. As to the food
sent to other parts of the world under these aid programs,
primarily it is made up of cereal grains. Almost everyone needs
cereal grains in their diet. It is not a difficult food-stuff to ship
and it is not difficult to store.

In the House of Commons today a member of the New
Democratic Party got up and made fun of what I said yester-
day about the payment-in-kind program in the United States.
In these aid programs, we are talking about a completely
different type of food from chickens, turkeys, milk or butter.
Those kinds of foods cannot be used easily in an aid system,
because in the receiving countries there is nowhere to put
them. Those countries have no refrigeration or means of
storage for those kinds of products. Therefore, our biggest aid
program involves cereal grains.

With these thoughts in mind, we look at world climatic
conditions and the degradation of soil world-wide. Take what
has happened in the Mediterranean countries for example,
because the same thing can happen anywhere. P.E.I., 117
years ago, was covered with lush hillsides just as the Mediter-
ranean areas were at one time. Then they became grazed by
goats and sheep and, when the rains came, the hillsides were
eroded and the biggest portion of them ended in the sea. The
same holds true for many other countries. China has terrible
erosion problems. The plains have been over-grazed and over-
farmed when they never should have been touched.

Yes, we are concerned about soil degradation. We have lost
over 2 million hectares of land through salinization of the soil.
If we were to use the old figures, we would say that we have
lost over 5 million acres of land in that manner—that is more
land than we lose every year to all of the urban, industrial and
commercial encroachments onto land in Canada. We think
that a lot of those problems can be controlled through proper
farming methods and that sort of thing. Some land has
reached the stage now, however, where it cannot be reclaimed
because it is too salty. We went into southern Alberta last year
to spend some time there with Dr. Hill and some of the local
citizens, who have taken it upon themselves to try to learn as
much as they can about the soils. We sent PFRA people in
there to work with the local people seven days a week, because
they are losing their land and they can see what is happening.

[Traduction)

ment. Ce qui m’intéresse, d’'un point de vue national, est la
vente de blé A divers clients comme la Russie, la Chine et ainsi
de suite. Nous préoccupons-nous des étendues de terres que
nous possédons? Devons-nous considérer la conservation du sol
comme une question prioritaire ou urgente, a cause de la
quantité de denrées alimentaires dont nous aurons besoin a
'avenir?

L’honorable M. Whelan: Nous ne pouvons qu’aider & satis-
faire aux besoins du monde car nous ne saurions jamais y
satisfaire entierement. Je m’occupe tout particuliérement des
programmes d’aide alimentaire. J’ai fait hier une annonce pour
le programme d’aide alimentaire mondial. Au Canada, nous
aurons besoin de nos produits alimentaires pour nos propres
enfants. Quant aux aliments que nous envoyons dans d’autres
parties du monde, sous I’égide de ces programmes d’aide, ils
sont constitués principalement de céréales dont nous avons
pratiquement tous besoin dans notre alimentation. C’est une
denrée qui est relativement facile a expédier et a entreposer.

A la Chambre des communes, un député néo-démocrate a
ridiculisé ce que j’ai dit hier au sujet du programme de
paiement en nature des Etats-Unis; ou il s’agit de produits
alimentaires totalement différents des poulets, des dindes, du
lait, ou du beurre. Ces produits alimentaires ne peuvent étre
facilement utilisés dans un programme d’aide, car les pays
auxquels ils sont destinés ne sont pas en mesure de les entrepo-
ser ou de les réfrigérer. C’est pourquoi notre programme d’aide
le plus important est constitué de céréales.

C’est en songeant a tout cela que nous envisageons les
conditions climatiques et la dégradation des sols dans le monde
entier. Prenons, par exemple, ce qui s’est produit dans les pays
méditéranéens, et qui peut se produire ailleurs. Tout comme
’ont été un jour les régions méditéranéennes, I’Ile-du-Prince-
Edouard était, il y a 117 ans, couverte de luxuriants vallons.
On y a alors mis chévres et moutons en pacage; les pluies ont
ensuite causé I’érosion de ces collines dont la plus grande
partie se trouve maintenant dans la mer. Il en va de méme de
nombreux autres pays. La Chine éprouve de trés graves pro-
blémes d’érosion du sol. Ses plaines ont été utilisées a I'excés
pour le pacage et l’exploitation agricole alors qu’elles n’au-
raient jamais dii étre touchées.

Oui, la dégradation des sols nous inquiéte. Nous avons perdu
plus de 2 millions d’hectares de terre 4 cause de la salinisation
du sol. Pour reprendre les anciennes données, nous pouvons
dire que nous avons perdu plus de 5 millions d’acres de terre de
cette fagon, c’est-a-dire plus que nous n’en perdons chaque
année par suite de toutes les constructions urbaines, industriel-
les et commerciales qui se font sur les terres canadiennes.
Nous croyons que beaucoup de ces problémes peuvent étre
résolus par le biais de méthodes d’exploitation agricole adé-
quates et ce genre de choses. Toutefois, certaines terres ont
aujourd’hui atteint un point tel qu’elles ne peuvent étre assai-
nies parce que la salinisation y a fait trop de ravages. L’an
dernier, nous sommes allés dans le sud de I’Alberta ol nous
avons passé quelque temps avec M. Hill et certains citoyens de
'endroit qui ont décidé d’eux mémes de s’informer le plus
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We do not have to do that if we do not want to, because the
soil is a provincial resource.

I can readily remember when the Premier of Alberta was
going to China. A reporter said, “What are you going to China
for?” And he replied, “To trade”. The reporter said, “What
are you going to trade?” And he replied, “Agriculture prod-
ucts, and the energy technology that we have in our province”.
The reporter said, “But trade is mostly a federal responsibili-
ty”. He said, “Yes, but the land on which they grow those
things is ours.”

So we have difficulty in getting across the knowledge we do
have and how to control that. That is why I mentioned
extension. It is education, which is a provincial responsibility.
We do work very closely together. We have a little station in
Newfoundland. It is not that small, but there is potential for
developing agriculture there. The provincial and federal people
are in the same building. At every station we have extension
people.

Senator Marshall: You mentioned priority areas. I am
looking through some of the notes concerning Newfoundland.
They say that we have a lack of research information on the
extent of soil erosion and degradation which restricts formula-
tion of realistic programs. There must be weakness or ineffic-
iency on the part of someone.

Hon. Mr. Whelan: You mean for having that condition
exist?

Senator Marshall: Yes.

Hon. Mr. Whelan: Oh yes, it is. In my own Province of
Ontario we are growing corn and soya bean up and downhill
year in and year out. You should never do that. If you grew it
on flat ground you could probably get away with it. How am I,
as a federal minister, going to go to the province and tell them
to stop that nonsense?

Senator Marshall: Why doesn’t Newfoundland have
research information? Are they lax in coming to your depart-
ment and saying, “Help us™?

Hon. Mr. Whelan: Newfoundland’s soil is very limited. Soil
in the whole of Canada is very limited. Only approximately 4
per cent or 5 per cent of our total land area is suitable for field
crops and perhaps another 8 per cent or 9 per cent for grazing.
It is a very fragile, tender thing in Newfoundland, more so
than in many other parts of Canada. I do not pretend to be an
expert on that, but I do not find that the province puts a high
priority on agriculture. We have a small agreement with them

[Traduction)

possible sur la nature de leurs terres. Nous avons envoyé
certains représentants de I’A.R.A.P. la-bas pour y travailler
avec les citoyens sept jours sur sept parce que ces derniers
perdent leurs terres et se rendent compte de ce qui se produit.
Nous ne sommes pas obligés de le faire, mais nous le faisons
parce que le sol est une ressource provinciale.

Je me rappelle trés bien lorsque le premier ministre de
’Alberta s’est rendu en Chine. Un journaliste lui a demandé ce
qu’il allait y faire et le premier ministre de répondre, du
commerce. Le journaliste a alors demandé qu’est-ce que vous
allez commercer, et le premier ministre a répondu qu’il s’agis-
sait de produits agricoles de méme que de la technologie
énergétique dont sa province disposait. Le reporter a rétorqué
que le commerce était principalement de compétence fédérale,
mais le premier ministre a dit: «Oui, mais les terres sur
lesquelles ces produits agricoles sont récoltés nous appartien-
nent.»

C’est donc dire que nous avons de la difficulté & communi-
quer les données dont nous disposons et nous ne savons pas
trop comment surmonter cet obstacle. C’est pourquoi j’ai parlé
de vulgarisation. C’est 14 une question d’éducation qui est de
compétence provinciale. Nous travaillons effectivement en trés
étroite collaboration. Nous disposons d’un petit poste a Terre-
Neuve, qui n’est pas si petit, en fait mais les possibilités de
développement de I'agriculture dans cette province sont
bonnes. Les fonctionnaires provinciaux et fédéraux travaillent
dans le méme immeuble et a chaque poste, certains sont
chargés de la vulgarisation.

Le sénateur Marshall: Vous avez parlé de domaines priori-
taires. Je regarde ici certaines des notes concernant Terre-
Neuve dans lesquelles on dit que cette province manque d’in-
formation sur les travaux de recherche concernant I'impor-
tance de I’érosion et de la dégradation des sols, ce qui en fait
empéche 1’élaboration de programmes réalistes. Il doit y avoir
certainement quelqu’un qui ne fait pas bien son travail.

L’honorable M. Whelan: Vous voulez dire pour qu’il en soit
ainsi?

Le sénateur Marshall: Oui.

L’honorable M. Whelan: Oh oui, certainement. Dans ma
propre province de I’Ontario, on cultive du mais et des graines
de soya sur la flanc des collines, mais on ne devrait jamais
faire ¢a. Si ces cultures se faisaient sur des terres plates, cela
pourrait probablement aller. En ma qualité de ministre fédé-
ral, quand je me rends dans ma province, tout ce que je peux
dire c’est de mettre un terme a ces pratiques insensées.

Le sénateur Marshall: Pourquoi Terre-Neuve ne fournit-elle
pas de I'information passée sur la recherche? Néglige-t-elle de
s’adresser a votre ministére pour demander de I'aide?

L’honorable M. Whelan: Terre-Neuve dispose de trés peu de
terres. Et méme au Canada, cette ressource est trés restreinte.
Seulement environ 4 ou 5 p. 100 de la totalité de nos terres
sont aptes aux grandes cultures et peut-étre 8 ou 9 p. 100 au
pacage. C’est 1a une ressource trés fragile a Terre-Neuve, et
méme davantage dans de nombreuses autres régions du
Canada. Je ne prétends pas étre un spécialiste en la matiére,
mais je ne crois pas que cette province accorde une trés grande
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that is coming up for renewal. They want to build roads, and
so on, in Newfoundland. Federally we are not that innocent
either. Some of my federal colleagues have ideas that differ
from mine about what we should be doing about food produc-
tion in Newfoundland.

Senator Marshall: With the cost of transportation, and the
isolation, it would certainly be to their advantage.

On the other hand, apparently Nova Scotia has approxi-
mately one million acres of underutilized agricultural soils.
That seems to be a very large figure. Is that due to lack of
attention?

Hon. Mr. Whelan: My deputy minister comes from Nova
Scotia and from time to time he returns on visits; so he
perhaps has a wee bit of partiality to that area of Canada
where his roots are. We have a program that we have devel-
oped with Nova Scotia. We share developing land. They pay
farmers to clear and drain it and we have all kinds of programs
and other forms of technology which we directly deliver. Last
year in Nova Scotia they cleared approximately 9,000 acres of
land. We get a report, because our people have to work very
closely with the provincial people on those programs. It is one
thing to put land into productivity, but, when we do so, if it is
near a stream, we have to make sure that we do not clear all of
the trees up to the stream bed. We should leave a protective
strip of land in the area to make sure that we control the
erosion. It is pretty much the same all across Canada. Our soil
is tender and fragile.

Senator Marshall: The objective is to save the land.

Hon. Mr. Whelan: To save it and keep it. It is already down
to about half of its nutrient capacity, and we have not farmed
it that long. When you compare it with some of the other land
in the world that has been farmed for a couple of thousands of
years, our land is much more fragile. We are a very diverse
country. Agriculture in Canada is a divided responsibility
under our constitution. The provinces own the land; we don't.
And yet we are aware of people all over the world doing the
things that I have spoken about here, and they are doing them
very successfully.

Dr. Hill can tell you about that. For instance, with regard to
salinity of soil, I could be doing a tremendous job, with no
summer fallow or anything else, but just leaving the stubble in
the soil and perhaps using zero tillage. But, while I was doing
that, the water could move down and bring the salt out onto
my land. I could be doing everything right and my neighbour
could destroy me, although not intentionally, of course: The
point is that in our society everyone does not farm the same.
Even if they belong to a marketing board, they do not farm the
same.

[Traduction)]

priorité a I'agriculture. Le gouvernement fédéral a conclu une
petite entente avec cette province qui doit étre renouvelée. Les
Terre-Neuviens veulent construire des routes et ainsi de suite.
Et le gouvernement fédéral n’est pas aussi naif non plus.
Certains de mes collégues ont des idées différentes des miennes
en ce qui a trait aux mesures a adopter concernant la produc-
tion de denrées alimentaires & Terre-Neuve.

Le sénateur Marshall: Si 'on tient compte des coits de
transport et aussi de l'isolement, Terre-Neuve pourrait certai-
nement tirer profit de la situation.

Quant a la Nouvelle-Ecosse, vous dites, dans une lettre au
président, que cette province compte environ 1 million d’acres
de terres agricoles sous utilisées. Cela me semble excessif.
Est-ce par manque d’intérét!:

L’honorable M. Whelan: Mon sous-ministre est originaire
de la Nouvelle-Ecosse. De temps en temps il retourne chez lui
en visite; il est donc peut-étre un peu partial envers cette
région du Canada, la ou plongent ses racines. Nous avons
élaboré un programme de concert avec la Nouvelle-Ecosse
pour mettre en valeur des terres. La province paie les agricul-
teurs qui défrichent et drainent les terres et nous offrons toutes
sortes de programmes et d’autres formes de technologie qui
nous permettent d’orienter tout cela. L’an dernier, en Nou-
velle-Ecosse on a défriché environ 9 000 acres de terre. On
nous fournit un rapport parce que nos fonctionnaires doivent
travailler en étroite collaboration avec leurs homologues pro-
vinciaux a l'application de ces programmes. C’est tout un
travail que d’assurer la productivité des terres, car si elles se
trouvent prés d’un cours d’eau, nous devons nous assurer que
I’on n’abatte pas tous les arbres jusqu’au lit de de la riviére,
qu’on ait une bande de terre qui serve de polution dans cette
région afin que nous puissions planifier et contrdler I’érosion.
C’est pratiquement ce qui se passe dans tout le Canada. Notre
sol est une ressource fragile.

Le sénateur Marshall: Et I’objectif est de sauver nos terres.

L’honorable M. Whelan: Les sauver et les conserver. La
capacité nutritive de nos terres est environ réduite de moitié
bien que nous ne les exploitions pas depuis si longtemps.
Lorsque vous comparez nos terres avec celles d’autres pays qui
font de I’agriculture depuis deux mille ans ou plus, notre terre
est beaucoup plus fragile. Notre pays est trés diversifié. L’agri-
culture, au Canada, est de compétence partagée, d’aprés la
Constitution. Les provinces possédent les terres, mais pas nous.
Nous disposons d’exemples d’agriculteurs qui ont mis en prati-
que ici et avec beaucoup de succes, les techniques dont j'ai
parlé tout & I’heure.

M. Hill peut vous le dire. Par exemple, en ce qui concerne la
salinisation des sols, on pourrait faire du trés bon travail, sans
jachére ou quoi que ce soit d’autre. On pourrait laisser le
chaume dans le sol et peut-étre ne pas faire de labour. Mais il
se peut trés bien qu’un agriculteur fasse de la jachére ou que
sais-je et que I'eau s’écoule de ces terres charriant des sels
qu'elle déposera sur les jachéres. Il se peut que je fasse tout
selon les normes et que mon voisin vienne me ruiner, non pas
intentionnellement, bien sir, mais dans notre société, tous les
agriculteurs n’exploitent pas leur ferme de la méme fagon.
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Senator Marshall: What would you consider to be the
priority areas that we should be looking at?

Hon. Mr. Whelan: I thought I mentioned them. Soil conser-
vation would be one of the top areas. In western Canada it
would be to get them to use farming techniques that we know
would stop salinization and the loss of nitrogen; also lessening
and getting away from summer fallow, and using all of the
conservation methods that we have available. In Ontario—I
talked about soya beans and corn—it is a rolling type of
country, but still very productive agricultural country. How-
ever, they have to change their methods of farming, because
too many tonnes of land are going into the Great Lakes
system. That is a terrible thing, but I cannot force the prov-
inces to do anything, except in the case of national emergency,
in the case of a disaster, or if they were neglecting the health
of the nation. When we look at how far the land has gone
down in its potential for productivity, it is something about
which we should all be concerned.

I do not have that kind of authority, although everyone
points to the federal minister. Because he is the Minister of
Agriculture, they think that he has full authority. I can give
you an example of the situation worldwide.

We have a program in Lesotho, Africa, where we teach
them how to dairy farm. We arranged a program with CIDA
whereby New Brunswick would be responsible for that pro-
gram. The Deputy Minister of Agriculture for New Brunswick
went to Lesotho. They were wearing those little round straw
hats with the funny little thing on the top. They said “We have
a hat for you and one for your minister”. He added “This will
match your minister’s green hat”. He did not know that there
was any other minister in Canada apart from the one who
always wears a green hat. I have hats from all over the world
and they know my green hat. I should mention that if you
protect your head from the sun’s rays, you protect your brain.
Therefore, some of those who criticize my green hat should be
wearing a hat.

Senator McGrand: I listened to your comments with great
interest and 1 agree with everything you have said. What
programs are in place now in Canada to combat soil erosion?

Hon. Mr. Whelan: There are programs operated from sever-
al stations in Western Canada. These stations do all kinds of
work to control erosion by wind and water and are available to
the provinces through their extension services to tell farmers
how the programs work. A lot of farmers take advantage of
the program, but not enough. We cannot impose the programs
on them; we can only entice them. I mentioned earlier the
Agriculture development programs we signed with provinces.
We will sign one with the Province of New Brunswick some-
time early in April. It is a new program which we have been
developing together for several months now. We will have

[Traduction)

Méme s’ils sont membres d’un office de commercialisation, ils
n’ont pas tous les mémes méthodes.

Le sénateur Marshall: Selon vous, quelles devraient-étre les
priorités?

L’honorable M. Whelan: Je pense les avoir mentionnées. La
conservation des sols serait parmi les premiéres. Dans ’Ouest
du Canada, nous devons amener les agriculteurs a utiliser des
techniques agricoles qui, nous le savons, pourraient enrayer la
salinisation et la perte d’azote; nous devrions aussi diminuer et
éliminer la jachére et utiliser toutes les méthodes de conserva-
tion dont nous disposons. En Ontario, j’ai parlé des graines de
soya et du mais, le terrain, quoique valloné, est quand méme
trés productif. Cependant, les agriculteurs de cette province
devront changer leurs méthodes d’exploitation parce que
d’énormes quantités de sol se perdent dans les Grands lacs.
C’est terrible, mais je ne peux pas forcer la province a éviter
cela, sauf en cas d’urgence nationale, de désastre ou encore si
cela porte préjudice a la santé de la population canadienne en
général. En voyant la dégradation des sols et, considérant leur
potentiel, on ne peut que s’inquiéter.

Je n’ai pas le pouvoir d’agir, bien que tout le monde se refére
a moi. Parce que je suis ministre de ’Agriculture, on pense que
j’ai tous les pouvoirs. Je peux vous donner un exemple de la
situation dans le monde.

Nous avons un programme qui est appliqué au Lesotho, en
Afrique, ou I'on enseigne aux Africains comment exploiter une
ferme laitiére. En collaboration avec I’ACDI, nous avons
élaboré un programme que le Nouveau-Brunswick est chargé
d’appliquer. Le sous-ministre de I’Agriculture du Nouveau-
Brunswick s’est rendu au Lesotho. Les Africains portaient ce
genre de petits chapeaux de paille rond avec un curieux
pompon au dessus. Ils ont dit: «Nous avons un chapeau pour
vous et pour votre ministre, et celui-ci se marie bien avec son
chapeau vert». Ils ne savaient pas qu’aucun ministre au
Canada ne porte un chapeau vert a4 part le ministre de
I’Agriculture. J’ai des chapeaux du monde entier et ils savent
la-bas que je porte un chapeau vert. Je dois dire que si vous
vous protégez la téte des rayons du soleil, vous protégez en
méme temps votre cerveau. Donc, certains de ceux qui criti-
quent mon chapeau vert devraient eux-mémes porter un
chapeau.

Le sénateur McGrand: J’ai écouté vos commentaires avec
beaucoup d’intérét et je suis d’accord avec vous sur tous les
points. Quels programmes existent maintenant au Canada
pour combattre 1’érosion des sols?

L’honorable M. Whelan: Il existe des programmes qui sont
administrés par plusieurs centres dans I’Ouest du Canada. Ces
centres effectuent toutes sortes de travaux pour contrler
’érosion éolienne et hydrique; leurs services de vulgarisation
renseignent les agriculteurs sur le fonctionnement des pro-
grammes. Beaucoup d’entre eux en profitent mais leur nombre
est encore insuffisant. Nous ne pouvons leur imposer les
programmes, mais simplement les leur proposer. J’ai men-
tionné plus tot les accords de développement agricole que nous
avons signés avec les provinces. Nous en signerons un avec le
Nouveau-Brunswick au début d’avril. Il s’agit d’'un nouveau
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certain responsibilities and New Brunswick will have certain
responsibilities. New Brunswick faces terrible erosion prob-
lems in certain areas, particularly where potatoes are being
grown up and down hills, and that type of thing, without
planting clover every third year. In some cases they should
stop growing potatoes and use the land for something else,
because it is being depleted of its power to produce. The soil is
losing its nutrients and the composition is being broken down.

I am only one Minister of Agriculture dealing with ten
provincial ministers of agriculture and, as I say, I cannot
impose these programs on them. Our stations are open to the
public at all times and they have ongoing programs. PFRA has
special programs in which it gets involved. Perhaps Dr. Hill
could add to the programs I have mentioned.

The Chairman: We are talking about programs originated
by the federal government or its agencies which are actually
delivered to users, are we not?

Dr. Hill: Yes. The program se spend the most money on is
the Community Pasture Program. This pasture land totals
about 1 million hectares. It was taken out of dry land farming
because it was susceptible to erosion. The commitment was
made in the 1930s to keep the land from being dry land
farmed so we operate it as pastures. The federal government
contributes to the cost of maintaining pastures and some of the
costs are offset by the farmers who use the pastures. We spend
about $12 million on the program and the federal government
contributes about $4 million of that.

The tree nursery program was mentioned by the minister.
These trees are available to farmers to plant shelterbelts, to
prevent wind erosion, and this sort of thing. This has to be
done carefully because shelterbelts can also accumulate snow
and cause salinity; so it is a double-edged sword. We have been
offering farmers diagnostic services and helping them to deter-
mine what salinity is and how to combat it. This program is
about two years old and we are learning along with the
farmers.

Senator McGrand: How many community pastures have we
in New Brunswick?

Dr. Hill: The Prairie Farm Rehabilitation Act limits my
activities to the prairie provinces. The pastures that I cited are
all in the prairie provinces.

Senator McGrand: But there are community pastures in the
maritimes?

Dr. Hill: Yes.
Senator McGrand: Whom do they come under?

Dr. Hill: I suspect they come under the provincial govern-
ment or co-operatives. Perhaps Mr. Nowland could answer
your question.

[Traduction]

programme que nous élaborons ensemble depuis déja plusieurs
mois. Nous aurons certaines responsabilités et le Nouveau-
Brunswick en aura d’autres. Cette province fait face a de
terribles problémes d’érosion dans certaines régions, plus parti-
culiérement dans celles ou ’on cultive la pomme de terre et sur
les pentes inclinées et ce genre de terrain ou I’on ne plante pas
de tréfle tous les trois ans. Dans certains cas, il faudrait ne
plus cultiver la pomme de terre et planter autre chose parce
que le sol s’appauvrit. Il perd des éléments nutritifs et se
décompose.

Je ne suis qu’un simple ministre de I’Agriculture qui doit
traiter avec dix homologues provinciaux et, je le répéte, je ne
puis leur imposer ces programmes. Nos centres sont ouverts au
public en tout temps et ils ont toujours des programmes a
offrir. L’ARAP s’intéresse a4 certains programmes spéciaux.
Peut-étre M. Hill pourrait-il compléter la liste que je viens de
donner.

Le président: Nous parlons de programmes mis sur pied par
le gouvernement fédéral ou ses organismes et qui sont offerts
aux usagers n’est-ce pas?

M. Hill: Oui. Le programme auquel nous consacrons le plus
d’argent est celui des paturages communautaires. Les terres
réservées a ces pdturages représentent au total 1 million
d’hectares. On a cessé d’y pratiquer les cultures séches parce
que le sol avait tendance a s’éroder. On s’est engagé dans les
années 1930 4 ne plus utiliser ces terres pour les cultures
séches de fagon a les consacrer aux paturages. Le gouverne-
ment fédéral contribue au coit de I’entretien des paturages et
certains des colits sont compensés par les agriculteurs qui les
utilisent. Nous consacrons environ 12 millions de dollars a ce
programme et, de ce total, la contribution du gouvernement
fédéral est de 4 millions de dollars.

Le programme de pépiniéres a été mentionné par le minis-
tre. On fournit ces arbres aux agriculteurs pour qu’ils plantent
des brise-vent afin, de prévenir I’érosion éolienne et autres. Il
faut y aller prudemment parce que les brise-vent peuvent aussi
accumuler de la neige et causer de la salinité, de telle sorte que
c’est un couteau a double tranchant. Nous offrons aux agricul-
teurs des services de diagnostic et les aidons a déterminer le
degré de salinité et comment combattre. Ce programme dure
depuis deux ans environ et nous apprenons en méme temps que
les agriculteurs.

Le sénateur McGrand: Combien de paturages communau-
taires avons-nous au Nouveau-Brunswick?

M. Hill: La Loi sur le rétablissement agricole des Prairies
limite mes activités 4 ces provinces. Les pdturages que j'ai
mentionnés se trouvent tous dans les provinces des Prairies.

Le sénateur McGrand: Mais il y a des paturages commu-
nautaires dans les Maritimes?

M. Hill: Oui.
Le sénateur McGrand: Qui s’en occupe.

M. Hill: J’imagine que ce sont les gouvernements provin-
ciaux ou les coopératives. M. Nowland pourrait peut-étre
répondre a votre question.



19-1-1984

Agriculture, péches et foréts %35

[Text]

Mr. John Nowland, Special Advisor, Resources, Research
Branch, Department of Agriculture: The Minudie Pasture in
New Brunswick and Nova Scotia is under the authority of the
provinces and it is the biggest community pasture. There are
other smaller ones around the head of the Bay of Fundy under
provincial jurisdiction.

Hon. Mr. Whelan: Did the province receive any aid from
the federal government to purchase that land?

Mr. Nowland: I think they pre-dated the agreements
because the federal government originally built the dikes to
keep out water from the Bay of Fundy. The provincial
administrations were supposed to put in the infra-drainage
once the dikes were built, but in some cases they did not and
the federal government has provided aid to put in this drainage
system as well.

Senator Marshall: I believe that some of the community
pastures were built under community development projects
and local initiative programs, were they not?

Hon. Mr. Whelan: I don’t know how many pastures we
control in Eastern Canada. I am aware of the one that Mr.
Nowland is talking about. But if there is anything wrong with
PFRA, it is that it should be called “CFRA”, with the “C”
standing for Canadian. The PFRA was started in 1935 and
was supposed to be in operation for two years. It does a
tremendous amount of work assisting small municipalities in
controlling their water in order to keep them alive. We assist
them with their water reservoirs, filtration systems, engineer-
ing, funding and so on. We have special agreements with
Saskatchewan and Manitoba. We do not have the same agree-
ment with Alberta. These agreements are to assist rural west-
ern Canada in the development of its water systems. However,
we can see a need for the same kind of program in other parts
of Canada. The PFRA people assist other countries because
they have developed a great expertise in this area due to their
long association with it.

The Chairman: Is there any other area of the country where
the federal government delivers programs directly?

Hon. Mr. Whelan: Our share of the program in Nova Scotia
is delivered directly, as is the program in Prince Edward
Island. The agreement with New Brunswick is a new one. As I
said in my presentation, we look after certain aspects of the
agreement and the provinces look after certain aspects. I saw
the list earlier today of all the projects for Nova Scotia for a
year. We assist them with silos, grain storage, manure pits and
all kinds of things, paying up to 50 per cent of the cost. The
farmers have to take the initiative. We work with the agricul-
ture extension people in Nova Scotia and Prince Edward
Island. The Government of Nova Scotia has taken the initia-
tive in the new agreement we signed, which, I believe, is going
into its third year. Their problems have not been solved yet.
We are now beginning to find ways to solve them. For
instance, the province with which we have the agreement is
putting $20 million into soil management over five years. Nova
Scotia agriculture is very important; when you compare it to

[Traduction]

M. John Nowland, conseiller spécial, Ressources, Direction
de la recherche, ministére de I’Agriculture: Le paturage de
Minudie au Nouveau-Brunswick et en Nouvelle-Ecosse reléve
des provinces et il s’agit du plus grand paturage communau-
taire. Il y en a d’autres plus petits prés de la pointe avancée de
la Baie de Fundy qui relévent du gouvernement provincial.

L’honorable M. Whelan: La province a-t-elle regu une aide
du gouvernement fédéral pour acheter ces terres?

M. Nowland: Je pense qu’ils ont antidaté les accords parce
que le gouvernement fédéral a d’abord construit des fossés
pour empécher 1’eau de la Baie de Fundy de se déverser sur les
terres. Les administrations provinciales étaient censées instal-
ler un systéme de sous-drainage lorsque les fossés seraient
construits. Dans certains cas, elles ne l'ont pas fait et le
gouvernement fédéral a aidé également a mettre ce systeme de

‘drainage en place.

Le sénateur Marshall: Je crois que certains des paturages
communautaires ont vu le jour dans le cadre des projets de
développement communautaire et des programmes d’initiative
locale, n’est-ce pas?

L’honorable M. Whelan: J’ignore le nombre de paturages
que nous contrdlons dans I’Est du Canada. Je connais celui
dont parle M. Nowland. Mais PARAP devrait en fait étre
appelée ARAC ou le C serait mis pour Canada. L’ARAP a
débuté en 1935 et ne devait alors durer que deux ans. Ce
programme contribue énormément a aider les petites munici-
palités a controler leur eau pour se maintenir en vie. Nous les
aidons & mettre sur pied des réservoirs d’eau, des systemes de
filtration, et également sur le plan technique et financier. Nous
avons des accords spéciaux avec le Saskatchewan et le Mani-
toba. Mais nous n’avons pas conclu le méme accord avec
I’Alberta. Ces accords visent 4 aider I’Ouest rural du Canada a
mettre au point des systémes d’irrigation. Toutefois, nous
pouvons voir que ce genre de programme serait nécessaire dans
d’autres régions du Canada. Le personnel de 'ARAP aide
d’autres pays parce qu’il a acquis une grande expérience dans
ce domaine.

Le président: Y a-t-il d’autres régions du pays ou le gouver-
nement fédéral administre les programmes directement?

L’honorable M. Whelan: Notre part du programme en
Nouvelle-Ecosse est administrée directement, comme C’est le
cas pour le programme prévu dans I'fle-du-Prince-Edouard.
L’accord conclu avec le Nouveau-Brunswick est nouveau.
Comme je I’ai dit dans mon exposé, nous nous occupons de
certains aspects de ’accord et les provinces, d’autres. J’ai vu
au début de la journée la liste de tous les projets prévus pour la
Nouvelle-Ecosse pour un an. Nous l'aidons a construire des
silos, des entrepdts pour le grain, et le fumier etc. jusqu’a
concurrence de 50 p. 100 du codt. Les agriculteurs doivent
prendre I'initiative. Nous travaillons de concert avec le person-
nel de vulgarisation agricole de la Nouvelle-Ecosse et de
I:Ile-du-Prince-Edouard. Le gouvernement de la Nouvelle-
Ecosse a pris I'initiative de conclure le nouvel accord que nous
avons signé et qui entre maintenant, dans sa troisiéme année.
Leurs problémes n’ont pas encore été résolus. Nous commen-
¢ons maintenant a trouver des fagons de les résoudre. Par
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other parts of Canada, there is a sizeable amount of money
being put into it over that length of time. However, politicians
do not get re-elected by what they do far farmers. Jack
Hawkins is a good example of this. When he was the Minister
of Agriculture in Gerry Regan’s government he upped the
figure five times higher than any other minister of agriculture
had done previously in any government. He was then voted out
of office. They just do not appreciate having you do too much
for them. I thought I would just put that on the record.

Senator Riley: I would like to deal with the seedlings that
are handed out in Saskatchewan. Is it Indian Head?

Hon. Mr. Whelan: Indian Head, Saskatchewan, yes.

Senator Riley: What is the mortality rate percentagewise of
those seedlings and how old are they when they are
transplanted?

Dr. Hill: The seedlings range in age from five years to
cuttings. We ship out popular cuttings which are planted
directly. The spruce are five years old when they are shipped
out and are no more than three inches high when transplanted.
Their mortality rate can be close to zero, or nearly 100 per
cent, depending on the weather and the farmers’ attention to
the trees. We completed the study to show that our costs were
small in producing shelterbelts compared with the farmers’
costs of cultivating and maintaining the trees. So it depends
nearly totally on the farmer looking after the trees.

Hon. Mr. Whelan: Especially if he has to water them. They
learn from watering them that once they grow a root system
they will survive.

Senator Riley: How tall are spruce trees at the age of five?
Hon. Mr. Whelan: Knee-high to a grasshopper.

Dr. Hill: They are three or four inches high.
Senator Riley: Is that a peculiar type of spruce?

Dr. Hill: They are the spruce trees which have been selected
for the purposes of shelterbelts, especially around buildings on
the prairies.

Senator Riley: How long before they reach maturity?

Dr. Hill: Many years. I do not know exactly, but 30 or 40
years after having been planted they are still growing. There
are two trees which I believe were planted on the tree nursery
in 1904 and they are still growing; they have not reached
maturity yet. This was another area such as the one about
which the minister spoke in Lacombe where there were no
trees; it was bald prairie.

[Traduction]

exemple, la province avec laquelle nous avons conclu I'accord
doit consacrer 20 millions de dollars a la gestion du sol en cing
ans. L’agriculture en Nouvelle-Ecosse est trés importante; par
rapport a4 d’autres régions du Canada, c’est une somme consi-
dérable d’argent qui sera investie au cours de cette période.
Toutefois, les hommes politiques ne se font pas réélire en
raison de ce qu’ils font pour les agriculteurs. Jack Hawkins en
est un bon exemple. Lorsqu’il était ministre de I’Agriculture
dans le gouvernement de Gerry Regan, il a consacré aux
agriculteurs cinq fois plus de deniers publics que tout autre
ministre de I’Agriculture des gouvernements précédents. Il a
ensuite été battu aux élections. Il semble que les électeurs
n’apprécient pas qu’on fasse trop pour eux. J'ai pensé qu’il
valait la peine de le mentionner.

Le sénateur Riley: J'aimerais traiter des plants qui sont
distribués en Saskatchewan, je crois, Indian Head.

L’honorable M. Whelan: Oui, Indian Head Saskatchewan.

Le sénateur Riley: Quel est le taux de mortalité de ces
plants et 4 quel 4ge sont-ils transplantés.

M. Hill: Les plants ont cinq ans et vont jusqu’au stade ou ils
ont des boutures. Nous expédions des boutures de peuplier qui
sont plantés directement. Les épinettes ont cinq ans lorsqu’el-
les sont expédiées et n’ont pas plus de trois pouces de haut a la
transplantation. Leur taux de mortalité peut se rapprocher de
zéro, ou de 100 p. 100, selon la température et les soins
prodiqués par I'agriculteur aux arbres. Nous avons effectué
cette étude pour démontrer que la production de brise-vent
nous coitait peu comparativement a ce qu’il en coilite aux
agriculteurs pour cultiver et soigner les arbres. Donc tout
dépend presque totalement de la fagon dont les agriculteurs
s’occupent des arbres.

L’honorable M. Whelan: Surtout s’ils doivent les arroser. Ils
apprennent en les arrosant que lorsque le réseau de racines
apparait, cela signifie que les arbres survivront.

Le sénateur Riley: Quelle est la hauteur des épinettes a I'age
de cinqg ans?

L’honorable M. Whelan: Ils arrivent au genou d’une
sauterelle.

M. Hill: Ils ont trois ou quatre pouces de haut.

Le sénateur Riley: S’agit-il d’une espéce particuliére
d’épinette?

M. Hill: 1l s’agit d’épinettes qui sont sélectionnées pour
constituer des brise-vent surtout autour des batiments dans les
Prairies.

Le sénateur Riley: Combien de temps leur faut-il pour
arriver a maturité.

M. Hill: De nombreuses années. Je ne sais pas exactement,
mais trente ou quarante ans aprés avoir été plantés, elles
poussent toujours. Il y a deux arbres qui ont été plantés dans la
pépiniére en 1904 et qui continuent de croitre; ils ne sont pas
encore arrivés a maturité. C’est une autre région comme celle
dont a parlé le ministre 4 Lacombe ou il n’y avait pas d’arbres;
c’était la Prairie dénudée.
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Senator Riley: Which type of spruce do you mainly distrib-
ute? The white; the red?

Dr. Hill: The white spruce. I am no expert on spruce, I
would have to have my superintendent here to answer that
question properly.

Senator Anderson: There would be an advantage before
that, though, for 30 or 40 years?

Dr. Hill: Yes.
Hon. Mr. Whelan: I did not hear the question, senator.

Senator Anderson: I just said that they would be of advan-
tage before 30 or 40 years. Senator Riley asked when they
would reach maturity.

Hon. Mr. Whelan: Perhaps Dr. Hill could tell you more
about the functions of the station since I did not see all of
them. I do know that they plant these from seeds in many
instances. They have quite an operation there. They put the
seedlings in cold storage for the winter. They have a special
machine which digs them out and they put them in special
bunches. They are kept in a state of dormancy for the winter
in order for them to be ready for spring planting. They carry
out this operation with respect to millions of trees. If a farmer
was trying to do this it would be almost impossible for him.

As Dr. Hill has said, the most important thing is that the
person who receives these trees must take good care of them.
This is obvious in areas where windbreaks have been planted
around farm buildings and there is someone there to look after
them. Genly, it is the farmer’s wife who waters these trees and
she does a good job.

I can remember Tommy Douglas talking about trees and
how he used to haul water by the pail even in the dry years. He
proved you could grow trees on the prairies when a lot of
people thought he was crazy. He had to water them about
every second day in order to keep them alive, but once they
were established they took care of themselves. There are many
varieties of trees. There are trees for nearly every condition.
When we were visiting the nursery we saw that they were
bringing in trees from regions of the world in order to try them
in different salinities.

Senator Anderson: I was wondering if a large percentage of
farmers who own their own land are just growing what they
can and leaving it to luck, or would the majority of them be
interested in conservation?

Hon. Mr. Whelan: | think the vast majority of farmers are
interested in conservation and the majority of them are prac-
tising good conservation at the moment. However, there is a
good group of them out there who are not. You could say that
perhaps 25 per cent are not. They can cause havoc for the rest
of the farmers. They can cause wider erosion and more
extensive wind erosion as well, which creates problems for
everyone else. There has to be a massive education program
and demonstration projects in this area. I wish I could take
you to some of these areas I visited last year in order to show

[Traduction)

Le sénateur Riley: Quelle espéce d’épinette distribuez-vous
principalement, I’épinette blanche ou rouge?

M. Hill: L’épinette blanche. Je ne suis pas expert en la
matiére; il faudrait que mon surintendant réponde a cette
question.

Le sénateur Anderson: On pourrait en tirer profit avant 30
ou 40 ans?

M. Hill: Oui.

L’honorable M. Whelan: Je n’ai pas entendu la question,
sénateur.

Le sénateur Anderson: J’ai juste dit qu’on pourrait en tirer
profit avant 30 ou 40 ans. Le sénateur Riley a demandé quand
ils arrivaient 4 maturité.

L’honorable M. Whelan: Peut-étre M. Hill pourrait-il vous
en dire plus long sur les fonctions du centre puisque je ne les ai
pas tous visités personnellement. Je sais qu’on les plante a
partir de graines dans bien des cas. Ce sont des installations
assez importantes. On entrepose les plants au froid pour
Ihiver. Il y a une machine spéciale qui les sort de terre et ils
sont arrangés en bottes spéciales. Les plants sont conservés
dans un état d’hibernation pendant I’hiver afin d’étre préts a
étre plantés au printemps. On effectue cette opération pour des
millions d’arbres. Si un agriculteur essayait de le faire, cela lui
serait pratiquement impossible.

Comme M. Hill I'a dit, il faut absolument que ceux qui
regoivent ces arbres s’en occupent soigneusement. On le cons-
tate bien dans les régions ou les brise-vent ont été plantés
autour des batiments agricoles et ou il y a quelqu'un pour
s’occuper d’eux. En général, c’est I’épouse de ’agriculteur qui
arrose les arbres et elle s’en tire fort bien.

Je me rappelle de Tommy Douglas qui parlait des arbres et
de a fagon dont il les arrosait méme pendant les années de
sécheresse. Il a prouvé ainsi qu’il était possible de faire pousser
des arbres dans les Prairies alors qu’un tas de gens le croyaient
fou. Il devait les arroser tous les deux jours afin de les garder
vivants mais une fois partis, les arbres prenaient soin d’eux-
mémes. Il existe de nombreuses espéces d’arbres. Il y a des
arbres pour presque toutes les conditions. Lorsque nous avons
visité la pépiniére, nous avons vu qu’on y élevait des arbres qui
provenaient d’autres régions du monde et qu’on essayait de
faire croitre dans différentes conditions de salinité.

Le sénateur Anderson: Je me demandais si la majorité des
agriculteurs qui sont propriétaires de leurs terres cultivent ce
qu’ils peuvent et s’en remettent a la chance pour le reste ou si
la conservation intéresse la plupart d’entre eux?

L’honorable M. Whelan: Je crois que la conservation inté-
resse la vaste majorité des agriculteurs qui obtient d’ailleurs de
bons résultats dans ce domaine actuellement. Je dirais cepen-
dant que 25 p. 100 d’entre eux, ce qui constitue un pourcen-
tage assez élevé, ne s’en préoccupe pas. Leur désintérét peu
nuire 4 I'ensemble des agriculteurs parce qu’ils favorisent ainsi
I’érosion éolienne. Il faut mettre sur pied un vaste programme
d’éducation et d’expérimentation dans ce domaine. J’aimerais
pouvoir vous amener aux régions que j'ai visitées I'an dernier
pour vous montrer les excellents résultats obtenus dans la lutte
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you just how well they are working. You only read about my
trips on airplanes but you never read about what I am doing.
When we were there with Dr. Hill we spent perhaps four days
in the prairies visiting different locations. The worst area was
in southern Alberta where the hills are actually splitting and
moving when the waters are involved. The water is actually
moving through the different strata and the water there is not
very deep. We put little test wells down and we had instru-
ments which measured the temperature and movement of the
water through the different strata of soil. We saw the water
down in the tubes.

We talk about a dry land area but salinization is caused by
water movement, by not keeping it where it should be kept, by
not planting clover and by not discontinuing summer fallow
which lets the water go down in the soil.

Senator Marshall: I wish to ask a question with respect to
the effect of chemicals and what both levels of government are
doing about chemicals which are probably hurting the land,
for want of a better word. Is this a problem across the
country?

Hon. Mr. Whelan: We think we have the best chemical
control of any country in the world at the present time.
However, we are concerned about pesticide carryover into
soils. We are also concerned about manufactured fertilizer. As
a matter of fact, today in the city the people who manufacture
fertilizer are having their annual meeting. It is a very impor-
tant industry. Without pesticides and chemical fertilizers we
could not farm; it would be impossible for us.

Senator Marshall: What about the spraying they are doing
in the eastern provinces; do you get involved?

Hon. Mr. Whelan:: Yes, we do since we are involved in the
licensing and the usage of the spray materials.

Senator Marshall: What type of spray are they using?

Hon. Mr. Whelan: We work closely with the Department of
National Health and Welfare. Again, we think that in this
area we are probably the most cautious country in the world
with respect to the use of these products. People scare the
living daylights out of other people by saying that this will kill
you and that will kill you, and yet average life expectancies
continue to rise. We are using these materials more cautiously
now than we ever did in the past. For instance, when I first
started farming and using chemicals no one knew very much
about them. You have probably heard me describe the use of
DDT. We used to spray the cows with a hand sprayer without
a mask and then sit down and milk them right away. We
would say, “Isn’t it great, those flies are dead all over the barn
floor.” There was not a switch in the barn. If you have ever
had a cow switch you across the face with her tail when she is
mad at the flies, you would know that it is quite a sensation.
According to the environmentalists I should be dead—I am
sure some of them wish I were.

[Traduction)

contre I’érosion. On parle toujours dans les journaux de mes
voyages en avion, mais jamais de ce que je fais. J'ai passé
peut-étre quatre jours dans les Prairies avec M. Hill a visiter
différents endroits. La région la plus touchée par I’érosion est
le sud de I’Alberta ou les montagnes se divisent et se déplacent
sous l'infiltration de I’eau. L’eau se déplace dans les différentes
strates du sol, mais n’est pas trés profonde. Nous avons foré
des petits puits d’essai et installé des instruments qui mesurent
la température et le mouvement de I’eau a travers les différen-
tes strates du sol. Nous avons vu I’eau qui s’accumule dans les
tubes.

Nous parlons ici de terres séches, mais la salinisation est
causée par le mouvement de l’eau qui s’infiltre ou elle ne
devrait pas le faire parce qu'il n’y a pas de couverture végétale
et parce qu’on pratique la jachére d’été ce qui permet a I’eau
de s’infiltrer dans le sol.

Le sénateur Marshall: J’aimerais savoir quelles mesures ont
été prises par les deux niveaux de gouvernement pour contrer
I’action nocive probable des produits chimiques dans le sol? Ce
probléme est-il répandu dans tout le pays?

L’honorable M. Whelan: Nous croyons que notre réglemen-
tation sur les produits chimiques est actuellement la meilleure
au monde. Nous nous inquiétons toutefois de la persistance des
pesticides dans les sols. Nous nous intéressons aussi aux
engrais manufacturés. Soit dit en passant, les fabricants d’en-
grais ont aujourd’hui leur réunion annuelle dans cette ville. Il
s’agit d’une industrie trés importante. Notre agriculture
dépend de I'utilisation de pesticides et d’engrais chimiques.

Le sénateur Marshall: Le gouvernement réglemente-t-il la
pulvérisation de produits chimiques qui s’effectue dans les
provinces de I’Est?

L’honorable M. Whelan: Oui, nous réglementons la mise en
marché et I'utilisation des produits chimiques pulvérisés.

Le sénateur Marshall: Quels produits pulvérise-t-on?

L’honorable M. Whelan: Nous collaborons étroitement avec
le ministére de la Santé nationale et du Bien-étre social dans
ce domaine. Nous croyons que nous sommes I'un des pays du
monde qui utilise ces produits avec le plus de prudence.
Certaines personnes essaient d’effrayer la population en soute-
nant que la pulvérisation de ces produits constitue un risque
mortel alors que I’espérance de vie ne cesse de s’accroitre.
Nous utilisons ces produits aujourd’hui avec plus de parcimo-
nie que dans le passé. Ainsi, lorsque je me suis lancé en
agriculture et que j’ai commencé 2 utiliser des produits chimi-
ques, on en connaissait pas trés bien les effets. Vous m’avez
sans doute entendu décrire comment on utilisait alors le DDT.
Nous faisions des pulvérisations sur les vaches avec un pulvéri-
sateur manuel sans porter de masque et nous nous assoyions
pour les traire I'instant d’aprés. Nous nous disions: «C’est
fantastique, le plancher de la grange est couvert de mouches
mortes.» Plus de coup de queue de vache. Ceux dont le visage a
été fouetté par la queue d’une vache que les mouches fait
enrager savent a quelle sensation je fais allusion. D’aprés les
écologistes, je devrais étre mort et je suis siir que certains
d’entre eux regrettent que ce ne soit pas le cas.
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Senator Marshall: [ am thinking of the spraying of bud-
worm that took place two years ago.

Hon. Mr. Whelan: Yes, I realize what you are thinking of.
There are many things that you and I partake of which could
be harmful. Maybe I am taking too much granted, but people
over-indulge in many things. Take alcoholic beverages, for
instance. If a pregnant woman were to consume alcohol, it
could have an effect on her child. Malnutrition can have
terrible effects on children. In India, for example, 70 per cent
of all babies born suffer from malnutrition and are not given
half a chance from the very beginning. I think that in Canada
the number of children who suffer from malnutrition is less
than 10 per cent of the population. We know that that number
should not be that high, but there are children born in this
country suffering from malnutrition or some deficiency that is
dietary in origin. However, in Canada, the food that makes up
a proper diet is available at least.

I think that we have to be very cautious in using any kind of
pesticides. We are determined to have in Canada the safest
program that man can create. We are also moving towards
biological control. We are doing more work in this direction
than a lot of people are aware of.

Recently, a group of Americans visited a station at Regina,
Saskatchewan, where we are doing a lot of work in biological
control. They were amazed at what we can do. A lot of work in
this area is also being done at the University of Western
Ontario, where there is a station on the campus grounds. They
are trying to find good bugs that will eat up the bad bugs. The
only problem is that we have to be careful that, when the good
bugs run out of bad bugs to eat, they don’t start eating
something else. A lot of work has to go into a proper biological
control program.

We are probably using much fewer pesticides than we were
10 years ago and we are learning to use them in a better
fashion, for both economic and conservation reasons. In
orchards, for example, I would think our spraying program is
probably about a third of what it was 10 years ago. We watch
more carefully what is going on and the farmers are also better
educated on when to spray. In general, we are using fewer
pesticides. It is better economics and it is safer for our society.

Senator Marshall: You feel quite positively that there is no
immediate danger in terms of soil conservation, but you feel
that it has to be looked at in the future?

Hon. Mr. Whelan: When you say “no immediate danger,”
exactly what are you referring to?

Senator Marshall: The overall use.

Hon. Mr. Whelan: I do not think we can be nonchalant
about any of these things.

Senator Marshall: You can still meet the Russian and
Chinese needs for grain, at any rate?

[Traduction]

Le sénateur Marshall: Je songe aux pulvérisations qui ont
été faites il y a deux ans pour lutter contre la tordeuse des
bourgeons de I’épinette.

L’honorable M. Whelan: Oui, je sais a quoi vous songez. [l y
a beaucoup de choses qui peuvent devenir nocives. Peut-étre
suis-je trop naif, mais les gens abusent de beaucoup de choses.
Prenons I'’exemple de I'alcool. Si une femme enceinte con-
somme de I’alcool, elle peut nuire 4 son enfant. La malnutri-
tion a des conséquences terribles pour les enfants. En Inde, par
exemple, 70 p. 100 des nouveaux-nés souffrent de malnutrition
et la moitié d’entre eux sont condamnés a la mort. Au Canada,
je crois que moins de 10 p. 100 des enfants souffrent de
malnutrition. Ce pourcentage est encore trop élevé, mais si
certains enfants canadiens souffrent de malnutrition ou d’une
carence quelconque c’est souvent parce qu’ils mangent mal et
non parce qu’ils ne mangent pas a leur faim. On peut au moins
se procurer au Canada les aliments nécessaires a une saine
alimentation.

Je crois qu’il faut utiliser tous les pesticides avec beaucoup
de prudence. Nous voulons que la réglementation canadienne
dans ce domaine soit la plus siire possible. Nous nous enga-
geons aussi dans la voie du contréle biologique. Peu de gens
savent que nous effectuons beaucoup de recherches dans ce
domaine.

Un groupe d’Américains a récemment visité la station de
Regina ou nous effectuons des recherches sur le contrdle
biologique. Ce que nous pouvons faire les a beaucoup impres-
sionné. Beaucoup de recherches s’effectuent également sur
cette question a la station qui se trouve sur le campus de
I’Université de Western en Ontario. Les chercheurs universi-
taires essaient de trouver des insectes qui pourraient manger
les insectes qui causent des dommages. Il faut toutefois s’assu-
rer que ces nouveaux insectes ne s’attaqueront pas a autre
chose lorsqu’ils n’auront plus rien a se mettre sous la dent. Un
programme de controle biologique efficace exige beaucoup de
recherches.

Nous utilisons sans doute moins de pesticides qu’il y a dix
ans et nous les utilisons mieux tant par souci d’économie que
de conservation. Dans les vergers, par exemple, je crois qu’on
effectue aujourd’hui le tiers des vaporisations qui se faisaient il
y a dix ans. Nous étudions de plus prés les résultats obtenus et
les agriculteurs sont maintenant mieux informés au sujet du
moment le plus propice pour les vaporisations. Nous utilisons
en général moins de pesticides. C’est beaucoup moins coiteux
et moins dangereux pour nous.

Le sénateur Marshall: Vous étes assez certain que 1’érosion
des sols ne constitue pas un danger immeédiat, mais vous croyez
qu’il faut suivre de preés 1’évolution de la situation?

L’honorable M. Whelan: Qu’entendez-vous par «aucun
danger immédiat»?

Le sénateur Marshall: Je songe a ['utilisation globale.

L’honorable M. Whelan: Je crois qu’il faut étre aux aguets.

Le sénateur Marshall: Mais pouvons-nous toujours approvi-
sionner en céréales I'URSS et la Chine?
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Hon. Mr. Whelan: The amount of grain that we sell on the
world market, which I think was about 30 million tonnes last
year, is not that great considering the needs of the developing
world. Those countries produce 800 million tonnes themselves,
and I am not talking about the Russians and the Chinese,
either. It is cheaper at times for the Russians and Chinese to
buy grain from North America, transporting it by boat and
delivering it to the coastal cities, than it is to try to transport it
across their countries. Economics plays a big role in their
buying grain from us. We are so efficient in the growing and
transportation of our grain, as compared to them, that they
will probably continue to buy grain from us until their own
transportation systems improve.

Our transportation system, which we are still improving, is
one of the best in the world. We move grain and commodities
in Canada under some of the most severe climatic and geo-
graphic conditions in the entire world.

The Chairman: I wonder whether we could switch our
questioning more to the subject of research within the federal
Department of Agriculture itself? I did try to search in the
estimates for the amount of money being spent presently on
research on soil degradation. Those figures were not clear to
me.

Hon. Mr. Whelan: I will ask Dr. Halstead to answer that
question.

The Chairman: Dr. Halstead, my question is: How much
money is allowed for research into the subject we are talking
about in the estimates of this year? Is that an increase over the
previous amount? If so, by how much has the expenditure
increased over that of the previous year? In the same vein, I
would then like to ask the minister what he sees for the future
in terms of research dollars.

I appreciate that mention was made of the proposed western
soil and water research centre in Saskatoon. In that connec-
tion, the figure of $75 million over five years was given. Is that
money to be used for research or is it to be put towards
building, equipment and so on?

Perhaps, Dr. Halstead, you could comment?

Dr. Ron Halstead, Director General, Program Co-ordination,
Department of Agriculture: You have raised a difficult ques-
tion, Mr. Chairman. The total amount of money that we spent
on soil research in the branch was $9.5 million, roughly. I
believe that figure was given in Mr. Whelan’s speech to you.
When we speak in terms of research into soil degradation and
conservation, the figure is about $500,000. Money spent on
direct supporting research runs something in the order of
$250,000. Contributory research beyond that, which is
associated with the production and research parts of the
system—this can be anything from minimum tillage systems
for cereals to potato production systems—is $3.8 million. Land
inventory, which is our soil survey program, amounts to about
$4.9 million, and that totals, roughly, $9.5 million. Consider-
ing monies spent in terms of our reporting to Parliament on
those programs and our accountability for them, we have

[Traduction]

L’honorable M. Whelan: Nous ne vendons pas une quantité
tellement importante de céréales sur les marchés mondiaux—
je crois que cette quantité s’établit a 30 millions de tonnes pour
I’an dernier—compte tenu des besoins des pays en développe-
ment. Ces pays produisent eux-mémes 800 millions de tonnes
de céréales et je ne parle pas de 'URSS et de la Chine. C’est
plus économique parfois pour la Chine d’acheter des céréales
de ’Amérique du Nord, de les transporter par bateau et de les
livrer aux ports chinois que de les transporter a travers son
propre territoire. La question de coiits explique pourquoi ils
nous achétent des céréales. Nous sommes tellement plus effica-
ces qu’eux en ce qui touche la culture et le transport des
céréales qu’ils continueront sans doute a s’approvisionner
aupres du Canada jusqu’a ce que leurs systémes de transports
s’améliorent.

Notre systéme de transport, qui s’améliore constamment, est
'un des meilleurs au monde. Nous transportons des céréales et
des marchandises au Canada malgré des conditions géographi-
ques et climatiques parmi les plus difficiles au monde.

Le président: Peut-étre pourrions-nous faire porter nos ques-
tions sur la recherche qui s’effectue au sein du ministére de
I’Agriculture. J’ai essayé de savoir combien d’argent le minis-
tére consacre actuellement aux recherches sur la dégradation
des sols. Je n’ai pas trouvé de chiffre exact dans les prévisions
budgétaires.

L’honorable M. Whelan: Je demanderai 4 M. Halstead de
répondre a cette question.

Le président: Voici ce que j'aimerais savoir, M. Halstead:
quelle part du budget de cette année est affectée a la recherche
dans le domaine qui nous intéresse? La somme qui y est
affectée a-t-elle augmentée par rapport 4 I'année précédente?
Si oui, de combien? Dans le méme ordre d’idées, j'aimerais
que le ministre nous dise quel budget sera affecté a la recher-
che dans I’avenir?

Je sais qu’on a parlé du Centre de recherches sur le sol et
I’eau qui doit étre créé a Saskatoon. La somme affectée a ce
projet doit étre de 75 millions de dollars sur cing ans. Cet
argent doit-il servir 4 la recherche ou a la construction d’im-
meubles et 4 ’'achat de matériel?

Pourriez-vous répondre a ces questions, M. Halstead?

M. Ron Halstead, directeur général, Programme de coordi-
nation, ministére de I’Agriculture: Vous posez une question
difficile, monsieur le président. La Direction consacre quelque
9.5 millions de dollars & la recherche sur les sols. Je crois que
c’est le chiffre que vous a donné M. Whelan dans sa déclara-
tion. La somme de $500,000 est réservée a la recherche sur la
dégradation et la conservation des sols. Environ $250,000 sont
consacrés a la recherche directement liée 4 ce probleme.
Quelque 3,8 millions de dollars sont consacrés a la recherche
qui est liée aux systémes de production et de recherche, ce qui
peut comprendre des choses aussi variées que les systémes de
labours légers pour les céréales et les systémes de production
des pommes de terre. Environ 4,9 millions de dollars sont
consacrés a l'inventaire des terres, c'est-a-dire a notre pro-
gramme d’étude des sols. Au total, cela représente environ 9,5
millions de dollars. Compte tenu des sommes qu’il nous faut
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about $2.4 million in what we call soil management and
conservation. That is one component. The land inventory and
evaluation component, again, is $4.9 million. Irrigation, drain-
age and desalination are just under $1 million, or $900,000,
and agri-meteorology accounts for about $1.2 million.

What we call our core research, if you would like to look at
it in terms of strict soil degradation research, is quite small in
that total package. It amounts to about 5 per cent of the total
of $9.5 million.

The Chairman: Five per cent of the total research budget
goes towards soil research?

Dr. Halstead: Yes, it goes towards what we would call,
directly, the research on soil conservation. Almost any
research in soils, however, will deliver soil conservations infor-
mation. People like Dr. Hill are involved in this PFRA pro-
gram. Minimum tillage systems, for example, which are sort of
production-oriented types of research, are all valuable in terms
of coming to grips with the constantly changing systems
required for soil conservation or good soil management.

Hon. Mr. Whelan: In this regard, Mr. Chairman, I can say
that the private sector does not spend very much on research in
agriculture. I believe that less than one per cent of its GNP
goes into such research. The Grocery Products Manufacturers,
the Canadian Food Processors, the Canadian Chemical Insti-
tute and the Canadian Fertilizer Institute spend a minute
amount of money on such research. I believe they spend less
than similar entities in any other free enterprise system in the
world. They depend on public research. We are putting more
money into this, as well. How much are we putting into the
universities for research on agriculture, Dr. Halstead? Does it
amount to 413 million this year?

Dr. Halstead: I am not sure of the amount, sir, but about 50
per cent of the research in the country is carried out by
Agriculture Canada, roughly 40 per cent by the university and
provincial community, and about 20 per cent or less by
industry.

Hon. Mr. Whelan: I think it is more like 5 or 10 per cent.

Dr. Halstead: It varies.

Hon. Mr. Whelan: Recently Ciba-Geigy bought Stewart’s
farm at Ailsa Craig. They want to close it down. Stewart’s
were doing a lot of research in that area, especially on small
grains, soybeans and that sort of thing. It is my understanding
that they want to close down that research but I do not know
whether anything in that regard was contained in the agree-
ment they made under FIRA when they bought the farm.

[Traduction]

dépenser pour la mise en ceuvre de ces programmes et dont
nous devons faire rapport au Parlement, il nous reste quelque
2,4 millions de dollars pour la recherche dans le domaine de la
conservation et de la gestion des sols. Ce n’est cependant qu’un
élément du programme. Quelque 4,9 millions de dollars sont
consacrés au deuxiéme élément qui est ’évaluation et 'inven-
taire des terres. Un peu moins de 1 million de dollars, soit
900,000 dollars, sont affectés a I'irrigation, au drainage et a la
désalinisation; 1,2 million de dollars va a I’agrométéorologie.

La recherche de base qui porte sur la dégradation des sols
représente une proportion assez faible du budget total, c’est-a-
dire environ 5 p. 100 des 9,5 millions de dollars.

Le président: Vous dites donc que 5 p. 100 seulement du
budget de recherche total est consacré a la recherche dans le
domaine des sols?

M. Halstead: Oui, c’est la somme qui est consacrée directe-
ment 4 la recherche sur la conservation des sols. Toutes les
recherches menées en science des sols fournissent cependant
des renseignements sur la conservation des sols. Des gens
comme M. Hill participent au programme de ’ARAP. Les
systémes de labour légers, par exemple, qui constituent un
genre de recherche axée sur la production, fournissent des
renseignements précieux sur les systémes requis en matiére de
conservation et de gestion des sols.

L’honorable M. Whelan: A cet égard, monsieur le président,
je dois dire que le secteur privé ne consacre pas beaucoup
d’argent a la recherche agricole. Je crois que moins de 1 p. 100
de son PNB y est affecté. Les Fabricants canadiens de produits
alimentaires, 1I’Association canadienne des manufacturiers de
produits alimentaires, 1’Association canadienne des fabri-
quants de produits chimiques et I'Institut canadien des engrais
consacrent trés peu d’argent & ce genre de recherche. Je crois
qu’ils y consacrent moins que les associations semblables de
tout autre systéme de libre entreprise au monde. Ils dépendent
de la recherche financée par le secteur public. Nous y consa-
crons aussi davantage d’argent. Combien d’argent versons-
nous aux universités pour la recherche en agriculture, mon-
sieur Halstead? Treize millions de dollars cette année je crois,
n’est-ce pas?

M. Halstead: J’ignore le montant exact, monsieur, mais le
ministére de I’Agriculture effectue prés de 50 p. 100 de la
recherche qui se fait au pays, les universités et les provinces, a
peu prés 40 p. 100 et I'industrie, moins de 20 p. 100.

L’honorable M. Whelan: Je crois que c’est plutdt de 5 a 10
p. 100.

M. Halstead: Cela varie.

L’honorable M. Whelan: La société Ciba-Geigy a récem-
ment acheté la ferme Stewart a Ailsa Craig. Ils veulent la
fermer. On y effectuait beaucoup de recherches dans ce
domaine particuliérement sur les petites céréales, le soja et
d’autres produits de ce genre. Je crois qu’ils veulent abandon-
ner les recherches mais j'ignore si I’entente qu’ils ont conclu
avec le FIRA au moment de I’achat de la ferme renfermait
quelque chose a ce sujet.



1:42

Agriculture, Fisheries and Forestry

19-1-1984

[Text]
We should check that out, doctor.

Senator Marshall: Is there any research done, under general
development subsidiary agreements with the provinces?

Hon. Mr. Whelan: You mean regarding getting more
research?

Senator Marshall: Yes.

Hon. Mr. Whelan: 1 am a strong believer in research.
Contrary to what many people say, we have not cut back on
research. Because of the rate of inflation, we have had to cut
back with other departments, but in research I could use
double the amount of money. We have plans regarding the soil
and water research in Saskatoon that we have spoken about.
There is a sum of $24 million for that, but over the next five to
ten years we have plans to spend $500 million on research
facilities. We need those facilities, and we could use them in
five years.

Senator Marshall: There was mention of 40 per cent on
research.

Hon. Mr. Whelan: Dr. Halstead could explain that to you.
For instance, Guelph University does research. They have the
Bridgetown experimental farm and school. Alberta is spending
approximately $40 million on research; is that correct?

Dr. Halstead: I do not know those figures.

Hon. Mr. Whelan: I welcome the provinces that have money
to spend on research, because research is something that you
cannot stop at an invisible provincial border. It can be spread
across Canada and used in the rest of the world to help people
who are not as fortunate as we are. That is the only reason we
produce as much as we do from the land that we have, which is
so fragile and so tender. Federal research, provincial research,
the farmers and the agriculture industry in general, work
together pretty closely. I repeat, Mr. Chairman, that, if we
could get some more money from the private sector and they
would spend more money on research, it would assist us. I
continually battle. We will be able to get money out of the
National Research Council. They have approximately $100
million and we believe that we can take approximately 70 per
cent of that for agriculture, because they do not know how to
spend it. Everyone wants to get into research. There is a move
for people to take research away from agriculture; but we are
proud of our research. All of the provinces want agriculture
research to stay with Agriculture Canada. At the provincial
minister’s meetings they always reconfirm that, and they
always demand more research.

The Chairman: The minister has another meeting at 5 p.m.
There is one point that I should like to clear up with regard to
the research centre in Saskatoon. Has that anything to do with
the hydrology lab?

[Traduction)
Nous devrions nous informer a ce sujet.

Le sénateur Marshall: Est-ce que des recherches sont effec-
tuées dans les provinces en vertu des ententes-cadres de
développement?

L’honorable M. Whelan: Voulez-vous savoir s’il s’effectue
davantage de recherche?

Le sénateur Marshall: Oui.

L’honorable M. Whelan: Je suis un fervent partisan de la
recherche. Contrairement a ce que I’on entend, le ministére n’a
pas réduit sa contribution 4 la recherche. Compte tenu du taux
d’inflation et des restrictions qui nous ont été imposées ainsi
qu’aux autres ministéres, nous pourrions utiliser le double de
I’argent que nous avons pour la recherche. Comme nous
I’avons déja dit, nous prévoyons mettre sur pied un centre de
recherche sur le sol et I’eau a Saskatoon. La somme de 24
millions de dollars a été réservée a cette fin, mais nous
comptons dépenser 500 millions de dollars pour la construction
d’installations de recherche au cours des cinq a dix prochaines
années. Nous avons besoin de ces installations et nous pour-
rions les utiliser dans cinq ans.

Le sénateur Marshall: On a parlé de 40 p. 100 pour la
recherche.

L’honorable M. Whelan: Monsieur Halstead pourrait vous
expliquer ce qu’il en est. L’Université de Guelph effectue de la
recherche, par exemple. Il y a la ferme expérimentale et ’école
de Bridgetown. L’Alberta consacre quelque 40 millions de
dollars 4 la recherche, n’est-ce-pas?

M. Halstead: Je ne suis pas au courant des statistiques.

L’honorable M. Whelan: Nous sommes heureux que certai-
nes provinces aient de I’argent a consacrer & la recherche qui
doit déborder le cadre des frontiéres provinciales. Ces recher-
ches peuvent profiter a tout le Canada et aux pays qui ne sont
pas aussi riches que nous. C’est en raison de nos recherches
que nous produisons autant que nous le faisons a partir de
terres aussi fragiles. Le gouvernement fédéral, les gouverne-
ments provinciaux, les agriculteurs et l'industrie agricole en
général collaborent étroitement dans ce domaine. Je répéte,
monsieur le président, que le secteur privé pourrait consacrer
davantage d’argent & la recherche, ce qui nous aiderait beau-
coup. Je me bats constamment pour accroitre la part qui nous
est réservée du budget du Conseil national de recherches.
Celui-ci est d’environ 100 millions de dollars et nous pouvons
probablement en obtenir 70 p. 100 pour I’agriculture puisque
le Conseil ne sait pas 4 quoi consacrer son argent. Tout le
monde veut faire de la recherche. Certaines personnes vou-
draient que le ministére de I’Agriculture cesse de faire de la
recherche, mais nous en sommes fiers. Toutes les provinces
souhaitent que le gros de la recherche en agriculture continue
d’étre effectué par Agriculture Canada. Ils le confirment
toujours lors des réunions des premiers ministres provinciaux
et demandent une intensification de I'effort de recherche.

Le président: Le ministre doit assister & une autre réunion a
17 heures. Il y a un point que j'aimerais éclaircir. Quel lien
existe entre le Centre de recherche & Saskatoon et la labora-
toire d’hydrologie?
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Hon. Mr. Whelan: No, it is separate; but they would work

very closely together. That is why it is being put in Saskatoon.
They will both be there.

The Chairman: But it would be a separate facility. Can you
suggest when that might take place, or is it just a proposal?

Hon. Mr. Whelan: If you and the committee do everything
in your power, it may come about more quickly. I do not know
how quickly you intend to bring down a report, but I am
instructed that my people will co-operate with you.

The Chairman: It is a proposal that you hope the committee
will back.

Hon. Mr. Whelan: Only if the committee sees fit, after its
investigation.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Minister. We appreciate the
time you have spent with us and the forthright manner in
which you have given evidence. I would like to ask the
departmental officials to stay a little longer to answer any
additional questions.

Hon. Mr. Whelan: I would like to know that Agriculture
Canada people are not clock watchers.

Senator Marshall: Neither are senators.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Minister. We will keep the
officials a minimum amount of time.

Hon. Mr. Whelan: I now have to meet with the Canadian
dairy farmers.

The Chairman: Are there any further questions? 1 would
like to give our research people who are present an opportunity
to ask questions.

Senator McGrand: The minister mentioned the research
that was being undertaken in the southern part of the province.
I believe that soil erosion is at its worst in the potato-growing
area in the northern part of the province. What work has been
done in that area of New Brunswick to combat soil erosion?

Mr. Nowland: Our Fredericton research station has soil
physics people working on how to get the water to soak into
the ground without running off so much. There is also research
into covering the land after the potato harvest with a cover
crop that will hold the soil in place until the spring. That is the
kind of work that is going on in New Brunswick. Some of the
work in Prince Edward Island is also relevant to New
Brunswick.

Senator McGrand: You mean they grow a crop? After the
major crop has been taken off, they grow another crop to hold
the soil?

Mr. Nowland: Yes. Rye is very popular.

Senator McGrand: it does not get a chance to mature,
though, does it?

[Traduction]

L’honorable M. Whelan: Il s’agit de deux entités distinctes,
mais qui seront appelées a travailler en étroite collaboration.
C’est pour cela que nous I'avons installé en Saskatoon. Les
deux centres se trouveront dans la méme ville.

Le président: Il s’agira d’installations distinctes. Pouvez-
vous nous dire quand cela se fera ou s’il s’agit d’'une simple
proposition?

L’honorable M. Whelan: Si vous-mémes et votre Comité
faites tout ce que vous pouvez, la chose pourrait se réaliser plus
rapidement. Je ne sais pas quand vous vous proposez de
présenter votre rapport, mais les employés de mon ministére
collaboreront avec vous.

Le président: Il s’agit d’'une proposition que vous voudriez
que le Comité appuie.

L’honorable M. Whelan: Seulement si le Comité juge appro-
prié de le faire une fois son enquéte terminée.

Le président: Merci, monsieur le ministre. Nous vous remer-
cions d’avoir pris le temps de comparaitre devant nous et de la
clarté de votre présentation. Je demanderais aux fonctionnai-
res du ministére de rester pour répondre aux questions addi-
tionnelles des membres du Comité.

L’honorable M. Whelan: Je vous signale que les employés
d’Agriculture Canada ne sont pas obsédés par I’horloge.

Le sénateur Marshall: Les sénateurs non plus.

Le président: Merci, monsieur le ministre. Nous ne retien-
drons pas indiment les représentants du ministére.

L’honorable M. Whelan: Je dois maintenant rencontrer les
producteurs laitiers du Canada.

Le président: Y a-t-il d’autres questions? J’aimerais donner
a nos attachés de recherche I'occasion de poser quelques
questions.

Le sénateur McGrand: Le ministre a mentionné que la
recherche était effectuée dans le sud de la province. Il me
semble que 1’érosion du sol fait ses pires ravages dans la région
de culture de la pomme de terre dans le nord de la province.
Qu’a-t-on fait dans cette région du Nouveau-Brunswick pour
enrayer le probléme de I’érosion des sols?

M. Nowland: Les pédologues de notre station de recherche
de Frédéricton cherchent les moyens d’améliorer I'infiltration
de I’eau dans le sol et de limiter le ruissellement. Ils effectuent
aussi des recherches sur les fagons de protéger les terres apres
les récoltes de pommes de terre avec une culture abri apte a
retenir le sol jusqu'au printemps. C’est 1a le genre de travail
qui se fait au Nouveau-Brunswick. Certaines des recherches
effectuées dans I'fle-du-Prince-Edouard s’appliquent aussi au
Nouveau-Brunswick.

Le sénateur McGrand: Voulez-vous dire qu’aprés la moisson
de la culture principale ils sément une nouvelle culture pour
retenir le sol?

M. Nowland: Oui. Le seigle est souvent utilisé a cette fin.

Le sénateur McGrand: Cette deuxiéme culture n’a siirement
pas le tems d’arriver & maturité?
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Mr. Nowlan: | cannot answer that. I think that quite
frequently it is ploughed in the next spring.

Mr. Len Christie, Research Officer, Research Branch,
Library of Parliament: Seeing that we have covered research
fairly well, and since we have been talking about soil degrada-
tion in the west, I would like to ask if the emphasis on
increased production, particularly for export, has had any
adverse effect on soil quality?

Dr. Halstead: That is a sort of double-headed question.
Undoubtedly, the more intensively you farm your land, the
more quickly the soil will degrade; but in reality we are
speaking of the western situation, where you are leaving half of
your land idle. The hypothesis is that that leads to degradation
much more quickly than if we farmed that land in a more total
sense. So in the case of the western situation, it is a factor of
the system that developed. The practice of summer fallow was
followed for weed control purposes, for using the natural
productivity of the soil to provide nutrients for the crop, as
well as to provide moisture for the crop during the growing
season. Dr. Rennie’s thesis—I believe you will be hearing from
him—is that summer fallow is the bad boy in terms of soil
conservation in the west and has led to loss of productivity and
to much of the salinization in western Canada. In eastern
Canada, where we grow row crops, the potatoes and corn, and
so on, are intensive, high production type crops that require a
lot of input. They are row crops and I believe those practices
have led and are leading to soil degradation—partly because it
is not done in a conservation sense with respect to planning the
rows up and downhill, and so on. I am not sure that I have
answered the question completely.

Mr. Christie: I have one further question in the same vein.
Agri-food strategy looks toward increasing exports, particular-
ly in the area of feed grains. At the Prairie Production
Symposium there was discussion as to whether the land
resources could sustain such production. If soil conditions were
to get worse than they presently are, would it in some way
affect the agri-food strategy goals?

Dr. Halstead: Yes, without question. I think you are basing
your question on the figures used at the Wheat Board Sym-
posium, which are the same figures that the agri-food strategy
production is based on. They indicate that three quarters of
the requirements to fulfil the Wheat Board strategic plan, if
you want to call it that, were based on land inputs, either
through improved management practices, particularly in
Western Canada with respect to summer fallow use and things
like that, or through the development of new lands. So if there
were a complete loss of productivity due to soil conservation, it
would have a big impact on the agri-food strategy production
projections.

[Traduction)

M. Nowland: Je ne saurais le dire. Je crois que le seigle est
souvent enfoui par un labour au printemps suivant.

M. Len Christie, attaché de recherches, Service de recherche,
Bibliothéque du Parlement: Comme vous avons parlé suffi-
samment de la recherche et que nous avons abordé le sujet
de la dégradation des sols dans 1'Ouest, j'aimerais savoir si
les efforts visant a accroitre la production, tout particuliére-
ment aux fins d’exportation, ont eu une incidence néfaste sur
la qualité des sols.

M. Halstead: Voild en fait une question a deux volets. Il va
sans dire que plus le travail du sol est intensif et plus la
dégradation du sol est rapide. Mais en réalité, nous parlons de
la situation dans I’Ouest ou la moitié des terres ne sont pas
cultivées. Certains croient que cela entraine une dégradation
plus rapide que si les terres étaient cultivées de facon plus
extensive. Ainsi, dans le cas de I’Ouest, la situation est due aux
pratiques agricoles. La jachére d’été est utilisée pour contrdler
les mauvaises herbes, pour exploiter la productivité naturelle
des sols, pour fournir des éléments nutritifs 4 la culture et pour
procurer a celle-ci I’humidité voulue pendant la saison de
croissance. Selon M. Rennie—je crois qu’il comparaitra
devant nous—on peut attribuer les problémes de conservation
du sol dans I’Ouest a la pratique de la jacheére d’été. Celle-ci a
entrainé des pertes de productivité et créé trop de cas de
salinisation dans 1’Ouest du pays. Dans I'Est, nous pratiquons
la culture en rangées, soit les pommes de terres ou le mais,
etc., et nous utilisons des cultures a fort rendement qui nécessi-
tent des apports considérables. Il s’agit de cultures en rangées
et je crois que cette pratique a causé et causera la dégradation
des sols, en partie parce qu’elle ne vise pas la conservation,
c’est-a-dire que les rangées ne sont pas orientées dans le sens
de la pente, etc. Je ne suis pas certain d’avoir bien répondu 4 la
question.

M. Christie: J’aurais une autre question dans le méme sens.
La stratégie agro-alimentaire vise a augmenter les exporta-
tions, surtout dans le secteur des grains de provende. Lors du
collogue sur la production dans les Prairies, la question a été
posée de savoir si les ressources en terres pourraient soutenir
une telle production. Si les conditions du sol devaient se
dégrader davantage, cela aurait-il une incidence sur les objec-
tifs de la stratégie agro-alimentaire?

M. Halstead: Oui, sans aucun doute. Je crois que votre
question se fonde sur les chiffres cités lors du colloque de la
Commission du blé et qui sont les mémes que ceux sur lesquels
se fondent la production visée dans la stratégie agro-alimen-
taire. Ces chiffres indiquent que les trois-quarts des exigences
nécessaires a la réalisation du plan stratégique de la Commis-
sion du blé, si vous voulez I'appeler ainsi, se fondaient sur
’accroissement du nombre des terres cultivées, soit au moyen
de pratiques de gestion améliorées, tout particulierement dans
I’Ouest du Canada en ce qui concerne la pratique de la jachére
d’été et autres, soit la mise en valeur de nouvelles terres. Ainsi,
s’il y avait perte totale de productivité due a la conservation
des sols, cela aurait une incidence appréciable sur les prévi-
sions de production utilisés aux fins de la stratégie
agro-alimentaire.
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Mr. Christie: Would the new land you mentioned be land
that is not presently in agricultural production or would it be
obtained from reduced fallow?

Dr. Halstead: I cannot recall the exact figures, but I think
that 25 per cent of the increased production would come from
a change in the present summer fallow practices. In other
words there would be more intensive production across the
western prairies. The rest would come from new production
practices, improved management practices, fertilizer etc. The
other 25 per cent would come from opening new lands that are
not presently used for production, and extensions of new
varieties into more northern areas and that sort of thing.

Ms. Sally Rutherford, Assistant Director of Research,
Senate Committee: The minister mentioned the proposal for a
western soil and research centre and hydrology lab in Sas-
katoon. Are there any plans for such centres in other parts of
Canada?

Mr. Peter Connell, Deputy Minister, Department of
Agriculture: We are doing research at establishments all
across the country in respect of soil conservation and soil
erosion and degradation. The western soil and water research
centre is intended to attack a problem that has come into focus
in recent years and is to be a centre specifically directed
toward that very great problem in the prairies. Our other
research stations are carrying out programs in respect to soil
degradation and conservation in Ontario, Nova Scotia and
other provinces. We have no present plan for a specific soil
conservation centre for Eastern Canada. However, if in our
analysis of problems brought forth, there was the realization
that such a centre was needed, I am sure it would be one of our
proposals.

The Chairman: Are you saying that at the moment your
studies indicate that the need for such a centre in the Atlantic
region or Eastern Canada is not as great as in the West?

Mr. Connell: Perhaps Dr. Halstead could supplement my
comments, but many of the problems in the other provinces
are better known than the problems of erosion, salinity and
degradation in the prairie provinces. We know, for example,
that we are losing a lot of good soil to the Great Lakes in south
western Ontario. We know the practices that are necessary to
halt and overcome that problem. It is in a sense not so much a
matter of research as getting the farmers, through extension
programs and education, to adopt better practices, and the
same applies to the municipalities and the provinces. The
prairies salinization and erosion problems seem to require a
great deal more research before they can be overcome.

The Chairman: Would you suggest that the PFRA should be
delivering more programs and that it should be Canada-wide?

Mr. Connell: As the minister indicated, he would like to see
something called the “Canadian Farm Rehabilitation Agen-

[Traduction)

M. Christie: Les nouvelles terres dont vous parlez seraient-
elles les terres qui ne sont pas présentement cultivées ou des
terres obtenues en réduisant les jachéres?

M. Halstead: Les chiffres exacts m’échappent, mais je crois
que 25 p. 100 de la production accrue découleraient d’une
modification des pratiques actuelles de jachére d’été. Autre-
ment dit, la production serait plus intensive dans les Prairies de
I’Ouest. Le reste de I'augmentation serait attribuable a de
nouvelles pratiques de production, & des méthodes de gestion
améliorées, 4 l'utilisation d’engrais, etc. Par ailleurs, 25 p. 100
de laugmentation découleraient de la mise en culture de
nouvelles terres qui ne sont pas présentement utilisées ou bien
de la culture de nouvelles espéces dans les régions situées plus
au nord.

Mme Sally Rutherford, directrice adjointe de la recherche,
comité du sémat: Le ministre a parlé de I'établissement a
Saskatoon d’un centre de recherche sur les sols de I'Ouest et
d’un laboratoire d’hydrologie. Prévoit-on installer de tels cen-
tres dans d’autres régions du pays?

M. Peter Connell, sous-ministre, ministére de ’Agriculture:
Nous effectuons de la recherche sur la conservation, I’érosion
et la dégradation des sols dans toutes les régions du pays. Le
centre de recherche sur le sol et 'eau dans 1'Ouest a été
construit pour lutter contre un probléme qui s’est fait jour ces
derniéres années et pour que nous ayons un centre qui s’occu-
perait directement de ce grave probléme dans les Prairies. Nos
autres stations de recherche mettent en ceuvre des programmes
sur la dégradation et la conservation des sols en Ontario, en
Nouvelle-Ecosse et dans d’autres provinces. Nous ne prévoyons
pas a I’heure actuelle construire un centre de conservation des
sols dans I’Est. Toutefois, si aprés analyse des problémes
soulevés, nous constatons la nécessité d’un tel centre, je suis
certain que nous en proposerions la construction.

Le président: Dites-vous que vos études révelent qu’un tel
centre n’est pas, pour ’heure, aussi nécessaire dans la région
de I’Atlantique ou dans I’Est du Canada qu’il I’est dans
I'Ouest?

M. Connell: M. Halstead pourrait sans doute vous donner de
plus amples détails, mais un grand nombre des problémes des
autres provinces sont mieux connus que les problémes de
I’érosion, de la salinité et de la dégradation de la structure des
sols dans les provinces des Prairies. Nous savons, par exemple,
qu’une quantité considérable de sol est entrainé par les Grands
Lacs dans le sud-ouest de I'Ontario. Nous savons quelles
pratiques permettraient de freiner et de surmonter ce proble-
me. Dans un sens, il s’agit moins d’effectuer des recherches
que d’amener les cultivateurs, au moyen de programmes de
vulgarisation et de formation, & adopter de meilleures prati-
ques; cela vaut tout autant pour les municipalités que pour les
provinces. On ne pourra, semble-t-il, surmonter les problémes
de salinisation et d’érosion dans les Prairies sans intensifier les
efforts de recherche.

Le président: Croyez-vous que 'ARAP devrait mettre sur
pied plus de programmes partout au pays?

M. Connell: Comme ’a dit le ministre, il serait favorable a
la création d’une «administration canadienne du rétablissement
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cy.” I am sure that if that were created there would be lots of
work for it to do. On the other hand, as far as direct delivery is
concerned, you will recall that the minister emphasized that
the land is a provincial resource and direct delivery, to a
considerable extent, is the result of agreement with the prov-
inces based on who is best in a position to pay. In the case of
the agreement with Nova Scotia, which has been in effect now
for three years, they do certain things and we do certain
things. If that agreement had not been reached, there could
well have been a conflic and we would have been accused of
trying to take over their extension services. I can think of
provinces where perhaps agreement would not be easily
reached.

Ms. Rutherford: The idea of the agri-bond concept has been
mentioned most recently in relation to the Farmers and Credi-
tors Arrangment Act. In dealing with the whole problem of
soil conservation there exists a major economic and financial
barrier for many farmers. Has any consideration been given by
the Department of Agriculture to the idea of using the
agri-bond?

Mr. Connell: The idea of using agri-bonds for the purpose
that you have described has been given some thought. The
Department of Agriculture has been pushing it, but we don’t
have the final say as to whether it will be instituted. I don’t
think, at least I am not aware of it, that monies coming from
agri-bonds would be used for the purposes we are talking
about this afternoon.

The Chairman: Is there a lot of research information and
general information that is not being used, because it is not
brought together at one source, collated and distributed, which
this new research centre or institution could bring together and
distribute?

Mr. Connell: Certainly, I think there is some of that. I'-am
sure that you have heard the old story about farmers who are
not farming as well as they know how. I think it is true across
the country. Many farmers are not farming as well as we know
they could. When I say “we”, I mean the research people in
the provinces, the universities and Agriculture Canada. It is in
part because of the problem of the transfer of knowledge. It
has been estimated—and I am not sure of the source of the
figure—that we might increase our productive capacity in the
country by as much as 30 per cent, if we were to put in place
all the good agricultural practices of which we are now aware.
However, there are still a great many things that we do not
know. In respect to the western soil and water research centre,
and I guess I am repeating myself, many of the causes of and
solutions to the problems of salinity and degradation in the
prairies, particularly, have still to be proven in a research
sense. As Mr. Whelan said, we are targeting our efforts in
order to gain the best return on investment possible.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Connell. On behalf of the
committee, I would like to thank all of you very much for
appearing before us today. We certainly look forward to the
same fine co-operation we have received in the past from you
and we hope to be able to work with you in the future.

The committee adjourned.

[Traduction)]

agricole». Je suis certain qu’un tel organisme, s'il était créé, ne
chémerait pas. Par ailleurs, en ce qui concerne la prestation
directe de services, vous vous souviendrez que le ministre a
souligné que la terre est une ressource provinciale et que la
prestation directe de services dépend largement de la conclu-
sion d’une entente entre les provinces, en fonction de la
capacité de payer de chacune. Dans le cas de I'accord avec la
Nouvelle-Ecosse, accord qui est en vigueur depuis maintenant
trois ans, la province met en ceuvre certains programmes et
nous en entreprenons d’autres. Si cet accord n’existait pas, il
aurait pu y avoir conflit et nous aurions été accusés de vouloir
accaparer leurs services de vulgarisation. Je connais des pro-
vinces avec lesquelles nous aurions de la difficulté a conclure
un accord.

Mme Rutherford: La question des obligations agricoles a été
mentionnée, plus récemment en rapport avec la Loi sur les
arrangements entre cultivateurs et créanciers. En ce qui con-
cerne la conservation des sols, nombre de cultivateurs se
heurtent a de sérieux obstacles économiques et financiers. Le
ministére de I’Agriculture a-t-il songé a la possibilité d’utiliser
les obligations agricoles?

M. Connell: Nous avons songé a utiliser les obligations
agricoles de la fagon que vous proposez. Le ministére de
I’Agriculture a préné I'adoption de cette pratique, mais la
décision finale ne nous appartient pas. Je ne crois pas que les
argents provenant des obligations agricoles seraient utilisés
aux fins dont nous parlons cet aprés-midi.

Le président: Le nouveau centre de recherche pourrait-il
recueillir ou distribuer des résultats de recherches et des
renseignements généraux qui ne sont pas présentement utilisés
parce qu’ils ne sont pas recueillis par un organisme central,
colligés et diffusés?

M. Connell: Je le crois certainement. Vous connaissez sans
doute la veille histoire au sujet de cultivateurs qui ne mettent
pas a profit toutes les connaissances agricoles qu’ils possédent.
Je crois que cela est vrai pour I’ensemble du pays. De nom-
breux cultivateurs ne mettent pas a profit toutes les connais-
sances qu’ils ont. Quand je dis «nous», je parle des chercheurs
des provinces, des universités et d’Agriculture Canada. Le
probléme est lié au transfert des connaissances. On a estimé je
ne suis pas certain de la source de ce chiffre que nous
pourrions augmenter la capacité productive du Canada d’au
moins 30 p. 100 si nous pouvions utiliser toute les bonnes
pratiques agricoles que nous connaissons déja. Toutefois, il y a
encore beaucoup de techniques que nous ne connaissons pas.
En ce qui concerne le centre de recherche sur le sol de I'Ouest,
et je me répéte peut-étre, il nous reste 4 démontrer par la
recherche ce qui cause la salinisation et la dégradation de la
structure des sols dans les Prairies en particulier et a trouver
des solutions. Comme I’a dit M. Whelan, nos efforts visent a
obtenir le meilleur rendement possible sur nos investissements.

Le président: Y a-t-il d’autres questions? Au nom du
Comité, j’aimerais remercier tous ceux qui ont comparu
devant nous aujourd’hui. Nous comptons profiter encore une
fois de la collaboration que nous avons obtenu de vous par le
passé et nous espérons pouvoir travailler avec vous a 'avenir.

Le comité suspend ses travaux.
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ORDER OF REFERENCE ORDRE DE RENVOI
Extract from the Minutes of Proceedings of the Senate of Extrait des Procés-verbaux du mardi 7 février 1984:

Tuesday, February 7, 1984:

Ordered, that motion No. 3 standing in the name of the
Honourable Senator Sparrow, be brought forward.

The Honourable Senator Sparrow moved, seconded by
the Honourable Senator Marshall:

That the Standing Senate Committee on Agriculture,
Fisheries and Forestry be authorized to examine the sub-
ject-matter of soil and water conservation throughout
Canada;

That the Committee have power to adjourn from place
to place within Canada; and

That the Committee be empowered to engage the ser-
vices of such counsel and technical, clerical and other per-
sonnel as may be required for the purpose of the said
examination.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

Ordonné: Que la motion n° 3 inscrite au nom de I’hono-
rable sénateur Sparrow soit avancée.

L’honorable sénateur Sparrow propose, appuyé par
I’honorable sénateur Marshall,

Que le Comité sénatorial permanent de I’agriculture,
des péches et des foréts soit autorisé a étudier la question
de la conservation du sol et de I’eau au Canada;

Que le Comité soit autorisé a voyager au Canada; et

Que le Comité soit autorisé a retenir les services des
conseillers et du personnel technique, de bureau et autre
dont il pourra avoir besoin aux fins de son enquéte.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

Le greffier du Sénat
Charles A. Lussier
Clerk of the Senate
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

THURSDAY, MARCH 8, 1984
(5)

[Text]

The Standing Senate Committee on Agriculture, Fisheries
and Forestry met this day at 10:00 a.m., the Chairman, the
Honourable Senator Herbert O. Sparrow, presiding.

Present: The Honourable Senators Bonnell, Le Moyne,
Marshall and Sparrow. (4)

Present but not of the Committee: The Honourable Senator
Anderson.

In attendance: Ms. Sally Rutherford, Assistant Director of
Research for the Committee; Mrs. Lynne Myers and Mr. Len
Christie, Research Officers, Library of Parliament.

Witness:
Dr. Don Rennie, Chairman, Department of Soil Science,
University of Saskatchewan.

The Committee resumed the examination of the subject-
matter of soil and water conservation throughout Canada.

The witness made a statement, projected slides in explana-
tion of the matter being discussed and answered questions.

On motion by the Honourable Senator Bonnell, it was
agreed,—That the graphs shown during the slide projection be
printed as an appendix to this day’s proceedings. (See “Appen-
dix 2-A4).

At 11:35 a.m. the Committee adjourned until 9:30 a.m. on
Thursday, March 15, 1984.

ATTEST:

PROCES-VERBAL

LE JEUDI 8 MARS 1984
(&)

[Traduction]

Le Comité sénatorial permanent de I’agriculture, des péches
et des foréts se réunit aujourd’hui 4 10 heures sous la prési-
dence de I’honorable sénateur Herbert O. Sparrow (président).

Présents: Les honorables sénateurs Bonnell, Le Moyne,
Marshall et Sparrow. (4)

Présent mais ne faisant pas partie du Comité: L honorable
sénateur Anderson.

Aussi présents: M™ Sally Rutherford, directrice adjointe de
la recherche pour le Comité; M™ Lynne Myers et M. Len
Christie, chargés de recherches, Bibliothéque du Parlement.

Témoin:

M. Ron Rennie, Directeur, Département des sciences des

sols, Université de la Saskatchewan.

Le Comité reprend I’étude de la question de la conservation
des sols et de I’eau au Canada.

Le témoin fait une déclaration, offre des explications sur le
sujet 4 I’aide de diapositives et répond aux questions.

Sur motion de I’honorable sénateur Bonnell, il est décidé,—
Que les graphiques exhibés lors de la projection de diapositives
figurent en annexe aux délibérations de ce jour. (Voir «Annexe
2-A»).

A 11 h 35, le Comité suspend ses travaux jusqu'a 9 h 30 le
jeudi 15 mars 1984.

ATTESTE:

Le greffier du Comité
Denis Bouffard
Clerk of the Committee
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EVIDENCE

Ottawa, Thursday, March 8, 1984

[Texte)

The Standing Senate Committee on Agriculture, Fisheries
and Forestry met this day at 10.00 a.m. to examine the subject
matter of soil and water conservation throughout Canada.

Senator Herbert O. Sparrow (Chairman) in the Chair.

The Chairman: Honourable senators, I thank you for being
present this morning. I appreciate that other committees are
sitting and that is why we are starting a little late. This morn-
ing we have with us Dr. Don Rennie, Professor. Department of
Soil Science, University of Saskatchewan. Dr. Rennie has a
very wide background in agriculture, particularly in the field
of soil science as it pertains to soil degradation. Over the years
he has come up with many ideas and suggestions on how to
control this problem. Dr. Rennie, you may proceed.

Dr. Don Rennie, Department of Soil Science, University of
Saskatchewan: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. This is the first
time I have appeared before a Senate committee and I hope
that I can leave with you some of the findings which our group
at Saskatoon and other colleagues in Western Canada have
made with respect to the soil upon which the agricultural
industry in the west is so vitally dependent. The major portion
of my presentation is based on slides. The last 15 years of
research have shown very clearly that there has been a serious
decline in soil quality, a decline that is sufficient to place the
future prosperity of the agricultural industry in question. It is
these findings that I will discuss with you this morning.
Recently we have come up with ways of, not only arresting soil
degradation, but of revitalizing the soils. You have before you
an article from a British journal called Span, which, more or
less, summarizes the thoughts I would like to leave with you
this morning.

Senator Marshall: Is “soil degradation” a new term as far as
soil is concerned and what does it mean? Is the quality of the
soil being degraded?

Dr. Rennie: Yes. The soil degradation we face today is not
the first time the soils have degraded. Looking back in history
to the middle ages when summer fallowing was first instituted
as a practice in Europe, soils degraded much more rapidly than
our soils because those soils were less productive than our soil.
In this first slide you can see the first layer or humus layer,
which is what we are referring to when we speak of soil degra-
dation, a layer that has taken approximately 10,000 years to
form. My comments will largely pertain to what has happened
to this layer as a result of a farming system which can best be
tfiescribed as exploitive or, to put it another way, water inef-

icient.

To orient your thoughts as to why all this has happened, I
think it is necessary to look at a series of rather important
dates and occurrences in our history because they have a direct
bearing on the current situation with respect to our soils. The

TEMOIGNAGES

Ottawa, le jeudi 8 mars 1984

[Traduction]

Le Comité sénatorial permanent de I’Agriculture, des péches
et des Foréts se réunit aujourd’hui 4 10 heures pour étudier la
question de la conservation des sols et I’eau au Canada.

Le sénateur Herbert O. Sparrow (président) occupe le fau-
teuil.

Le président: Honorables sénateurs, je vous remercie de
votre présence ce matin. D’autres comités siégent aussi
aujourd’hui, c’est pourquoi nous avons di commencer un peu
plus tard. Nous accueillons aujourd’hui M. Don Rennie, pro-
fesseur, Département des sciences du sol a I'Université de la
Saskatchewan. M. Rennie a une formation trés étendue en
agriculture et particuliérement dans le domaine de la science
des sols et de leur dégradation. 1l s’intéresse activement, depuis
plusieurs années aux moyens qu'il convient d’adopter pour
régler le probléme. Je vous laisse la parole, M. Rennie.

M. Don Rennie, Département des sciences du sol, Univer-
sité de la Saskatchewan: Je vous remercie, Monsieur le prési-
dent. C’est la premiére fois que je comparais devant un comité
sénatorial et j'espére que je pourrai vous expliquer certaines
des conclusions auxquelles en sont venus notre groupe de cher-
cheurs a Saskatoon ainsi que leurs collégues de I'Ouest du
Canada au sujet de I’état des sols dont dépend le secteur agri-
cole de I’Ouest. Je me servirai surtout de diapositives dans cet
exposé. Les recherches effectuées au cours des 15 derniéres
années établissent clairement une détérioration sérieuse de la
qualité des sols, détérioration suffisante pour menacer la pros-
périté future du secteur agricole. Je vais discuter de ces conclu-
sions avec vous ce matin. Nous avons récemment trouvé des
moyens non seulement de mettre un frein a la dégradation des
sols, mais de les revitaliser. Voici un article tiré de la revue bri-
tannique intitulée «Span» qui résume assez bien ce que j'aime-
rais que vous reteniez de mon exposé de ce matin.

Le sénateur Marshall: Le terme «dégradation des sols» est-il
nouveau et que signifie-t-il? S’agit-il de la détérioration de la
qualité du sol?

M. Rennie: Oui. Ce n’est pas la premiére fois que le pro-
bléme de la dégradation des sols se pose dans I'histoire. Au
Moyen 4ge, lorsque la pratique de la jachere d’été s’est répan-
due en Europe, les sols se dégradaient beaucoup plus rapide-
ment que les ndtres parce qu'ils étaient moins productifs. Vous
pouvez voir, dans cette premiére diapositive la premiére couche
du sol ou la couche d’humus. C’est la dégradation de cette cou-
che qui nous intéresse, une couche qui a mis prés de 10 000 ans
a se former. Mes commentaires porteront surtout sur les consé-
quences sur cette couche d’une exploitation agricole qu’on peut
qualifier d’abusive ou qui se fondait sur une gestion inefficace
de I'eau.

Pour vous expliquer la situation actuelle, je crois qu’il est
nécessaire de vous donner quelques dates et faits importants de
notre histoire puisqu’ils ont eu une influence directe sur la ges-
tion des sols. La premiére date importante est celle de 1870 qui
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first date is 1870 when the land held by the Hudson Bay Com-
pany under royal charter was transferred to the Canadian gov-
ernment. With that transfer the way was opened for settlement
of these lands. To bring about the settlement it was essential
that there be some way to transport people and the products
they produce, so the railroad came into being. It has always
been a curiosity to me that the railroad went through the mid-
dle of an area now more commonly known as the Palliser Tri-
angle, an area established by Captain Palliser when he toured
Western Canada in the 1870s and concluded that this area,
centred at Saskatoon, running east to Brandon, west to Cal-
gary and back to Saskatoon, was unsuitable for agricultural
development due to the very arid climate of the region. The
question I ask myself is, “Why did the railway go through the
heart of this area?” Presumably it was to enable settlers to
jump off and break up the land to produce food. I suppose the
simple answer is that the railroad was built for the political
purpose of demonstrating to the United States that this south-
ern portion of the pariries was Canadian!

Notwithstanding Palliser’s prediction that this was a
drought area and would never prove satisfactory for food pro-
duction, settlement proceeded at an accelerated rate during the
early part of this century. For about the first 80 years nutrients
required by the crops that were grown were taken exclusively
from the soil. As a matter of fact, Western Canadian farmers
were purely organic farmers in the most exploitive sense. For
the first 30 to 40 years of this century, not only did we remove
all the grain that was produced, we also removed all the crop
residue. It was only with the advent of the combine harvester
that straw was returned to the soil. Prior to that with the old
thrashing machines, the straw was piled and burnt.

In the mid "30s Western Canada suffered wind erosion prob-
ably more extensively than anyone ever thought possible. I
should point out that one of the reasons for this very extensive
wind erosion was the guidance given to farmers from the
“science of agriculture™ as we knew it at the time, that when
you mulch the surface of the soil and keep it very black and
finely divided you prevent the loss of water. That kind of
mulch farming was primarily responsible for the very serious
losses of top soil which occurred during the mid 1930s.

Another factor which was to exert a very profound effect on
soils was the introduction of summer fallowing. In the early
1900s it became widespread and without a doubt at that time
was the key to successful farming. This gave a hedge against
the average effects of drought the following year. Without a
doubt, that guidance was right in tune with the technology of
those times.

In the 1960s and 1970s the policymakers found another use
for summer fallow which, of course, increased its popularity. It
was found that during years of surplus production, which were
rather frequent, summer fallowing could be used to control
production. In some years farmers were paid to summer fal-
low. In other years agriculture policies, such as the grain quo-
tas, encouraged the continued excessive use of a practice which

[Traduction)]

marque la cession, par charte royale, au gouvernement cana-
dien des terres de la Comagnie de la Baie d'Hudson. Cette ses-
sion ouvrait les terres de 'Ouest 2 la colonisation. Pour favori-
ser celle-ci, il fallait trouver un moyen de transporter vers ces
terres les nouveaux habitants et leurs produits et c’est pourquoi
on a construit un chemin de fer. J"ai trouvé étonnant que cette
voie ferrée ait €té construite au milieu de la région que nous
connaissons maintenant sous le nom de triangle de Palliser
C'est-a-dire la région comprise entre Saskatoon, Brandon et
Calgary, explorée par le capitaine Palliser lors de ses voyages
dans I"Ouest dans les années 1870 et au sujet de laguelle il
avait conclu qu’elle n’était pas propice 4 I'agriculture en raison
du climat trés aride de la région. La question gque je pose est
celle-ci: «Pourquoi a-t-on décidé de construire un chemin de fer
dans le cceur de cette région?» C’était sans doute pour permet-
tre de transporter facilement des colons qui se mettraient vite 2
cultiver les terres avoisinantes. Je suppose que le chemin de fer
aeteoonsmﬁtpmruneraisonpolitigne.cest-a-ditequclc
Canada a voulu faire comprendre aux Etats-Unis que la partie
méridionale des Prairies faisait partie du territoire canadien.

Bien que M. Palliser eiit prédit que la région souffrait de
sécheresse et qu’elle ne serait jamais propice a I'agriculture, la
colonisation s’est faite 2 un rythme accéléré au cours de la pre-
miére partie de ce siécle. Pendant les 80 premiéres années, les
planta ont pu tirer du sol lui-méme les éléments nutritifs
nécessaires 4 leur croissance. En fait, les agriculteurs de
I’Ouest canadien ont abusé des engrais organiques. Pendant les
30340prem1cmanneesdcccsnecle,nousnavonspassale—
ment récolté toutes les céréales produites, mais aussi les rési-
dus de culture. Ce n’est qu'a I'apparition de la moissonneuse-
batteusequenmxsavonsrctoumclespmlksausdlmsquon
utilisait les vieilles machines aratoires, les pailles &taient empi-
lées et brillées.

Dans le premier tiers de ce siécle, 'Ouest canadien 2 connu
une érosion éolienne probablement plus importante que celle
qu’on aurait pu prévoir. Je dois souligner que I'une des raisons
qui explique I'ampleur de I'érosion éolienne qui s’est produite
C’est qu'on a conseillé aux agriculteurs de pratiguer la culture
par paillis et de maintenir la surface du sol trés noire et fine-
ment divisée afin de prévenir la dessication du sol. C'est princi-
palement cette culture par paillis qui 2 entrainé les graves per-
tes de couche arable qui se sont produites au milicu des années
30.

L adoption de la jachére d’été a aussi eu un trés grand effet
sur les sols. Au début des années 1900, cette pratigue agricole
s’est répandue et elle constituait clairement la technique de
I’heure. Elle protégeait ainsi les terres contre les effets de la
sécheresse de I'année suivante. C'était certainement un bon
conseil compte tenu des connaissances scientifiques de I'épo-
que.

Au cours des années 60 et 70, les décisionnaires ont trouvé
un autre avantage 3 la jachére d'été qui a accru sa popularité.
On a découvert que pendant les années de production excéden-
taires de céréales, qui étaient assez fréquentes, on pouvait con-
troler la production au moyen de la jachére d'¢té. Certaines
années, on a payé des agriculteurs pour qu'ils mettent leurs
terres en jachére. D autres années, les politiques agricoles, dont
les contingentements sur la production de céréales, ont favorisé
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even at that time had already been demonstrated as one of the
reasons for serious soil quality deterioration.

I would like to make a few comments with respect to the
1970s, which was a decade of recurring grain surpluses. This
kind of problem was associated with a shrinking of research
dollars for agriculture. In our department at Saskatoon during
the late 1960s and much of the 1970s research funding was
restricted solely to the NRC staff research grants. All our pro-
duction research grants which had come from industry or gov-
ernments in the earlier years disappeared. Similarly, western
farmers overwhelmingly rejected direct participation in
agriculture research through an 80 per cent plus rejection of
research dollars as a check-off on grains.

These facts are rather important since in the 1980s we find
ourselves in a position where new farming systems hold consid-
erable promise as a means of overcoming soil quality decline or
soil degradation. At the same time, many of the components of
a water-efficient farming system have not been adequately
researched for farmers to adopt. I would like to give a very
simple illustration of “zero till,” a practice in which tillage is
very much reduced, or even being reduced to zero at its
extremity. This is a practice, which has been very extensively
researched with respect to the corn belt in the United States,
for example, and is a practice which has been adopted by
roughly 60 per cent of the farmers in that region because it is
energy efficient and has many other desirable attributes. At
the present time it is not feasible for farmers in western
Canada to put it into practice simply because of the almost
absolute lack of research in this area. The only group which
has been doing any significant research on zero till, which is a
very highly water-efficient farming practice, has been the
Lethbridge research station. Of course, Lethbridge conditions
are typical of only a small part of western Canada.

At the present time, and in accord with practices which have
been going on for some 80 years, this slide depicts the type of
scene which is so typical across western Canada. It happens to
be a view of the area west of Swift Current, the area from
which I come. This is a very typical scene throughout the prai-
rie region where up to 50 per cent of the cultivated area is idle
in any one year. As many of you know, the percentage of the
land in fallow in any one year has been roughly 40 to 42 per
cent in Saskatchewan. In Alberta it has been somewhat less,
ranging from 30 per cent to 35 per cent. In Manitoba it is even
less again, ranging from between 15 per cent to about 20 per
cent.

This type of farming system is looked upon as one of the
more outstanding and effective farming systems in a semi-arid
region, something which I have been told several times as I
have travelled around the world. How effective has it been?
Let us just take a quick look at some of the other cereal grow-
ing areas around the world; the yield statistics show that the
prairie region is very close to being on the lowest rung on the
production ladder. Certainly, when production is expressed not
necessarily on seeded acres but on cultivated acres, we can see

[Traduction)]

le recours excessif 4 une pratique que I’on reconnaissait déja a
I’époque comme une cause de la grave détérioration de la qua-
lité des sols.

Je voudrais dire quelques mots au sujet des années 70 au
cours desquelles la production de céréales a souvent été excé-
dentaire. Ce probléme était attribué en partie a la diminution
des crédits alloués a la recherche agricole. A la fin des années
60 et durant la majeure partie des années 70, les seuls fonds
que recevait notre département des sciences du sol étaient les
subventions de recherche accordées au personnel du CNR.
L’industrie ou les gouvernements qui, au cours de cette
période, versaient des subventions 4 la recherche ont cessé de le
faire. Par ailleurs, les agriculteurs de I’Ouest ont rejeté I'idée
d’une participation directe dans la recherche agricole en refu-
sant dans une proportion de 80 p. 100 tout prélévement sur les
céréales.

Ces faits revétent assez d’importance puisque nous connais-
sons maintenant dans les années 80 des systémes agricoles qui
pourraient nous aider a luter contre la dégradation de la qua-
lité des sols. Nous n’avons toutefois pas encore effectué assez
de recherches sur les techniques de culture fondées sur une
gestion efficace de I’eau pour qu’elles puissent étre d’ores et
déja adoptées par les agriculteurs. J’aimerais vous donner un
trés bref exemple au sujet du non-labour, une pratique cultu-
rale qui consiste a réduire de beaucoup les labours ou méme de
les éliminer complétement. C’est une pratique sur laquelle on a
effectué beaucoup de recherches dans la zone de production du
mais aux Etats-Unis ou elle a été adoptée par pres de 60 p. 100
des agriculteurs parce qu’elle exige peu d’énergie et présente
de nombreux avantages. A I'heure actuelle, il est impossible
aux agriculteurs de 'Ouest canadien d’adopter cette pratique
simplement parce que nous ne sommes pas suffisamment ren-
seignés 4 son sujet. La station de recherche de Lethbridge est
la seule & avoir entrepris des recherches sur le non-labour qui
est une pratique culturale fondée sur une gestion efficace de
'eau. Les conditions qui existent 4 Lethbridge ne sont repré-
sentatives que d’une infime partie de I’Ouest canadien.

Cette disposition illustre la situation type dans I'Ouest cana-
dien et refléte des pratiques culturales vieilles de 80 ans. C’est
une vue de la région 4 ’ouest de Swift Current dont je suis ori-
ginaire. La méme situation se produit dans I’ensemble de la
région des Prairies o jusqu’a 50 p. 100 des terres sont mises
en jachére au cours d’'une méme année. Comme bon nombre
d’entre vous le savez, de 40 4 42 p. 100 des terres en moyenne
sont en jachére en Saskatchewan chaque année. Ce pourcen-
tage est un peu moins élevé pour I’Alberta ou il se situe entre
30 et 35 p. 100. Il n’est que de 15 4 20 p. 100 au Manitoba.

Comme j’ai pu le constater lors de mes voyages autour du
monde, ce genre de systéme agricole est considéré comme le
systéme le plus efficace et le plus rentable dans une région
semi-aride. Peut-on mesurer cette efficacité? Voyons d’abord
rapidement quelques-unes des autres régions du monde ou I’on
cultive des céréales et nous constaterons que les statistiques du
rendement démontrent que les Prairies sont I'une des régions
les moins productives au monde. Lorsqu’on considére la pro-
duction par rapport 4 la superficie des terres cultivées et non
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it drops to the lowest in the world. So from the standpoint of
our competitors around the world we really have nothing much
to be proud of in terms of production. Of course, one of the
major reasons for leaving so much land idle across the west in
the form of summer fallow has been the inability of farmers to
grow the type of yields which they feel are required to survive
on stubble land. Traditionally, in looking at stubble fallow
yield ratios in the Swift Current area, approximately 65 per
cent of summer fallow wheat yield is grown on stubble land.
Barley is somewhat better, and flax is about the same. Econo-
mists tell us that if you cannot grow about 72 per cent of sum-
mer fallow yield on stubble land you will slowly go bankrupt.
So it is obvious, even in the more humid regions of the prov-
ince, the yields in stubble land are much lower than in fallow.
The Red River Valley is an example of this. Farmers are
aware that on stubble land they have to buy more fertilizer,
they have more weed problems and many other problems to
solve. The easy way out is to drop back to the very high fre-
quency of summer fallow. We really have not learned how to
recrop land, even under very high moisture conditions, in com-
parison to farmers in England, France and Germany who,
when recropping, exceed summer fallow yields. They are very
much more effective.

If one looks in from the outside one would say that in
Alberta there has been a phenomenal yield increase since the
mid-1940s. Indeed, one cannot quarrel with that observation.
Yields have gone up quite dramatically. The same is true for
Manitoba, which shows a very nice yield increase. There is
perhaps a more dramatic one in Saskatchewan than in either
Alberta or Manitoba, because Saskatchewan was right at the
bottom of the totem pole in terms of production in the late
1930s. There has been a dramatic yield increase. Again, how-
ever, this reflects technology that will fit into the crop-fallow
system, nothing more. We have rejected all other kinds of new
technology.

We have not really done that well when you look at the five-
year average of 27 bushels per acre. If it were calculated on
the basis of cultivated land (cropped plus fallow area) only 17
bushels per acre has been produced. Again, the reason is the
inability of our farmers to successfully recrop and attain eco-
nomic yields on stubble.

We have not done too badly, but let us look a little more
deeply into it to see what effect that farming system—that
simplistic monocrop crop-fallow farming system—has had on
our soils. Our fragile soils have deteriorated rapidly, which is a
direct result of a farming system which is incompatible with
the soils. This is what I would like to develop clearly now.
There has been a dramatic decrease in soil humus, ranging
from 40 to 60 per cent. As we frequently say when we are
speaking to farmer groups, we have depleted our bank account
to the point where we are now in serious trouble.

[Traduction]

des terres ensemencées, on voit que les Prairies viennent au
dernier rang pour leur productivité. Nous ne pouvons donc pas
étre fiers face 4 nos concurrents internationaux. L’une des rai-
sons principales pour lesquelles on juge qu’il faut pratiquer la
jacheére d’été sur autant de terres est que les agriculteurs ne
savent pas quels types de cultures peuvent prospérer sur les ter-
res laissées en chaumes. D’ordinaire, le rendement du blé sur
chaumes apres jachére est d’environ 65 p. 100 dans la région
de Swift Current. Les rendements en orge et en lin sont com-
parables. Naturellement pas beaucoup de colza dans la zone de
sols bruns. Selon les économistes, un agriculteur qui ne peut
pas obtenir un rendement en culture sur chaumes d’environ 72
p. 100 apres la jachére d’été s’achemine lentement vers la
ruine. Il est donc évident, méme dans les régions plus humides
de la province, que les rendements sur chaumes sont inférieurs
aux rendements des cultures aprés jachére. La vallée de la
riviére Rouge en est un exemple. Les cultivateurs savent qu’ils
doivent acheter davantage d’engrais pour les cultures sur chau-
mes, qu’ils ont des problémes de mauvaises herbes, etc. La
solution facile consiste a pratiquer trés souvent la jachére
d’été. Nous n’avons vraiment pas appris comment remettre les
terres en culture, méme lorsque les conditions d’humidité sont
trés bonnes, alors que les cultivateurs d’Angleterre, de France
et d’Allemagne, lorsqu’ils remettent leurs terres en culture
obtiennent des rendements supérieurs a ceux des cultures aprés
jachére. Ils sont beaucoup plus efficaces que nous.

Pour les non-initiés, I'augmentation des rendements semble
phénoménale en Alberta depuis le milieu des années 40. En
fait, c’est tout a fait vrai. Les rendements se sont accrus consi-
dérablement. Il en va de méme pour le Manitoba ou les rensei-
gnements ont augmenté de fagon appréciable. Cependant,
'augmentation est beaucoup plus marquée en Saskatchewan
qu’en Alberta et au Manitoba parce que la production en Sas-
katchewan était en queue de peloton a la fin des années 30.
L’augmentation des rendements dans cette province a été
impressionnante. Toutefois, les augmentations sont dues a
I'emploi de techniques qui cadrent bien avec le systéme de
rotation culture-jachére, sans plus. Nous avons rejeté toutes les
autres techniques nouvelles.

Nos résultats ne sont pas si impressionnants si nous exami-
nons la moyenne quinquennale qui est de 27 boisseaux par
acre. Si I’on calculait cette moyenne en utilisant les terres cul-
tivées (terres en culture et jachéres) elle serait de 17 boisseaux
par acre seulement. Cela est dii encore une fois a I'incapacité
de nos cultivateurs a remettre les terres en culture et 4 obtenir
des rendements satisfaisants sur chaumes.

Nous nous en sommes tirés assez bien, mais il nous faut exa-
miner plus en profondeur I'incidence sur nos sols de ce systéme
agricole—systéme simpliste de rotation de monoculture-
jachére. La dégradation rapide de nos sols fragiles est le résul-
tat direct d’un systéme agricole qui n’est pas compatible avec
nos sols. C’est ce que je voudrais expliquer clairement mainte-
nant. L’humus du sol a diminué dans une proportion variant
entre 40 et 60 p. 100. Comme nous le disons souventlorsque
nous parlons a des groupes de cultivateurs, nous avons telle-
ment épuisé nos ressources en banque que nous nous retrou-
vons maintenant dans une situation trés précaire.
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Scenes such as that depicted here are all too common across
the brown, the dark brown and the black soil zone. Balding
knolls and, very often, gully-ridden channels in the lower parts
of the landscapes are all too common. The balding knolls, of
course, are a reflection of the very rapid drop in humus con-
tent. As the humus degrades or as the bacteria break down the
carbon compounds in the soil, the soil turns lighter and lighter.
It becomes more like the material upon which it started 10,000
years ago.

Results of many studies—this is just one that was carried
out in our department—show that, with the continuation of a
crop-crop-fallow system, this curve indeed should level out
because the humus that remains in the soil is so resistant to
decomposition or break-down by the soil organisms that there
should really be no further change. That is not so, however,
because erosion is continuing at an accelerated rate. Thus, the
depletion of top soil continues. The net effect of this, however,
is that as long as the humus was breaking down, the soil was
turning out nitrogen and other plant nutrients—nitrogen sul-
phur and micronutrients in particular—for the crop that was
going to be grown the next year. As soon as this curve levels
off, that bank account has already dried up. What farmers are
finding more and more frequently as they get around this por-
tion of the curve is that they have to apply what, to them, are
enormous quantities of synthetic fertilizers to compensate for
the fact that the soil is no longer turning it out.

How much nitrogen has our soil turned out? We have
estimated, based primarily upon data collected by the Sas-
katchewan soils survey, that the amount of nitrogen that has
been released by soil degradation is equivalent to roughly
$27.5 billion in terms of the 1981 price of fertilizer and nitro-
gen. We would not be complaining if we had used this nitrogen
to grow crops, but we have not. The degradation, the loss of
soil organic matter and the release of nitrogen, has been occur-
ring at such a rapid rate that we have used about a third of
that nitrogen to grow crops, while two-thirds of it has been
wasted.

The ability of the soil to turn out nitrogen is reflected in this
curve. The black soil that initially turned out roughly 140
pounds of nitrogen per acre per year is now capable of releas-
ing around 10 pounds of nitrogen per acre per year. Remember
that it takes about 100 pounds of nitrogen to grow a crop, so
we are clearly in a deficit situation.

I mentioned earlier that, of the $27.5 billion worth of nitro-
gen that our soils have released, we have only used a third of it
for crop production. Approximately a third has been leached
down below the surface, as can be seen from these cumulative
inorganic nitrogen profiles for the dark brown soils and the
black soils. Our crops are capable of feeding roughly to a
depth of 1.2 metres, or four feet. The nitrogen that is down
below that is essentially lost to the kinds of crops that we are
growing at the present time. What this is doing, largely, is con-
taminating the ground water.

It is very rare now to find water that is not contaminated
with nitrate nitrogen. Not too long ago we were involved in a
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[Traduction]

Les scénes que vous voyez ici sont malheureusement trop
communes dans ’ensemble de la zone de sols bruns, brun foncé
et noirs. On trouve trop fréquemment au bas du paysage des
monticules dégarnis et, trés souvent, des chenaux ravinés. Les
monticules dégarnis sont en fait le résultat de la réduction tres
rapide de la teneur en humus. Quand I’humus se détériore ou
que les bactéries dégradent les composés du carbone, le sol
devient de plus en plus péle. Il ressemble alors aux matériaux a
partir desquels s’est formé le sol il y a dix mille ans.

Les résultats de nombreuses études—celle-ci n’est qu'une de
celles effectuées par mon ministére—démontrent que si l'on
continue d’utiliser le systéme culture-culture-jachére, cette
courbe devrait s’aplanir puisque ’humus qui reste dans le sol
résiste si bien 4 la décomposition ou a la dégradation par les
organismes du sol qu'il ne devrait pas y avoir d’autres change-
ments. Toutefois, cela n’est pas le cas puisque I’érosion se
poursuit & un rythme accéléré. Ainsi, la couche arable continue
de s’épuiser. Cela revient a dire, cependant, que tant que
I’humus se dégrade, le sol libére de ’azote et d’autres éléments
nutritifs—azote, soufre et oligo-éléments en particulier—pour
la culture qui allait &tre ensemencée I’année suivante. Dés que
la courbe s’aplanit, le compte en banque est déja a sec. Les cul-
tivateurs découvrent de plus en plus fréquemment, en essayant
de modifier le profil de la courbe, qu’ils doivent répandre ce
qu’ils considérent comme des quantités énormes d’engrais syn-
thétiques pour compenser le fait que le sol n’arrive plus a pro-
duire ses propres ¢léments fertilisants.

Combien d’azote notre sol a-t-il produit? Nous avons estimé,
surtout au moyen de données recueillies lors de I’enquéte sur
les sols en Saskatchewan, que la quantité d’azote libérée par la
dégradation du sol équivaut a environ 27,5 milliards de dollars
au prix des engrais azotés en 1981. Nous ne nous plaindrions
pas si nous avions utilisé cet azote pour produire des récoltes,
mais ce n'est pas le cas. La dégradation, la perte de matiéres
organiques du sol et la libération de I’azote se sont produits si
rapidement que nous n’avons utilisé qu’un tiers environ de cet
azote pour les cultures alors que les deux autres tiers ont été
gaspillés.

L’aptitude du sol & produire de ’azote est illustrée par cette
courbe. Le sol noir qui produisait initialement environ 140
livres d’azote par acre par année, ne libére plus aujourd’hui
que 10 livres environ d’azote par acre par année. Il faut envi-
ron 100 livres d’azote pour faire pousser une culture et nous
avons donc un déficit.

J’ai mentionné plus t6t que nous avons utilisé pour produire
des récoltes seulement un tiers de 1’azote produit par nos sols et
qui est évalué a 27,5 milliards de dollars. Environ un tiers de
cet azote a été lessivé et entrainé sous la surface comme le
montrent ces profils cumulatifs d’azote inorganique dans les
sols brun-foncé et noirs. Nos cultures sont capables d’aller
chercher les aliments nutritifs dont elles ont besoin a4 une pro-
fondeur d’environ 1,2 métre, ou quatre pieds. L’azote plus pro-
fond est perdu pour les cultures que nous pratiquons a I’heure
actuelle. Cela est di essentiellement & la contamination des
eaux souterraines.

Nous trouvons rarement des puits dont I’eau n’est pas conta-
minée par I’azote nitrique. Il n’y a pas si longtemps nous avons
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case that was very close to a law suit, where a livestock enter-
prise was to be sued as the probable contributor to high nitrate
nitrogen levels in ground waters in the areas surrounding it.
However, we showed very clearly that they had nothing to do
with it, but that we, those in agriculture ourselves, were the
prime contributors to the high nitrate nitrogen levels that are
now so common in ground water.

The research group at the Agriculture Canada Station at
Swift Current—and I understand that Mr. Whelan discussed
this aspect to some extent with honourable senators yester-
day—has in recent years confirmed all our concerns with
respect to the degradation of soils and to the decline in soil
quality. This illustrated a part of Dr. Campbell’s research, in
which he has shown that the ability of the soil to turn out
nitrogen has dropped rapidly. PMN stands for “potential min-
eralization of nitrogen,” and the decrease here has ranged
from about 40 to 70 per cent, a very significant decrease. The
drop in natural fertility level, particularly the nitrogen fertility
level of our soils, is in part responsible for the decline in grain
quality—protein content—which has been so noticeable in the
last two decades. You can see that Saskatchewan, which at one
time traditionally produced high protein grain, no longer does.
If I had updated this slide on the basis of 1981-82-83 data, you
would see that the protein content of Saskatchewan grain had
fallen below that of Alberta—again a reflection, at least in
part, of the soil deterioration which has been so pronounced in
Saskatchewan as compared to Alberta and Manitoba.

In the five-year period ending in 1978, out of every 100
pounds of nitrogen used by our crops in Saskatchewan, 89
came from soil and 11 from fertilizers. On the basis of the kind
of evidence that I have just reviewed with you, we are forecast-
ing that just around the corner this ratio will invert, and for
every 100 pounds of nitrogen used by our crop, we will have to
buy 75 of it, with only 25 coming from the soil. On some farms
it may be even worse than that.

This means that we are going to have to purchase very much
larger quantities of fertilizer nitrogen. This, then, is the reason
why, as you look into the future—from 1983, for example,
down the road—the nitrogen fertilizer purchases forecast for
western Canada will increase very dramatically. This, of
course, is the reason why fertilizer nitrogen trade has expanded
so rapidly. They recognize these factors, accept from and build
their plants.

In Saskatchewan, at the present time, farmers use approxi-
mately 130,000 tonnes. We are predicting that the figure will
g0 up to at least 800,000 tonnes. It markets are available for
the grain, it is very likely that western Canada will consume
something in excess of two million metric tonnes of fertilizer
nitrogen before the year 2000.

Effective management of nitrogen presents a greater chal-
lenge to the farm operator than does any other fertilizer nutri-
ent. We must minimize losses. I will not go into detail on some
of these—denitrification, leaching and so on—but I might
mention in passing that we completed a survey this past year of
losses under summer fallow fields in Saskatchewan, and the

[Traduction]
failli étre mélés a des poursuites judiciaires quand une entre-

prise d’élevage devait étre actionnée en justice pour avoir con-
tribué au niveau élevé d’azote nitrique dans les eaux souterrai-
nes des régions entourant son exploitation. Toutefois, nous
avons démontré trés clairement qu’elle n’y était pour rien mais
que nous, les agriculteurs, étions les principaux responsables
des niveaux ¢levés d’azote nitrique que I’on constate si souvent
dans les eaux souterraines.

Le groupe de recherche actuel d’Agriculture Canada i la
station de Swift Current—j’ai cru comprendre que M. Whelan
avait discuté cet aspect de la question en profondeur avec les
honorables sénateurs, hier—a confirmé ces derniéres années
toutes nos inquiétudes en ce qui concerne la dégradation des
sols et la baisse de leur qualité. Cela confirme en partie les
résultats de recherche de M. Campbell qui a démontré que le
sol a rapidement perdu sa capacité a produire de 'azote. Le
sigle MPA signifie «minéralisation potentielle de I’azote» et la
diminution varie entre 40 et 60 p. 100, soit une baisse appré-
ciable. La chute des niveaux naturels de fertilité, surtout la fer-
tilité des sols en azote, est en partie responsable du déclin de la
qualité des céréales—teneur en protéines—observé au cours
des deux derniéres décennies. Vous voyez que la Saskatchewan
ne produit plus de céréales a forte teneur protéique comme elle
le faisait dans le passé. Si j’avais mis & jour cette diapositive
avec les données pour 1981-1982-1983, vous verriez que la
teneur en protéines des céréales en Saskatchewan est inférieure
a celle de I’Alberta et cela résulte, du moins en partie, de la
détérioration des sols qui est plus prononcée en Saskatchewan
qu’en Alberta ou au Manitoba.

Pour la période de cinq ans se terminant en 1978, pour cha-
que 100 livres d’azote utilisé par les cultures en Saskatchewan,
89 livres provenaient du sol et 11 des engrais. Etant donné les
faits que je viens de vous exposer, nous prévoyons que, d’ici
peu, la proportion sera inversée et que pour chaque 100 livres
d’azote utilisé par nos cultures, nous devrons en acheter 75
puisque le sol n’en produira plus que 25. Sur certaines fermes,
la situation sera encore pire.

Cela signifie que nous devrons acheter des quantités beau-
coup plus considérables d’engrais azotés. Voild la raison pour
laquelle, si vous songez 4 I’avenir—a compter de 1983, par
exemple—les achats d’engrais azotés prévus pour I’Ouest du
Canada s’accroitront considérablement. C’est la, bien sir, la
raison pour laquelle le commerce des engrais azotés a connu
une expansion si rapide. Les producteurs ont constaté cet état
de choses, I’ont accepté et ont construit leurs usines.

En Saskatchewan, a I’heure actuelle, les cultivateurs utili-
sent environ 130 000 tonnes de ces engrais. Nous prévoyons
que ce chiffre atteindra au moins 800 000 tonnes. Si des
débouchés s’ouvrent pour les céréales, il est fort probable que
’Ouest consommera au-deld de deux millions de tonnes métri-
ques d’engrais azotés avant 1’an 2000.

La gestion efficace de I'azote pose un plus grand défi aux
exploitants agricoles que celle de n’importe quel autre élément
nutritif. Nous devons minimiser nos pertes. Je n’ai pas l'inten-
tion de m’étendre sur certains probléemes—dénitrification, les-
sivage, etc.—mais je pourrais mentionner en passant que nous
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results indicated that the loss by denitrification alone ranged
from approximately 25 to 100 kilograms per hectare. That is in
contrast to a cropped field, where the losses are negligible and
difficult even to measure.

So for no reason other than efficiency, of crop use of nitro-
gen, we have to question seriously the practice of summer fal-
lowing. In addition, during the fallow period there is a lot of
leaching of nitrogen that occurs while again their is very little
when the land is cropped.

We are directing a lot of research at the present time to how
we can effectively and quickly rebuild soil nitrogen reserves,
because we feel it is essential, if western Canadian agriculture
is going to maintain its competitiveness in the world, that the
soil at least supply half the crop requirements in any one
year—at least half; so we will then only have to buy the other
half. I we go much below that, it will be very difficult for west-
ern Canadian agriculture to compete effectively with the Aus-
tralians, Argentina and, of course, the United States.

I did not really come here to talk about nitrogen. Let us look
at some of the other ways in which our soils have deteriorated.
Extensive saline seepage has occurred. That is probably a way
in which our soils have deteriorated, of which almost every
farmer in western Canada is cognizant. Scenes such at this are
all too common—areas not at the lower end of the slope but
halfway up, in midslope positions; soils that at one time were
probably the most productive but which are now becoming
sterile because of very extensive saline seepage.

This is a view in southwestern Saskatchewan, near Shauna-
von, where salinisation in recent years has probably been as
serious as in any other area. Here we see a very large portion
of the landscape, which at one time, according to the farmer-
owner, was indeed the most productive part of his farm. We
are looking at about three sections of land, of which probably
60 per cent is now salinised to varying degrees. This is a direct
reflection of an agricultural system which uses water ineffi-
ciently. The water that is not used to grow crops is free to recy-
cle in the superficial materials and it seeps out at the mid and
lower slope positions, bringing with it salts which effectively
sterilize the soil.

The PFRA, as most of you are aware, has evaluated a whole
spectrum of factors which have adversely affected the quality
of soils. Amongst them, of course, is salinity. They have put a
dollar sign on the impact of salinisation, on production over the
next 17 years. They are proposing that at a minimum agricul-
ture will lose something in the vicinity of $4.5 billion from that
factor alone. That is a significant adverse effect, directly
attributable to our present farming system.

Many other changes occur in the soil as organic matter is
lost. The surface soil begins to puddle, to crust, and is much
more susceptible to erosion. We do not have time to discuss all
of these factors this morning.

This is a view of a black soil, a very highly productive soil
not too far from Lloydminster, where the farmer-operator was

[Traduction)

avons terminé cette année une enquéte sur les pertes enregis-
trées 4 1’égard des terres mises en jachére d’été en Saskatche-
wan et les résultats révélent que les pertes dues a la seule déni-
trification varient entre environ 20 et 100 kilogrammes par
hectare. Par contraste, les pertes sur les terres en culture sont
négligeables et méme difficiles a mesurer.

Ainsi, pour la seule raison de I'efficacité, de I'utilisation de
'azote par les cultures, nous devons sérieusement remettre en
question la pratique de la jachére d’été. En outre, le phéno-
méne du lessivage de I’azote est plus accentué sur les terres en
jachere que sur les terres en culture.

Nous effectuons a I’heure actuelle de nombreuses recherches
pour déterminer comment nous pouvons, efficacement et rapi-
dement, reconstituer les réserves d’azote du sol car si nous vou-
lons que I'agriculture dans I’Ouest demeure compétitive sur les
marchés mondiaux, il est essentiel que le sol puisse fournir au
moins la motié de ’azote utilisé par les cultures en une année;
il nous faudra alors acheter seulement la moitié des quantités
requises. Si nous devons acheter des quantités d’azote supé-
rieures a ce seuil, I'agriculture dans I’Ouest aura de la diffi-
culté a livrer concurrence aux Australiens, aux Argentins et
bien siir, aux Américains.

Je ne suis pas venu ici pour vous parler de I’azote. Exami-
nons maintenant les autres aspects de la dégradation de nos
sols. Il y a beaucoup d’infiltration saline. C’est probablement
I'un des phénoménes qui ont entrainé la détérioration du sol, ce
que savent pertinemment la plupart des agriculteurs de I'Ouest
canadien. Trop souvent, malheureusement, les terres situées
non pas au bas d’une pente mais & mi-pente et qui €taient pro-
bablement les plus productives & un moment donné deviennent
stériles a cause d’une infiltration saline accentuée.

On voit ici une zone du sud-ouest de la Saskatchewan, prés
de Shaunavon, ou la salinisation des derniéres années a proba-
blement été aussi marquée qu’ailleurs. Une grande partie de
ces terres étaient, selon le propriétaire de ’exploitation agri-
cole, les plus productives de toutes & un moment donné. On
voit ici trois sections dont probablement 60 p. 100 sont mainte-
nant salinisées a divers degrés. C’est un exemple typique de
systéme agricole ou I’eau est utilisée de maniére inefficace.
L’eau qui n’est pas utilisée pour la culture se recycle dans le
matériau superficiel et s’infiltre au milieu et au bas de la
pente, transportant avec elle des sels qui rendent le sol stérile.

L’ARAP, comme la plupart d’entre vous le savez, a évalué
I'ensemble des facteurs qui ont altéré la qualité des sols. Parmi
ces facteurs, il y a évidemment la salinité. L’ARAP a évalué
les coits de la salinisation pour production d’ici les dix-sept
prochaines années. Selon elle, I'agriculture perdra au bas mot
environ 4,5 milliards de dollars a cause de ce seul facteur. Ce
préjudice appréciable est directement attribuable a notre sys-
téme de culture actuel.

Bien d’autres changements se produisent dans le sol. La sur-
face du sol commence a étre couverte de flaques d’eau puis de
croiite et devient ainsi beaucoup plus sujette a I’érosion. Nous
n’avons pas le temps ce matin d’aborder tous les facteurs.

Voici un sol noir, trés productif, non loin de Lloydminster;
I’exploitant de la ferme était extrémement préoccupé par la
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extremely worried about the low productivity. He had dif-
ficulty getting germination and the grain that did germinate
looked sick. He thought that perhaps he had a disease prob-
lem—but not so. What is happening here is that the surface
soil puddled very easily, and the small percentage of seedlings
that did germinate suffered from an acute shortage of oxygen
in the soil; and so they simply did not grow. The incidence of
wind erosion is, of course, increasing. Again, this is because
the organic cements are no longer there to hold the particles
together, so the soil slakes down very readily.

A lot of research is being done on wind erosion and water
erosion at the present time. We are capitalizing on a technique
that is relatively new but very effective. In the late 1950s early
1960s a number of atomic bombs were explosed. One of the
fallout particles from these bombs is a radioactive isotope
called Cesium 137, which is foreign to our soils. The area
along the 49th parallel received a uniform blanket of Cesium
137, which adheres very tenaciously to the soil. For example, if
we know that 8 nanocuries of Cesium 137 had fallen over an
area of land and we can now only find 4, we know that the top-
soil was depleted by roughly 50 per cent over the past 20 years.
It is a simplistic but effective way which enables us to go to a
farmer’s field and relate farming systems or soil stewardship to
past erosion. This slide shows two farms with very similar soils.
One farm used soil conserving methods and the other soil
destructive methods, the typical C-C-F rotatim. The time to
lose one centimetre of topsoil is four years on one Farm com-
pared to forty-four years on the other farm. The impact of this
is indicated in footnote No. 2: For each centimetre of topsoil
lost yields are reduced by roughly 70 kilograms, or 1 bushel,
per acre.

Very much more rainfall runs off because the soil is no
longer capable of taking in water very rapidly—because the
crumbs disperse very quickly and seal. So much of the water
moves rapidly over the surface into the low lying areas and cre-
ates problems such as flooding. It robs the crop that will be
seeded on the upland of moisture which it needs so badly under
our semi-arid conditions. Perhaps this is indicated more
dramatically in this slide which indicates that at the present
time we lose about 95 per cent or more of the snow water, a
resource that is uniquely characteristic of Western Canada but
which has been largely ignored. It has been allowed to create
problems such as the flooding we see here. If I were living
down this road I would go to my reeve and criticize him for not
building the road higher so I could move my products to mar-
ket when, in reality, I should do everyting to keep this snow
water where it falls.

Two decades of intensive soil water research has shown that
our crop fallow system is notoriously water inefficient. It is still
difficult for many people to accept the fact that a practice such
as summer fallow, which was conceived to conserve water is at
the present time the weakest link in our farming system in
terms of using water efficiently. Let us see how efficiently we

[Traduction)

faible productivité de sa terre. Il avait du mal a faire germer
les grains et ceux qui germaient avaient air faible. Il se disait
que c’était peut-étre une maladie, mais tel n’était pas le cas.
Ce qui se produisait, c’est qu’il se formait facilement des fla-
ques d’eau a la surface du sol et le faible nombre de plants qui
germaient souffraient du manque prononcé d’oxygéne dans le
sol; ils ne poussaient donc tout simplement pas. Evidemment,
I'incidence de I’érosion éolienne augmente. Encore une fois,
C’est parce que les ciments organiques ne sont plus ld pour
retenir les particules ensemble, de sorte que le sol s’effrite trés
rapidement.

Actuellement, beaucoup de recherches se font sur 1’érosion
éolienne et I’érosion hydrique. Nous tirons profit d’une techni-
que relativement nouvelle mais trés efficace. A la fin des
années 50 et au début des années 60, un certain nombre de
bombes atomiques ont explosés. L'une des particules des
retombées est I'isotope radioactif Cesium 137, inconnu dans
nos sols. La zone située le long du 49¢ paralléle a regu une cou-
che uniforme de Cesium 137 qui adhére au sol de fagon trés
tenace. Par exemple, si nous savons que huit nano-curies de
Cesium 137 sont tombés sur une zone et que nous ne parve-
nons a en trouver que quatre, nous savons que la moitié de la
couche arabe a été emportée ces vingt dernieres années. C’est
une fagon simpliste mais efficace qui nous permet d’établir un
rapport entre les systémes de culture ou la gestion des sols et
’érosion passée. Cette diapositive montre deux fermes dont les
sols sont trés semblables. L’une utilisait des méthodes de con-
servation du sol et I'autre des méthodes destructrices, a savoir
la rotation culture-culture-jachére. Un centimétre de terre
arabe se perd en quatre ans sur l'une, et en quarante-quatre
sur l'autre. L’incidence de ce phénomene est illustré au renvoi
n° 2: pour chaque centimétre de terre arable perdu, le rende-
ment est réduit d’environ 70 kilogrammes, c’est-a-dire d’un
boisseau par acre.

Il y a beaucoup plus de ruissellement parce que le sol n’est
plus capable d’absorber I’eau rapidement; les particules se dis-
persent trés vite et créent une couche imperméable. Une
grande partie de 1’eau s’écoule alors vers les basses terres, d’ou
les problémes comme les inondations. Cela enléve aux plants
situés en haut d’une pente I’humidité dont ils ont vraiment
besoin dans nos conditions semi-arides. Ce phénoméne est
peut-étre encore mieux illustré dans cette diapositive qui mon-
tre qu'a I’heure actuelle nous perdons 95 p. 100 ou plus de
'eau issue de la fonte des neiges, ressource qui caractérise

"I’Ouest canadien seulement mais qui a été grandement ignorée.

Ainsi, on a permis a cette eau de créer des problémes comme
les inondations que nous voyons ici. Si je vivais le long de cette
route, j’irais voir le maire et lui reprocherait de ne pas avoir
fait construire la route plus haut de maniére d ce que je puisse
transporter mes produits au marché, alors qu'en réalité, je
devrais tout faire pour garder cette eau de neige 1a ou elle
tombe.

Deux décennies de recherches intensives sur I’eau contenue
dans le sol ont montré que notre systéme de rotation culture-
jachére est éminemment inefficace sur le plan de I'utilisation
de I’eau. Pour beaucoup de gens, il est difficile de croire qu'une
pratique comme la jachére d’été, qui a été congue pour conser-
ver ’eau, constitue actuellement le maillon le plus faible de
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are using water. During the 20-year period ending in 1929, for
each centimetre of water that was available we produced 20
pounds of grain per acre or 23 kilograms of grain per hectare.
As of the period ending in 1978 the quantity is exactly the
same. In spite of all the new technology, there has been no
change in the efficiency with which we use water, and this in
an area where most of us thought the major restraint on pro-
duction was due to the lack of water.

The weakest link in our present system is the extensive use
of summer fallowing. It has been well documented across the
province that from 75 per cent to 95 per cent of 20 months of
precipitation, about 60 centimetre, is lost.

Recognition of the unprecedented decline of soil quality has
been very recent. Roughly 12 years ago at a Farm and Home
Week meeting in Saskatoon I had some very uncomplimentary
things to say about summer fallow. In the weeks following my
talk, which was widely transmitted by press and radio, I
received comments from politicians, scientists, administrators
and farmers which had one main thrust, that I did not know
what I was talking about. Of course, that is not true today. In
1981 The Cattlemen published an article entitled “Western
Farmers, a Doomed Species.” The editor very effectively
traced events in history which clearly showed that nowhere in
the world had agriculture been successful for a very long
period of time in a semi-arid climate. A study commissioned
by Environment Canada called “Global 2000, Implications for
Canada, 1981 “indicated that the breadbasket of Western
Canada may be shortly relegated to a branch-line operation.
They indicated that approximately 7 million metric tonnes of
grain might be available for export by the year 2000. One of
the reasons for their conclusion is the very serious decline in
soil quality.

I referred to the PFRA study earlier, which includes per-
haps the most detailed evaluation of research findings in the
general area of soil degradation. They concluded that a major
conservation initiative is not only essential but has to be car-
ried out if agriculture is to be successfully maintained through-
out the Prairie region. I was delighted when the Canadian Fed-
eration of Agriculture published the results of a workshop held
in December, 1982 which not only confirmed in their estima-
tion the seriousness of soil degradation but went on to say that
it had been obscured for years for various reasons which I will
not go into at the present time. This was followed in Saskatch-
ewan in 1983 by the first symposium sponsored by a farm
organization, the Saskatchewan Federation of Agriculture,
which, again, included a series of reports from scientists
throughout Western Canada on soil degradation and what it
meant to the farmers of Western Canada. The apprehension
reflected in these observations is real and is based on sound
information. I would like to underline that the forecasts
assume no change in farming practices.

[Traduction)

notre systéme d’agriculture au point de vue d’une utilisation
efficace de ’eau. Voyons jusqu’a quel point nous utilisons I’eau
efficacement. Pendant la période de vingt ans qui s’est termi-
née en 1929, pour chaque centimétre d’eau disponible, nous
avons produit 20 livres de céréales par acre, ou 23 kilogram-
mes par hectare. Pour la période qui s’est terminée en 1978, la
quantité est exactement la méme. En dépit de toutes les nou-
velles techniques, il n’y a pas eu de changement dans I’effica-
cité de I'utilisation de I’eau, alors que la majorité d’entre nous
estimaient que le manque d’eau était le principal obstacle a la
production.

Le maillon le plus faible du systéme actuel est Iutilisation
massive de la jachére d’été. On a prouvé que dans la province,
entre 75 et 95 p. 100, ou 60 centimétres, des précipitations sur
vingt mois se perdent.

Ce n’est que récemment qu’on a reconnu la dégradation sans
précédent de la qualité du sol. Il y a environ 12 ans, lors d’une
réunion tenue a4 Saskatoon pendant une foire agricole, j'ai eu
’occasion de parler en termes peu élogieux de la jachére d’été.
Dans les semaines qui ont suivi mon allocution, qui a été large-
ment retransmise par la presse et la radio, j’ai regu de la part
d’hommes politiques, de scientifiques, d’administrateurs et
d’agriculteurs des observations selon lesquelles je ne savais pas
de quoi je parle. Evidemment, le temps a prouvé qu’ils avaient
tort. En 1981, la revue The Cattlemen a publié un article inti-
tulé «Western Farmers, a Doomed Species.» Le rédacteur
retragait fort bien les événements de I’histoire qui montraient
clairement que nul part au monde I'agriculture n’était restée
fructueuse pendant longtemps dans un climat semi-aride. Et
d’aprés une étude commandée par Environnement Canada,
intitulée «Global 2000: répercussions sur le Canada, 1981,» le
grenier a blé de I'Ouest canadien pourrait étre bientdt relégué
a une activité secondaire. Toujours selon la méme étude, envi-
ron 7 millions de tonnes métriques de céréales pourraient étre
exportées d’ici I’an 2000. L’une des raisons de cette conclusion
est la baisse radicale de la qualité du sol.

J’ai déja parlé de I'étude de ’ARAP, qui renferme peut-étre
I’évaluation la plus détaillée des résultats de recherches dans le
domaine général de la détérioration du sol. Les responsables de
cette étude avaient conclu qu’une initiative majeure en matiére
de conservation était essentielle si I’on voulait que ’agriculture
dans la région des Prairies demeure fructueuse. J'étais
enchanté que la Fédération canadienne de I’agriculture publie
les résultats d’un atelier tenu en décembre 1982 qui confir-
maient la gravité de la détérioration du sol et montraient que
le phénoméne avait été caché pendant de nombreuses années
pour diverses raisons que je n’aborderai pas maintenant. Il y a
ensuite eu en 1983 le premier symposium de la Saskatchewan,
parrainé par une organisation agricole, la Fédération de I'agri-
culture de la Saskatchewan. Le symposium comprenait encore
une fois une série de rapports de scientifiques de I'Ouest cana-
dien sur la dégradation du sol et ses conséquences pour les
agriculteurs de I’Ouest. Leurs appréhensions se fondaient sur
des données fiables. J’aimerais souligner que les prévisions sup-
posent qu’il n’y aura aucune modification des pratiques agrico-
les.
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As | indicated in my introductory comments, we are confi-
dent that it is possible to farm using a farming system compat-
ible with the soils. We are presently researching this aspect on
a provincewide basis with funds provided by the provincial
Heritage Fund or so-called Farm Lab funds. We are presently
working with 40 farmers; and in the two years that this pro-
gram has been under way I think we have clearly shown that
prairie farms and farming systems can and will change. For
example, we have shown that these 40 farmers using the best
technology available, are producing somewhat in excess of 90
per cent or more of summer fallow yields on stubble land.
They are doing it on a re-occurring, continuous cropping basis.
It is not an easy way to farm and from the standpoint of the
country it is an exciting way to farm. If tomorrow, somewhat
in excess of half of our farmers in western Canada moved
toward the adoption of a water efficient farming system, we
would again encounter very serious grain surpluses. We are
estimating that we could easily and rapidly increase production
by roughly 60 per cent.

With that last comment, Mr. Chairman, I think I will stop. I
thank the members of the committee very much for their
attention; it has been real pleasure to have had this opportu-
nity to come to Ottawa and to leave with you some of my
thoughts with respect to soil deterioration. It is particularly
exciting to be able to tell you that we think there are ways of
farming which will not only arrest the further downward trend
in soil deterioration, but which will change that curve to an
upward trend. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: Thank you very much, Dr. Rennie. Could I
have questions from senators of Dr. Rennie?

Senator Marshall: Dr. Rennie, you paint a much bleaker
picture than the one painted by the minister yesterday, which
is very alarming. I am not too much of a soil conservationist; I
am a fisherman from Newfoundland. I see an analogous situa-
tion with the near destruction of the fishing industry. You have
been speaking about 1990 and have painted a very bleak pic-
ture of what will happen if we do not do something soon. How
much do you receive for research? Yesterday we were talking
about research funds which are funnelled to the universities
and it became a question of just how much is going where in
order to rectify this problem. Are you satisfied with the
amount of research dollars you receive for the furtherance of
your studies?

Dr. Rennie: I do not think that we at the universities will
ever be satisfied with how much we receive. However, the level
of research funding at the present time is infinitely better than
what it was just a few years ago, largely because funds are now
coming from the provincial governments. There has been very
little change with respect to funds coming from the federal
government for agriculture research.

Senator Marshall: You mentioned yield increases in
Alberta, Manitoba and Saskatchewan. I am concerned about
the future; what does it look like? From what you have said it

[Traduction)

Comme je le disais dans mon introduction, nous sommes
convaincus qu'il est possible d’utiliser un systéme de culture
compatible avec les sols. Nous faisons actuellement des recher-
ches sur cet aspect a I’échelle provinciale, grice aux sommes
obtenues du fonds du patrimoine provincial ou du fonds appelé
Farm Lab (laboratoire agricole). Nous travaillons actuelle-
ment avec 40 agriculteurs. Depuis deux ans que ce programme
fonctionne, je pense que nous avons pu montrer clairement que
les entreprises agricoles des Prairies et leurs systémes de cul-
ture peuvent étre changés et le seront. Par exemple, nous avons
démontré que le rendement des cultures sur chaumes de ces 40
exploitations agricoles qui utilisent les meilleures techniques
disponibles est de 90 p. 100 supérieur au rendement des cultu-
res aprés jachére. Ils cultivent année aprés année, ne laissant
jamais le sol en jachére. Ce n’est pas une méthode facile de
cultiver mais du point de vue du pays, elle est passionnante. Si
plus de la moitié¢ des agriculteurs de I'Ouest canadien adop-
taient un systéme de culture efficace du point de vue de I'utili-
sation de I’eau, nous aurions encore une fois des surplus de
céréales considérables. Selon nos évaluations, nous pourrions
aisément et rapidement accroitre la production d’environ 60 p.
100.

Cela dit, monsieur le président, je m’arréterai. Je remercie
beaucoup les membres du Comité de leur attention. Je suis
vraiment heureux d’avoir eu I’occasion de venir a Ottawa et de
vous avoir fait part d’un certain nombre de points de vue sur la
détérioration du sol. Il est particuliérement passionnant de
pouvoir vous déclarer que nous estimons qu’il y a des moyens
de cultiver qui permettront non seulement de freiner la détério-
ration du sol mais encore de renverser la vapeur. Merci beau-
coup, monsieur le président.

Le président: Merci beaucoup, Monsieur Rennie. Les séna-
teurs pourraient-ils maintenant commencer a interroger M.
Rennie?

Le sénateur Marshall: Monsieur Rennie, vous peignez un
tableau beaucoup plus sombre que celui que le ministre nous a
présenté hier, ce qui est trés alarmant. Je ne suis pas spécialisé
dans la conservation du sol; je suis un pécheur de Terre-Neuve.
Je vois cependant une situation analogue a la quasi-destruction
de I'industrie de la péche. Vous avez parlé de 1990 et avez
brossé un tableau trés sombre de ce qui se produira si nous
n’agissons pas bientdt. Combien obtenez-vous d’argent pour la
recherche? Hier, vous parliez de fonds de recherche destinés
aux universités et il s’agissait de déterminer combien était
affecté et 4 quel endroit, pour corriger le probléme. Etes-vous
satisfait des sommes que vous recevez pour poursuivre vos étu-
des?

M. Rennie: Je ne crois pas que les universités se contentent
un jour de ce qu’elles regoivent. Cependant, le niveau de finan-
cement actuel est infiniment supérieur a ce qu’il était il y a
quelques années, surtout 4 cause des subsides que nous versent
maintenant les gouvernements provinciaux. Quant aux sommes
que nous accorde le gouvernement fédéral pour la recherche
agricole, elles n’ont guére changé.

Le sénateur Marshall: Vous avez parlé de I'augmentation du
rendement en Alberta, au Manitoba et en Saskatchewan.
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appears that by 1990 we will be looking at complete degrada-
tion of our soils unless action is taken now. You have spoken
about new fertilization and it all seems to be a massive task.
Do you see a bright future, Dr. Rennie?

Dr. Rennie: I see a reasonably bright future in that there
seems to be a much clearer recognition today of the seriousness
of the soil degradation which has occurred. When I say that,
please remember that I am talking in generalities; I am not
talking about any one specific farm. Degradation has been
serious. | think the PFRA document illustrates that point in
that it was an independent evaluation. The consensus reached
at recent symposia and workshops has produced documented
evidence which supports the statement that the future prosper-
ity of western Canadian agriculture remains a question mark. I
mentioned  previously the Canadian Federation of
Agriculture’s evaluation of this subject. The Saskatchewan
Federation of Agriculture recently held a symposium at Sas-
katoon with respect to soil degradation and their support was
given to that statement with respect to the future.

Senator Marshall: Dr. Rennie, we have heard about farmers
going bankrupt. It has been said that they should receive more
education and that they should do more towards whatever they
have to do with respect to their soil in order to rebuild it. How
can they do that when they seem to be discouraged by the fact
that many farmers are going bankrupt and getting out of
farming? How quickly can we get them to realize that there is
hope? How can we give them hope?

Dr. Rennie: In answering your question, senator, the statis-
tics as I see them suggest that bankruptcies are not a serious
problem.

Senator Marshall: They are not?

Dr. Rennie: I do not think so, compared with the total num-
ber of farmers who are out there. I would guess that those who
are going bankrupt probably mismanaged their affairs to some
extent.

Senator Marshall: Do they realize that?

Dr. Rennie: I would think so. However, I would say we must
be careful not to relate the bankruptcy of farmers to soil qual-
ity deterioration. I do not see any connection at the present
time between the two.

Senator Marshall: But these farmers must go to their bank
managers and say, “Look, I made a mistake and Dr. Rennie is
telling me my soil is going bad. I have to recultivate it or do
whatever has to be done to it and I need some more money.”
You know, it is a hell of a question they will have to ask and I
cannot see any bank manager going along with their request.

Dr. Rennie: I think you have touched on a very important
point, senator, that is, conservation farming is expensive in the
short term. However, in the long term the farmer will be
repaid at least in part for moving toward a conservation farm-
ing system. However, in the short term, if his soils are salinis-
ing at the present time, he cannot afford to cover those costs in
terms of present prices. So there is a very real need for serious
consideration to be given to some kind of assistance program

[Traduction]

L’avenir me préoccupe; comment s’annonce-t-il? Nous assiste-
rions, selon vous, vers 1990, 4 une dégradation intégrale de nos
sols, 4 moins que nous prenions dés maintenant des mesures
préventives. Vous avez parlé aussi de nouveaux fertilisants et
tout cela nous a semblé une tiche énorme. L’avenir vous sem-
ble-t-il souriant, monsieur Rennie?

M. Rennie: L’avenir me semble raisonnablement encoura-
geant, en ce sens qu'on semble reconnaitre beaucoup plus
aujourd’hui le grave état de dégradation des sols. Je parle ici
en général et non d’une entreprise agricole en particulier.
L’état de dégradation est vraiment avancé. L’ARAP, qui en a
une étude indépendante du phénomene, le dit bien dans son
document. Les récents symposiums et ateliers ont établi, docu-
ments & 'appui, que le sort de I'agriculture demeure précaire
dans I’Ouest du pays. J’ai parlé plus tot de I’évaluation que la
Fédération canadienne de I'agriculture a faite 4 ce sujet. De
plus, la Fédération agricole de la Saskatchewan a récemment
tenu, 4 Saskatoon, sur la dégradation des sols, un symposium
dont les résultats sont venus étayer ce jugement sur 'avenir de
’agriculture.

Le sénateur Marshall: Monsieur Rennie, nous avons
entendu parler des agriculteurs qui ont fait faillite. Il leur fau-
drait, a-t-on dit, recevoir un supplément de formation et multi-
plier les mesures propres a regénérer leurs sols. Comment le
pourraient-ils, lorsqu’ils sont découragés a la vue de tant des
leurs qui font faillite et se retirent du secteur? Comment pou-
vons-nous rapidement leur faire comprendre que tout n’est pas
perdu et qu’il y a encore lieu d’espérer?

M. Rennie: Je vous répondrai sur ce point, sénateur, qu’a
mon avis les statistiques n’indiquent pas que les faillites consti-
tuent un grave probléme.

Le sénateur Marshall: Non?

M. Rennie: Non; pas comparativement au nombre d’agricul-
teurs. Je serais porté a croire que ceux qui ont fait faillite ont
probablement négligé quelque peu leurs affaires.

Le sénateur Marshall: S’en rendent-ils compte?

M. Rennie: Je le crois. Toutefois, gardons-nous de rattacher
la faillite des agriculteurs a la détérioration de la qualité des
sols. Je ne vois, pour le moment, aucun rapport entre les deux.

Le sénateur Marshall: Mais ces agriculteurs devront aller a
leur banquier: «j’ai commis une erreur et M. Rennie me dit que
mon sol se détériore. Il me faut le remettre en culture et pren-
dre toutes sortes de mesures: j’ai besoin d’argent». Ils sont dans
une position trés difficile et je connais bien peu de gérants de
banque qui feraient preuve de compréhension.

M. Rennie: Sénateur, vous venez de toucher la un point trés
important. Il est trés onéreux, en effet, de s’adonner a court
terme 4 une agriculture de conservation. A long terme, I’agri-
culteur peut toujours récupérer au moins une partie de ses
frais. Mais si son sol est déja en état de salinisation, il ne
pourra, & court terme, recouvrer ses frais, considérant les prix
qu’il peut actuellement obtenir pour ses produits. Il convient
donc de songer sérieusement & établir un programme qui
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which will allow farmers, particularly those whose soil has
deteriorated rather badly, to change their farming system so
that deterioration will be arrested.

Senator Marshall: So you are saying there is a need for a
new program to do that?

Dr. Rennie: Very clearly.
Senator Marshall: There is not a program in existence now?
Dr. Rennie: Not one in existence at the present time.

Senator Marshall: Are you aware of the general develop-
ment agreements with the provinces?

Dr. Rennie: Yes.

Senator Marshall: And are you aware of the subsidiary
agreements which can be carried out on a provincial basis?
These are called ERDAs now, whereas they used to be called
something else.

Dr. Rennie: At this point in time I am hopeful that through
the ERDA programs there will be a major thrust to supporting
conservation farming. As yet, those programs have not been
delineated, as far as [ am aware; but I think the possibility is
clearly there.

Senator Le Moyne: Mr. Chairman, would Dr. Rennie give
us a rough idea of the new practices which he advocates for
soil conservation?

Dr. Rennie: Essentially, we are attempting to evaluate on a
field scale basis research that has been carried out in the test
tube, to find out to what extent a water efficient farming sys-
tem is economically viable on the farm. The reason many of
these practices are still test tube practices is because funds
were not available to carry out production research until very
recently, as I indicated in my introduction. Those, however,
that we are evaluating now on a field scale basis, include cap-
turing snow water. In two years we have captured somewhere
between four and six centimetres of snow water that formerly
was lost. That has raised the potential production on what we
call stubble land or recropped land by at least 50 per cent in
the drier regions of the province, and, of course, less as one
goes to the more humid regions. At the same time, that will
ensure that the risk of drought is immeasurably decreased. The
farmer can then proceed with more confidence to follow the
next steps, which are of vital importance, and those are to
make sure that the crop is adequately fed with nutrients, that
weeds are adequately taken care of and that he follows all
other good agronomic techniques, such as selecting the best
variety for his district and so on.

Many other components that we are looking at in some
detail include the role of winter wheat. Winter wheat yields 25
per cent more and is roughly 50 per cent more water efficient
than is spring wheat. Therefore, we are evaluating agronomic
techniques on a field scale basis to see the role of this rather
old but excitingly new crop from the standpoint of western

[Traduction)

aidera les agriculteurs, surtout ceux dont le sol s’est gravement
détérioré, & modifier leur systéme de culture pour mettre fin a
cette détérioration.

Le sénateur Marshall: Selon vous, il faudrait donc pour cela
un nouveau programme?

M. Rennie: C’est évident.
Le sénateur Marshall: Il n’en existe aucun présentement?
M. Rennie: Aucun.

Le sénateur Marshall: Etes-vous au courant des accords sur
le développement conclus avec les provinces?

M. Rennie: Oui.

Le sénateur Marshall: Connaissez-vous aussi les accords
complémentaires qui peuvent étre appliqués provincialement?
Ils sont connus aujourd’hui sous le nom d’AEER, mais on les a
déja appelés autrement.

M. Rennie: J'espére pour le moment que ces programmes
AEER parviendront a orienter, jusqu’a un certain point, le sys-
téme de culture vers la conservation. Ils n’ont pas été délimités
jusqu’ici, que je sache, mais je crois que cette possibilité existe
vraiment.

Le sénateur Le Moyne: Monsieur le président, M. Rennie
voudrait-il nous exposer en quelques mots les nouvelles prati-
ques qu’il recommande pour la conservation du sol?

M. Rennie: Nous nous efforgons essentiellement d’appliquer
aux terrains de culture la recherche que nous avons faite en
laboratoire pour déterminer dans quelle mesure un systéme
agricole allié a 'utilisation efficace de I’eau est économique-
ment viable pour une entreprise agricole. Si beaucoup de ces
pratiques en sont encore au stade expérimental, c’est que,
jusqu’d récemment, les fonds faisaient défaut pour mener des
recherches au niveau de la production, comme je I'ai dit dans
mon introduction. Cependant, les méthodes dont nous faisons
I’évaluation sur le terrain comprennent la récupération de I'eau
provenant de la neige. En deux ans, nous avons réussi ainsi a
récupérer de quatre a six centimétres d’eau, qui normalement
aurait été perdue. Cette récupération a augmenté d’au moins
50 p. 100 la capacité de production de ce que nous appelons les
terres laissées en chaumes ou des terres recultivées, dans les
régions les plus arides de la province et, bien siir, d’un pourcen-
tage moindre dans les régions plus humides. En méme temps,
cette récupération diminue énormément le risque de séche-
resse. L’agriculteur peut donc, avec beaucoup plus de con-
fiance, adopter les mesures suivantes, qui sont d’une impor-
tance vitale: s’assurer que la culture est adéquatement
alimentée en éléments nutritifs et que les mauvaises herbes
sont bien contrdlées; veiller & bien exploiter toutes les autres
techniques agricoles, comme la sélection des variétés les plus
propres 4 la culture dans ces régions, et ainsi de suite.

Parmi les autres facteurs que nous étudions avec plus de
détail se trouve le blé d’hiver. Cette variété donne 25 p. 100
plus et est environ 50 p. 100 plus efficace quant a I'utilisation
de I’eau que le blé de printemps. Donc, nous évaluons sur le
terrain les techniques agricoles pour déterminer le rdle que
cette culture, a la fois ancienne et remarquablement nouvelle,
pourra jouer dans I"Ouest canadien. Nous étudions les mérites
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Canada. We are looking at the merits of “zero till” and cer-
tainly minimal till. We are looking at all aspects of reducing
the energy inputs in terms of fossil fuels with certain guide-
lines, such as no fall tillage and so on.

We feel that it is possible today, even in the more arid
regions, to recrop for at least four or five years in a row and,
for much of the province, to recrop economically continuously,
thereby circumventing all of the deleterious aspects of our
present cropping system.

Senator Le Moyne: it seems that the most spectacular point
there is the almost total elimination of tillage. The problem is
there, mainly, in tillage, is it not?

Dr. Rennie: If we did anything incorrectly in the past, it is
that we overtilled. They used to ask farmer John, you know,
what he was doing out there cultivating and he would say,
“The hired man has nothing else to do today, he might as well
do something.” There is a lot of truth in that. We till exces-
sively. With that kind of practice, a direct result is a very rapid
acceleration in the rate at which soil organisms break down
soil humus. The less you till, the less active are the soil organ-
isms. We want some activity there. We do not want to curtail
it fully, but we want to control it.

Senator Le Moyne: We almost come back then, to the prac-
tice followed by the Indians where they would put each grain
into its little hole. I did that once with beautiful results. The
principle is akin to that, it would seem.

Dr. Rennie: Those elements are coming back in vogue, that
is true. Last year, at several locations where we compared
“zero till” to conventional till, the yields were identical. They
were right on line under dry and moist conditions.

Of course, weeds must be controlled with chemicals. The
farmer must fertilize using a different approach. There are
many things that must be changed as we go from a minimal to
a zero till but our studies have shown that it has merits. I sup-
pose that the major constraint at the present time, and the rea-
son why farmers will not move very rapidly towards zero till, is
the problem of deficiencies in the equipment. We do not have
adequate equipment.

Senator Bonnell: Mr. Chairman, I would first like to thank
Dr. Rennie for his excellent presentation. I wonder if it is pos-
sible to have those slides reproduced on paper so that they
could be incorporated into today’s record. Would Dr. Rennie
have a copy of these graphs available on paper?

Dr. Rennie: I could very quickly obtain one, senator.

Senator Bonnell: If he can obtain a copy for us, I move that
the presentation be incorporated into today’s record so that, in
reading his discourse, we have the graphs to support it.

(For graphs, see appendix 2A.)

[Traduction]

du non-labour et des labours légers. Nous nous efforgons par
tous les moyens de réduire les apports d’énergie en carburants,
par exemple, en supprimant les labours d’automne, et ainsi de
suite.

Nous croyons qu’il est possible aujourd’hui, méme dans les
régions les plus arides, de mettre les terres en culture pendant
quatre ou cinq années consécutives et, dans une bonne partie
de la province, de cultiver ainsi indéfiniment et rentablement,
contournant ainsi tous les inconvénients que présentent nos
pratiques agricoles actuelles.

Le sénateur Le Moyne: Il semble que le point le plus remar-
quable de votre argumentation a trait & I’élimination quasi
totale des labours, n’est-ce-pas?

M. Rennie: Si nous avons fait une erreur dans le passé, c’est
d’avoir trop travaillé le sol. En ce temps-la si on demandait a
un agriculteur pourquoi il cultivait ainsi, il répondait que
«’homme engagé» n’ayant rien d’autre a faire ce jour-la,
«autant 'employer a travailler la terre». Et il est exact que
nous travaillons trop la terre. A ce rythme on accélére rapide-
ment I’action des micro-organismes qui dégradent ’humus.
Moins on travaille la terre, et plus ’action de ces organismes
est lente. Sans doute, nous voulons qu’ils agissent, mais jusqu’a
un certain point. Nous n’entendons pas les arréter net, nous
tenons a les régulariser.

Le sénateur Le Moyne: Dans ces conditions, nous en reve-
nons presque alors 4 la pratique adoptée par les Indiens, qui
placaient chaque grain de semence dans le petit trou qu'’ils lui
avaient préparé. J'ai utilisé cette méthode une fois et jai
obtenu de merveilleux résultats. Il semble que ce que vous
recommandez s’apparente a cette pratique.

M. Rennie: Ces éléments sont de nouveau en vogue, c’est
exact. L’an passé, dans divers endroits ou nous avons comparé
des sols travaillés et d’autres qui ne 'avaient pas été du tout,
nous avons observé des rendements identiques, dans des condi-
tions d’humidité et de sécheresse.

Sans doute, il faut contrdler les mauvais herbes au moyen de
produits chimiques. Le cultivateur doit procéder autrement
pour fertiliser ses terres. Beaucoup de choses changent lorsque
'agriculteur passe de labours légers au non-labour mais nos
études ont démontré les avantages de cette derniére technique.
Ce qui retient surtout actuellement les agriculteurs d’opter
pour la pratique du non-labour, c’est qu’ils ne disposent pas de
'outillage nécessaire.

Le sénateur Bonnell: Monsieur le président, je tiens d’abord
a remercier M. Rennie de son excellent exposé. Est-il possible
de reproduire sur papier les diapositives; nous pourrions ainsi
les annexer au compte rendu des délibérations. M. Rennie a-t-
il une copie sur papier, de ces diapositives?

M. Rennie: Je puis vous en obtenir une rapidement, séna-
teur.

Le sénateur Bonnell: Dans ce cas, je propose que cet exposé
soit joint au texte des délibérations, avec, en regard les diaposi-
tives.

(Pour les diapositives, voir I'appendice 2A.)
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Senator Bonnell: Mr. Chairman, I noticed that most of the
graphs referred to in that presentation depicted soil erosion in
Canada, yet when Dr. Rennie was speaking, he referred to
western Canada at some times. I don’t know if he, like the peo-
ple in Toronto, thinks that Canada stops there or whether he is
more familiar with the west and consequently added the word
“west” or whether these records really do pertain only to the
west of Canada.

Dr. Rennie: Very clearly they pertain only to western
Canada.

Senator Bonnell: I notice that the graphs indicate Canada
and that you always added the word “western” when you
referred to them.

Dr. Rennie: There must be an error in the printing of the
slides. They should read “western Canada,” and, in some
cases, only Saskatchewan.

Senator Bonnell: Mr. Chairman, I note that the hour is late,
but I would like to say this: when someone of the calibre of Dr.
Rennie, who is an expert in the matter of soils, appears before
this committee, I think it is a shame not to obtain from him
what he would recommend to government for further research
and development on how to stop this erosion of soil. I wonder if
he could take some time to prepare a paper for us with sugges-
tions as to what this committee could recommend to govern-
ment with respect to the prevention of soil erosion and with
respect to what could be done to point out to the farmers new
developments in this area. We, as a committee—and many of
us are not farmers—could then have the benefits of his knowl-
edge and experience, which indeed is tremendous. As we are
making our final report and asking ourselves these questions,
we could look back at Dr. Rennie’s recommendations. We will
not necessarily follow all of them, but we would very much like
to have his thoughts and views on the matter of future develop-
ment of agriculture and soil degradation.

Perhaps it would be possible for Dr. Rennie to send on some-
thing like that, or, even better, to reappear at a later time with
it so that we could put further questions to him.

The Chairman: We will try to get as much information as
we can today, and we certainly would want further informa-
tion from Dr. Rennie. I hope, and we discussed this before,
that he will bring forth any suggestions and ideas that he has.

Dr. Rennie: I would be pleased to do so, Mr. Chairman. It is
a very large task that the honourable senator is asking me. I
would love to do it, but to do it properly would require consid-
erable time. For this Senate committee, however, I would be
pleased to do what I can. Perhaps I will discuss this further
with you, Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: Yes, indeed.

[Traduction)

Le sénateur Bonnell: Monsieur le président, je constate que
la plupart des graphiques dont il s’agit dans cet exposé décri-
vent Iérosion du sol au Canada, et pourtant, M. Rennie a parlé
a quelques reprises de I'Ouest canadien. Je me demande s’il est
comme les gens de Toronto qui croient que le Canada s’arréte
chez eux ou il est un peu plus familier avec I'Ouest et que, pour
cette raison il a ajouté cet adjectif «ouest» ou encore, si cet
exposé ne se rapporte effectivement qu’a I'Ouest du Canada.

M. Rennie: Il ne se rapporte qu’a I'Ouest du Canada.

Le sénateur Bonnell: Je note que les graphiques portent la
mention Canada et que vous avez toujours ajouté le mot
«ouest», quand vous y avez fait allusion.

M. Rennie: Il doit y avoir une erreur dans I'impression des
diapositives. On devrait y lire «Ouest du Canada» et, dans cer-
tains cas, seulement le mot Saskatchewan.

Le sénateur Bonnell: Monsieur le président, je vois que le
temps presse, mais j’aimerais ajouter ceci: lorsqu’une personne
du calibre de M. Rennie, qui est un spécialiste en matiére de
sols, témoigne devant notre Comité, je crois qu’il est honteux
de ne pas lui demander quelles recommandations il ferait au
gouvernement en ce qui a trait a la recherche et au développe-
ment sur la fagon d’enrayer I’érosion des sols. Je me demande
s’il pourrait consacrer quelque temps a la rédaction de sugges-
tions que le Comité pourrait présenter au gouvernement a ce
sujet et en regard de ce qu’on pourrait faire pour informer les
agriculteurs de ’évolution de cette question. Le Comité—dont
la plupart des membres ne sont pas des agriculteurs—pourrait
alors tirer partie de I’énorme bagage de connaissances et
d’expérience que posséde M. Rennie. Au moment ou nous rédi-
gerons notre rapport final et ol nous poserons ces questions,
nous pourrions alors nous reporter aux recommandations de
M. Rennie. Cela ne veut pas dire que nous les adopterons
nécessairement toutes, mais nous aimerions beaucoup avoir son
opinion sur les perspectives d’avenir de I’agriculture et sur la
dégradation des sols.

Peut-étre M. Rennie pourrait-il nous faire parvenir le fruit
de ses réflexions, ou mieux encore, comparaitre de nouveau
avec le document de sorte que nous puissions lui poser d’autres
questions.

Le président: Nous essaierons d’obtenir le plus de renseigne-
ments possible aujourd’hui et il ne fait aucun doute que nous
apprécierions beaucoup d’autres informations de M. Rennie.
Jespére, et nous en avons déja discuté, qu’il nous fera part de
toutes les suggestions et de toutes les idées qu'il a.

M. Rennie: Monsieur le président, je serais heureux de le
faire. Par contre, je dois dire que ce que me demande I’honora-
ble sénateur exige un travail considérable. Je m’empresserais
de lui donner satisfaction, mais pour le faire comme il faut, je
devrais y consacrer beaucoup de temps. Toutefois, pour votre
Comité, je serais heureux de faire mon possible. Peut-étre,
monsieur le président, pourrais-je en discuter avec vous.

Le président: Trés certainement.
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Senator Anderson: Mr. Chairman, at one point the witness
spoke about the terrific amounts of nitrogen fertilizer needed
in the soils. Was he referring to each crop when he mentioned
those numbers?

Dr. Rennie: The fertilizer nitrogen requirements are for the
total spectrum of crops that farmers would be seeding.

Senator Anderson: For how long a period of time?

Dr. Rennie: For one year or one growing season, including
cereals and oil seeds, primarily, and pasture.

Senator Anderson: A period of one year would include both
pasture and crop, in some cases?

Dr. Rennie: Yes.

Senator Anderson: You spoke about the benefits of doing as
little tilling as possible. Is it not necessary to till in order to
break the soil up and help the nutrients go through it?

Dr. Rennie: We used to think so, but research today would
suggest that that is not so. The concepts of tillage that we pres-
ently have are those that we inherited from our fathers at a
time when they did not have the sort of technology that we
have today. It is not necessary to till in order to aerate the soil.
There are other things we can do to ensure good tilth and good
aeration.

Senator Anderson: I was referring to breaking down the
stubble so that the nutrients could penetrate it. It is not neces-
sary to deal with that?

Dr. Rennie: No. One of the misconceptions—and there are a
large number—is that to grow an adequate crop you have to
till in the crop residues in the fall, and again till two or three
times before you seed in the spring, to ensure their breakdown.
That is not so. As a matter of fact, the residues will degrade
very much more rapidly if you leave them standing and
exposed to the atmosphere. They will degrade much more rap-
idly than in the soil.

The Chairman: Dr. Rennie, you suggested there should be
some kind of assistance program for farmers to assist them to
change their system. What do you suggest should be the type
of assistance, who would deliver the programs, and so on? I do
not want to get into the aspect of federal-provincial responsi-
bility, but what kind of assistance do you have in mind?

Dr. Rennie: There are a number of practices that are
required on soils that are badly degraded at the present time.
Perhaps I could illustrate that point. IN many cases these
involve seeding down to a soil-improving crop or including a
soil-improving crop as an integral part of the rotation. By and
large that is a “cost” to the farmer, because he is not produc-
ing anything that is sateable, unless he has livestock. We do
not have very much in the way of livestock on many farms.
Under such circumstances some compensation would ensure
that such soil rebuilding practices were followed.

[Traduction]

Le sénateur Anderson: Monsieur le président, & un moment
donné, le témoin a parlé des quantités énormes d’engrais azo-
tés dont ont besoin les sols. Cela s’applique-t-il a toutes les
récoltes?

M. Rennie: Oui, les engrais azotés sont nécessaires a toutes
les récoltes.

Le sénateur Anderson: Pendant combien de temps?

M. Rennie: Pendant un an ou pour une campagne agricole, y
compris les céréales, les oléagineux et les paturages.

Le sénateur Anderson: Cette période d’un an s’appliquerait-
elle, dans certains cas, aux paturages et aux récoltes?

M. Rennie: Oui.

Le sénateur Anderson: Vous avez dit qu’il était avantageux
de travailler la terre le moins possible. Mais n’est-il pas néces-
saire justement de travailler la terre pour remuer le sol et pour
permettre aux éléments nutritifs de s’y infiltrer?

M. Rennie: C’est ce que I'on pensait, mais les résultats des
recherches montrent qu’aujourd’hui il n’en va plus ainsi. Cette
fagon de travailler la terre que nous connaissons nous a été
transmise par nos péres 4 une époque ou ces derniers ne dispo-
saient pas de toute la technologie moderne. Il n’est pas néces-
saire de travailler la terre pour aérer le sol. Il existe d’autres
techniques qui permettent de bien ameublir et aérer la terre.

Le sénateur Anderson: Je parlais ici de la dégradation des
chaumes de sorte que les éléments nutritifs puissent s’infiltrer.
N’est-il pas nécessaire de faire cela?

M. Rennie: Non. L’une des erreurs qu’on commet, et on en
commet beaucoup, c’est de croire que pour avoir une bonne
récolte, il faut labourer les résidus de la récolte a ’automne, les
labourer encore deux ou trois fois avant les semailles de prin-
temps pour s’assurer qu’ils sont bien décomposés. Mais ce n’est
pas vrai. En fait, les résidus vont se dégrader beaucoup plus
rapidement si vous les laissez exposés a I’air ambiant que s’ils
restent dans le sol.

Le président: Monsieur Rennie, vous avez dit que certains
programmes d’aide devraient étre offerts aux agriculteurs afin
de les aider a changer leurs pratiques agricoles. A votre avis,
quels devraient étre ces programmes, qui devrait les adminis-
trer et ainsi de suite? Je ne veux pas entrer dans toutes ces
questions de responsabilités fédérales-provinciales, mais
j'aimerais que vous nous disiez 4 quel genre de programme
vous songez.

M. Rennie: Il existe un bon nombre de techniques agricoles
qui pourraient étre utilisées pour les sols qui sont déja sérieuse-
ment dégradés. Peut-étre puis-je vous donner un exemple. Il
s’agirait dans bien des cas de choisir une culture qui améliore
les ou d’intégrer cette culture au systéme de rotation. Dans
I’ensemble, I’agriculteur perd alors des revenus parce qu’il ne
produit rien de commercialisable, & moins de pratiquer I’¢le-
vage. De nombreuses entreprises agricoles comptent peu de
tétes de bétail. Dans ces circonstances, I'agriculteur devrait
avoir droit 4 une certaine indemnisation qui I’encouragerait a
utilises des techniques permettant de regénérer les sols.
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One could trace the analogy to what is very common in
Europe. When they lime the soil, or put on very large amounts
of phosphate or potassium, they do get special compensation,
because that is something that is inherently going to change
the production level of the soil—in contrast to annual agro-
nomic practices, which should not necessarily entitle a farmer
to any compensation. There are those practices which have a
net positive effect over a period of years, which the farmer
cannot afford to put in himself, but which would materially
improve the production capacity down the road.

The Chairman: Yesterday the Minister of Agriculture
appeared before the committee, and in his proposed programs
he said that part of the department’s plan to increase research
support for soil conservation is a proposed western soil and
water research centre in Saskatoon. Working closely with
other agencies, it would house a team of scientists focusing on
solutions to land degradation. Funding was currently being
sought for the centre. Have you any knowledge of that, or do
you have any input to that proposal? Would that proposal sit
well with you?

Dr. Rennie: Perhaps I could answer the last part of the ques-
tion first. The proposal would excite all of us, because there is
a very real dearth of research resources to feret out a lot of the
complexities of reclamation of badly degraded soils. This new
institute, particularly if it could be tied in very closely with a
group such as the Institute of Pedology, would add in a very
major way to the rapid solution of serious soil problems.

The principle is not new. The Institute of Pedology in Sas-
katoon was first formed in 1965. It was the first of its kind in
Canada, and I believe it has clearly demonstrated that a volun-
tary level of co-operation between federal, provincial and uni-
versity soil scientits, pays termendous dividends. It is this
group that has documented, to a large extent, the serious
decline in soil quality; and it has only been possible to do so by
the combined resources of those three groups. Had those three
groups been pursuing their own objectives on soil research
independently, 1 very much doubt that we would have any-
where near the kind of information and documentation that I
showed you this morning.

So I can see very real benefits from the new soil and water
institute, particularly if it can be tied in very closely, physically
closely, with this rather small group of soil scientists that is
presently in the Institute of Pedology. For this reason, Dr.
Stewart, who is presently the head of the institute, has met
with the Honourable Mr. Whelan on several occasions and has
discussed with him—as has Dr. Christianson, the president of
the university—the very real interest by the university in hav-
ing the new institute closely associated with the present soils
group.

[Traduction]

On peut en fait tracer une certaine analogie avec ce qui se
fait couramment en Europe. Lorsque les agriculteurs euro-
péens pratiquent le chaulage, ou I’épandage de grandes quanti-
tés de phosphate ou de potassium, ils regoivent une compensa-
tion spéciale parce qu’ils appliquent alors une technique qui va
changer du tout au tout le niveau de production du sol; il n’en
va pas de méme des techniques agronomiques annuelles pour
lesquelles, normalement, il n’est prévu aucune compensation
pour I’agriculteur. En fait, il existe des techniques qui ont des
répercussions positives nettes sur un certain nombre d’années,
techniques que I'agriculteur ne peut se permettre d’appliquer
lui-méme mais qui matériellement permettraient d’améliorer
la capacité de production au bout du compte.

Le président: Hier, le ministre de ’Agriculture a comparu
devant le Comité et parmi les programme qu’il a proposés, il a
dit qu’entre autres projets visant a accroitre ’aide 4 la recher-
che pour la conservation des sols, le Ministére proposait la
création d’un centre de recherche dans ’Ouest sur les sols et
les eaux, qui serait établi 4 Saskatoon. Travaillant en étroite
collaboration avec d’autres organismes, ce groupe de scientifi-
ques tenterait de trouver des solutions a la dégradation des
sols. M. Whelan a dit entre autres que 'on s’occupait de trou-
ver des crédits pour la création de ce centre. Est-ce que vous en
étes au courant ou encore avez-vous quelque chose d ajouter a
cette proposition? Etes-vous d’accord avec M. Whelan?

M. Rennie: Peut-étre pourrais-je répondre a la derniére par-
tie de la question d’abord. La proposition de M. Whelan regoit
I’assentiment de tous parce qu’on ne fait vraiment pas assez de
recherche sur toutes les complexités de I’assainissement des
sols qui sont trés dégradés. Si ce nouvel institut était en mesure
de travailler en étroite collaboration avec un groupe comme
I'Institut de pédologie cela permettrait de trouver une solution
rapide aux graves problémes de dégradation des sols.

Le principe n’est pas nouveau. L’Institut de pédologie de
Saskatoon a été créé en 1965. Il s’agissait du premier institut
de ce genre au Canada et 4 mon avis il ne fait aucun doute que
lorsqu’un groupe de pédologues des universités et des gouver-
nements fédéral et provinciaux fait cela rapporte beaucoup.
C’est ce groupe qui a, dans une grande mesure, fait les recher-
ches sur la grave diminution de la qualité des sols; et ce travail
n’a été rendu possible que grice aux ressources communes de
ces trois groupes. Si ces derniers avaient poursuivi leurs tra-
vaux de recherche sur la qualité des sols chacun de son coté, je
doute beaucoup que nous disposions aujourd’hui des renseigne-
ments et de la documentation que je vous ai fournis ce matin.

C’est donc dire que j’entrevois la création de ce nouvel insti-
tut chargé de faire des recherches sur les sols et I'eau comme
un apport trés bénéfique, particuliérement si I'on pouvait nouer
cet institut, physiquement parlant, avec ce petit groupe de
scientifiques qui font actuellement partie de I'Institut de pédo-
logie. Pour cette raison, M. Stewart, qui dirige présentement
I'Institut, a rencontré I’honorable M. Whelan a plusieurs repri-
ses et a discuté avec lui, tout comme M. Christianson, prési-
dent de l'université, de I'intérét véritable que manifeste I'uni-
versité de voir ce nouvel institut travailler en étroite
collaboration avec les scientifiques du groupe chargé actuelle-
ment de I’étude de sols.
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The Chairman: Dr. Rennie, you are an expert on soil degra-
dation and soils in western Canada, and your knowledge, of
course, extends across the country. A similar institute may be
required to look after degradation problems in other parts of
Canada. You are aware, of course, that there is soil erosion by
wind and water in the rest of Canada, and it seems that not as
much is being done for those areas as there is for the west at
the moment. Is that a fair statement?

Dr. Rennie: I guess that it is a fair statement, but 1 would
not even comment on the need for a similar institute, for exam-
ple, in eastern Canada or in British Columbia. I am suf-
ficiently biased to say that I feel the seriousness of the situa-
tion is far greater in Saskatchewan than it is in any other part
of the country. Soil deterioration in Manitoba has not been
anywhere near as great as in Saskatchewan. Nor has it been as
serious in Alberta as in Saskatchewan—for reasons which to
some extent I have documented this morning. It is simply
because the farming practices in Saskatchewan have been
uniquely different from those in the other provinces and there-
fore our soil problems today are much more serious. It is for
that reason that I and the group in Saskatoon were delighted
when the Honourable Mr. Whelan announced that this new
institute would be located in Saskatoon. We felt that that was
where the need was greatest. We felt that the decision to put it
in Saskatoon had largely been based on the documented evi-
dence of the very real serious degradation that had occurred in
the soils in that region.

Senator Le Moyne: Mr. Chairman, I would like to ask the
witness if he feels that we have good reason to worry in eastern
Canada?

Dr. Rennie: Yes indeed. Soil degradation in eastern Canada,
in some localities, is very serious. There is no doubt about that.
In a somewhat different way it is related to the farming system
that has been practised. I believe that in eastern Canada you
have a hedge on us, in that your colleagues in Europe have
shown very clearly that you can indeed regenerate soil produc-
tivity. They have done it extremely effectively in England,
France and Germany—very effectively. So I think the solu-
tions to your problems are better delineated than those of the
rather semi-arid areas of Western Canada.

Senator Bonnell: What are the bad effects of acid rain in
Western Canada?

Dr. Rennie: It is zero at the present time as far as agricul-
ture is concerned. Perhaps there are even more benefits than
anything else. The major component of acid rain is sulphur.
Our soils have been in part depleted of their available sulphur,
so the sulphur in the rain may overcome the need for sulphur
fertilization.

Senator Bonnell: Does acid rain change the acidity of the
soil? Is western soil alkaline?

Dr. Rennie: Western soils are neutral to alkaline in some
areas and in other areas they are moderately acidic. But the

[Traduction)]

Le président: Monsieur Rennie, vous é&tes spécialiste en
matiére de dégradation des sols dans I’Ouest du Canada et
vous savez bien siir ce qui se passe dans tout le pays. Peut-étre
un institut semblable devrait-il étre créé pour étudier les pro-
blémes de dégradation dans les autres régions du Canada.
Vous savez, bien sir, qu’il y a érosion des sols par le vent et par
’eau dans le reste du Canada et il me semble qu’on ne s’occupe
pas autant de ces problémes dans ces régions qu’on ne le fait
pour I’Ouest actuellement. Ai-je raison de dire cela?

M. Rennie: Je crois que si, mais je ne veux méme pas faire
de commentaire sur la nécessité de créer un institut semblable,
par exemple dans I’Est du Canada ou en Colombie-Britanni-
que. Mes connaissances en la matiére m’obligent a dire que le
probléme est beaucoup plus grave en Saskatchewan qu’il ne
I’est dans toute autre région du pays. Méme au Manitoba, la
détérioration des sols n’est pas aussi sérieuse qu’elle ne I’est en
Saskatchewan. Ni méme en Alberta pour les raisons dont j’ai
fait état ce matin. Et cela, c’est simplement parce que les tech-
niques agricoles en Saskatchewan sont tout a fait différentes
de celles des autres provinces, et c’est pourquoi les problémes
de dégradation des sols que nous éprouvons aujourd’hui sont
beaucoup plus graves. C’est pour cette raison que le groupe de
Saskatoon et moi-méme étions trés heureux d’entendre I’hono-
rable M. Whelan annoncer que ce nouvel institut serait situé a
Saskatoon. A notre avis c’est 1a ol les besoins étaient les plus
urgents. Nous croyons que la décision d’établir cet institut a
Saskatoon s’appuyait largement sur les preuves irréfutables qui
ont été fournies au sujet de I'extréme et réelle gravité de la
dégradation des sols a cet endroit.

Le sénateur Le Moyne: Monsieur le président, j'aimerais
demander au témoin s’il estime que nous avons de bonnes rai-
sons de nous inquiéter de la situation dans I’Est du Canada?

M. Rennie: Oui, en effet. La dégradation des sols dans cer-
taines localités, de I’Est du Canada, prend des proportions
inquiétantes. Cela ne fait aucun doute. D’une fagon quelque
peu différente, elle est liée au systéme de culture qui y a été
pratiqué. Je crois que dans I’Est du Canada vous avez un avan-
tage sur nous en ce sens que vos collegues européens ont
démontré trés clairement que vous pouviez vraiment regénérer
la productivité du sol. On y est trés bien arrivé en Angleterre,
en France et en Allemagne. Je pense donc que les solutions a
vos problémes sont beaucoup plus précises que celles qui
s’appliqueraient aux régions plutdt semi-arides de ’Ouest du
Canada.

Le sénateur Bonnell: Quels sont les effets nuisibles des
pluies acides dans I’Ouest canadien?

M. Rennie: L’agriculture n’est pas encore touchée. Il y a
méme peut-étre plus d’avantages que d’inconvénients. Le prin-
cipal élément des pluies acides est le soufre. Nos sols ont
épuisé leurs réserves de soufre assimilable et la pluie compense
de telle sorte que nous ne sommes pas obligés d’engraisser le
sol avec ce produit.

Le sénateur Bonnell: Les pluies acides changent-elles I’aci-
dité du sol? Le sol de I’Ouest est-il alcalin?

M. Rennie: Les sols de I'Ouest vont de neutres a alcalins
dans certaines régions et dans d’autres, ils sont modérément
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acidity contributed by acid rain, even considering the oil sands
at full development, is small compared to the effect that we in
agriculture generate every time we work stubble into the soil.
Since we are producing more acid today, we are accelerating
its development more rapidly than if we were relying on nature
only to do it. We are also generating more acidity through the
use of fertilizers, in particular nitrogen and phosphorous fertil-
izers.

Senator Bonnell: You seem to think that it is not best to
overtill soil. In my province of Prince Edward Island the main
crop is potatoes. If we do not till the soil between the rows and
hill the potatoes, we would have no crop at all. By tilling the
soil between the rows, we are killing the weeds, breaking up
the soil so it will absorb the water better and, I believe, let oxy-
gen in. We must do this two or three times a year and in doing
so we get a much better yield. If you simply put the tuber in
the ground and do not do any of these things the yield is much
smaller. So, apparently, certain crops must be tilled in order to
get a higher yield.

Dr. Rennie: I would not quarrel with that comment. I would
just mention that we used to think the same thing about cereal
crop production, as did the corn farmers in the United States,
that it was absolutely essential to till. We have found that the
attributes of tillage can be obtained from other kinds of inputs.
With these other kinds of inputs, it is possible to overcome the
serious problem of soil erosion that, for example, occurs with
row corn. Perhaps this will be the case with potatoes and per-
haps not. If erosion is a serious problem with potatoes, I sug-
gest we look at ways of alleviating erosion, perhaps through
practices that would replace tillage. Whether the research
would be successful, I do not know.

Senator Bonnell: Of course when growing potatoes or corn,
once the crop gets to a certain height it shades the rows and
prevents weeds from growing, but initially if you do not till the
weeds will be higher than the crops and shade them from the
sun, thereby reducing the yield.

Dr. Rennie: If there is a concern about some of our alterna-
tives to tillage, it is that they may create another hazzard. We
are primarily substituting chemicals for tillage. I don’t think
anyone really knows the effects of this kind of practice at the
present time. Certainly we do not know in Western Canada.

Senator Bonnell: In my province in the past we would cut
grain and put it in stooks. Now combines are used which blow
the straw into wind rows. I know that many of our farmers
blow the straw into the woods and that others burn it. How
much is being lost by burning the straw and is that still the
practice in the west today?

[Traduction)

acides. Mais l'acidité apportée par les pluies, méme si les
sables bitumineux étaient au plus fort de leur exploitation, est
minime par rapport a I’effet que les agriculteurs produisent
chaque fois qu’ils enterrent les chaumes dans le sol. Comme
nous produisons plus d’acide aujourd’hui, nous accélérons I’aci-
dification beaucoup plus que ne le fait la nature. Nous produi-
sons également plus d’acide en utilisant des engrais, et plus
particuliérement des engrais azotés et a base de phosphore.

Le sénateur Bonnell: Vous semblez croire qu'il vaut mieux
ne pas trop travailler la terre. Dans ma province de I'lle-du-
Prince-Edouard, nous cultivons surtout la pomme de terre. Si
nous ne travaillions pas le sol entre les rangs et ne renchaus-
sions pas les pommes de terre, nous n’aurions absolument
aucune récolte. En travaillant le sol entre les rangs, nous tuons
les mauvaises herbes, nous ameublissons le sol de fagon qu’il
puisse mieux absorber I’eau et je crois que nous lui permettons
ainsi de s’oxygéner. Nous devons le faire deux ou trois fois I’an,
ce qui nous donne un bien meilleur rendement. Si I'on se con-
tentait de mettre le tubercule en terre sans apporter aucun
soin, le rendement serait bien inférieur. Il semble donc que
pour certaines récoltes, il faille travailler la terre pour obtenir
un rendement supérieur.

M. Rennie: Je ne le conteste pas. J’aimerais simplement
mentionner que nous en pensions autant de la production de
céréales, comme d’ailleurs ceux qui cultivaient le mais aux
Etats-Unis, c’est-a-dire que nous croyions qu'il était absolu-
ment essentiel de travailler la terre. Nous avons découvert tou-
tefois que les avantages de I’emeublissement peuvent étre obte-
nus par d’autres procédés. Grice a ces derniers, on peut
surmonter le grave probléme de I’érosion des sols qui, par
exemple, accompagne la culture en ligne du mais. Ce sera
peut-étre le cas de la pomme de terre et peut-étre que non. Si
la culture de la pomme de terre pose un grave probléme d’éro-
sion, je propose que nous cherchions des moyens d’atténuer
cette érosion, peut-étre a I’aide de pratiques qui remplaceraient
le travail du sol. J'ignore toutefois si la recherche serait fruc-
tueuse.

Le sénateur Bonnell: Certes dans le cas de la pomme de
terre ou du mais, lorsque les plants atteignent une certaine
hauteur, ils ombragent les rangées et empéchent les mauvais
herbes de pousser, mais au départ si 'on n’ameublit pas la
terre, les mauvais herbes ne tarderont pas a dépasser les pous-
ses et a leur cacher le soleil, ce qui réduira le rendement.

M. Rennie: Tout ce que nous craignons en adoptant une
solution de rechange i I'ameublissement du sol c’est qu'elle
peut créer un autre danger. Nous substituons principalement
les produits chimiques au travail du sol. Je ne pense pas qu’on
connaisse réellement les effets de ce genre de pratique a I’heure
actuelle. Il est certain que nous n’en savons rien dans I'Ouest
du Canada.

Le sénateur Bonnell: Dans ma province, par le passé, nous
avions I’habitude de couper les céréales et de les mettre en
meules. Maintenant on se sert de moissonneuse-batteuses qui
forment des andains. Je sais qu'un grand nombre de nos agri-
culteurs rejettent la paille dans les bois et que d’autres la bri-
lent. Quelles sont les pertes occasionnées lorsqu’on brile la
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Dr. Rennie: I would say about 15 to 20 per cent of the farm-
ers in the west still get around the problems created by stubble
in terms of making a seed bed by burning it off. They lose sig-
nificant amounts of nitrogen. It is estimated at between 20 to
30 pounds per acre. At 30 cents per pound it is a significant
loss and it creates further financial strain on the cost of pro-
ducing succeeding crops. Crop residues also provide the only
economic source that we know of for rebuilding soil humus.
For these reasons we strongly recommended that nobody burn
their stubble. The incidence of burning has fallen very consid-
erably. Not many years ago a large number of farmers would
burn if they were going to seed stubble land.

The Chairman: We have with us Mr. Len Christie and
Lynne Myers from the Research Branch of the Library of Par-
liament. 1 would like to give them an opportunity to ask any
questions if they have any.

Mr. Len Christie, Research Officer, Research Branch,
Library of Parliament: I have a couple of questions. Dr. Ren-
nie, you mentioned earlier that with the farming systems in use
at the present time the question has been raised about the
future of agriculture in your region. Could soil erosion or other
forms of soil degradation in your region limit crop production
if allowed to continue unchecked?

Dr. Rennie: Yes. The initial effect would be to limit crop
production because these problems generate a very rapid
increase in the inputs farmers must purchase to grow crops.
Eventually, of course, the soil becomes sterile and one must use
very extensive reclamation practices to create a medium that
will produce crops again down the road. It would take a num-
ber of years. It is only now that certain areas of our farm land
which suffered badly from wind erosion in the 1930s are pro-
ducing something close to what is produced by non-eroded
areas. It has taken roughly 40 years of very careful soil stew-
ardship to regenerate a level of production that is, even today,
below that of non-eroded soils.

Mr. Christie: You mentioned some of the changes that
could be made to farming systems to improve productivity.
With the adoption of these systems what inter-relationships
might there be with farming systems facing soil degradation
and with the goals of the agri-food strategy as outlined at the
Prairie Production Symposium and by the Canadian Wheat
Board in relation to the goals they have set for, say, 1990?

Dr. Rennie: I do not see any conflict at all between the goals
of the agri-food strategy and conservation farming. I think the
two are one and the same. Of course, from that standpoing I
am delight because this means that there must then be serious
consideration given in agricultural policy to removing some of

[Traduction]

paille et cette pratique est-elle toujours en vigueur dans ’Ouest
aujourd’hui?

M. Rennie: Je dirais qu’environ 15 & 20 p. 100 des agricul-
teurs de I’Ouest contournent toujours les problémes créés par
le chaume en le brilant pour pouvoir ensemencer la terre. Ils
perdent ainsi d’importantes quantités d’azote, soit entre 20 et
30 livres I’acre. A 30 cents la livre, s’est une grande perte qui a
des répercussions financiéres sur les récoltes a venir. Les rési-
dus de cultures fournissent également la seule source économi-
que que nous connaissions, pour la reconstitution de I’humus
du sol. C’est pourquoi, nous recommandons fortement que I’on
s’abstienne de briler le chaume. Cette pratique a d’ailleurs de
moins en moins cours. Il n’y a pas si longtemps, un grand nom-
bre d’agriculteurs préféraient briler une terre laissée en
chaume avant de I’ensemencer.

Le président: Nous avons avec nous M. Len Christie et
Lynne Myers du Service de recherche de la Bibliothéque du
Parlement. J’aimerais leur donner I’occasion de poser des ques-
tions s’ils le désirent.

M. Len Christie, attaché de recherche, Service de recherche
de la Bibliothéque du Parlement: J’ai en effet quelques ques-
tions a poser. Monsieur Rennie, vous avez mentionné plutdt
qu’étant donné les systémes de cultures en usage a |’heure
actuelle, on s’était interrogé sur I’avenir de I’agriculture dans
votre région. L’érosion ou autres formes de dégradation des
sols dans votre région pourraient-elles limiter la production si
’on n’y apportait pas de reméde?

M. Rennie: Oui. L’effet initial serait de limiter la production
agricole car ces problémes entrainent une hausse trés rapide
des quantités d’engrais que les agriculteurs doivent acheter
pour produire des récoltes. Eventuellement, bien sir, le sol
devient stérile et on doit utiliser des pratiques de valorisation
trés poussées pour créer un milieu a nouveau propice a la cul-
ture. Mais il faudra pour cela attendre un certain nombre
d’années. Ce n’est que maintenant que certaines parties de nos
terres agricoles qui avaient vraiment souffert de I’érosion
éolienne dans les années 1930, commencent a produire quelque
chose qui se rapproche de la production que donnaient des ter-
res qui n’ont pas connu d’érosion. Il a fallu approximativement
40 ans d’attentive gestion du sol pour retrouver un niveau de
production qui est méme aujourd’hui inférieur a celui des sols
non érodés.

M. Christie: Vous avez mentionné certains changements qui
pourraient étre apportés aux régimes de culture pour améliorer
la productivité. Avec I’adoption de ces régimes, quelles inter-
relations pourrait exister entre les régimes de culture congus en
fonction de la dégradation des sols et les objectifs de la straté-
gie agro-alimentaire qui a été exposée lors du symposium sur
la production dans les Prairies et par la Commission cana-
dienne du blé en parlant des objectifs qu’elle s’était fixés pour
19907

M. Rennie: Je ne vois absolument aucun conflit entre les
buts de la stratégie agro-alimentaire et I’agriculture axée sur la
conservation. Je pense que les deux sont une seule et méme
chose. Bien sir, j’en suis enchanté parce que cela signifie que
la politique agricole doit chercher a enlever certaines contrain-
tes qui empéchent a I’heure actuelle un agriculteur d’adopter
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the constraints which presently prevent a farmer from adopt-
ing conservation farming. There are a relatively large number
of these constraints, not the least of which are rather simple
policies on which the quota system is bases at the present time.
There are ways of removing constraints very quickly if those in
authority consider soil degradation sufficiently serious. How-
ever, there is a wide range of other constraints which are per-
petrated through agricultural policies. This is why I am
delighted that the agri-food policy with its close association to
conservation farming, if implemented, will have to remove con-
straints, otherwise it will not be successful.

Mr. Christie: So these changes in the system of farming to
more conservation-minded practices would be essential to
achieve those goals of the agri-food strategy?

Dr. Rennie: Very much so, yes. For this reason, then, the
proposed soild and water research thrust in western Canada is
certainly in accord with the agri-food policy and the need to
overcome soil degradation.

The Chairman: Are there any further questions?

Senator Le Moyne: I have a statement I wish to make. I
would like to say how glad I was to learn that our distin-
guished witness is no longer in danger.

The Chairman: On behalf of honourables senators, I would
like to thank you very much, Dr. Rennie, for appearing before
the committee this morning and for coming all the way to
Ottawa. We know you have taken time out of your busy
schedule. It was certainly a most interesting session this morn-
ing; we will probably be calling upon you again in the future. I
would appreciate it if you would do as Senator Bonnell sug-
gested, that is, forward any further suggestions or thoughts
you have on this subject. We would appreciate that very much.

The committee adjourned.

[Traduction]

des pratiques de conservation. Il existe un assez grand nombre
de ces contraintes, dont les plus importantes sont des politiques
plutdt simples sur lesquelles le systéme de contingentement est
fondé a I’heure actuelle. Il existe des fagons d’éliminer ces con-
traintes trés rapidement si les autorités estiment que la dégra-
dation des sols est un probléme suffisamment grave. Toutefois,
un vaste éventail de contraintes sont perpétuées par les politi-
ques agricoles. C’est pourquoi je suis enchanté de ce que la
politique agro-alimentaire qui est étroitement liée aux prati-
ques de conservation, une fois mise en ceuvre, devra supprimer
les contraintes, si elle veut atteindre son objectif.

M. Christie: Par conséquent, il faudrait essentiellement se
tourner vers des pratiques qui soient davantage axées sur la
conservation pour atteindre les objectifs de la stratégie agro-
alimentaire?

M. Rennie: Certes. C’est pourquoi I'objectif principal de la
recherche sur les sols et I’eau dans I’Ouest du Canada est cer-
tainement conforme a la politique agro-alimentaire et tient
compte de la nécessité d’enrayer la dégradation des sols.

Le président: Y a-t-il d’autres questions?

Le sénateur Le Moyne: J'aimerais faire une déclaration.
Jaimerais dire 4 quel point j’ai été heureux d’apprendre que
notre distingué témoin n’est plus en danger.

Le président: Au nom des honorables sénateurs, j'aimerais
remercier M. Rennie, d’étre venu comparaitre devant le
Comité ce matin et d’avoir parcouru tout ce trajet pour se ren-
dre 4 Ottawa malgré son horaire trés chargé. Notre séance de
ce matin a été certainement trés intéressante; et nous vous
reconvoqueront probablement. J’aimerais que vous nous fas-
siez parvenir, comme le sénateur Bonnel I'a proposé, toutes les
suggestions ou réflexions que vous aimeriez ultérieurement
nous soumettre a ce sujet. Nous vous en saurions infiniment
gré.

La séance est levée.
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APPENDIX “2-A”

Winter Wheat — 1982 - 83
Mean — 12 Plots

y =.249 X + 14.2
34 |b N/Bu grain

i 1 | ] | 1 | 1 |

11 33 55 77 99
SOIL + FERTILIZER —N:Ib/ac

Winter wheat response to nitrogen with an efficiency
similar to that for spring wheat.
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WINTER WHEAT, 1982-83

P = PLACEMENT | TIME OF APPLICATION SOME INDIVIDUAL RESULTS
SP = SEED PLACED| OF NITROGEN
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Fertilizer N placement and timing significantly affected the
yield of winter wheat (P placement did not change yields).
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Efficiency of N =1 kg N produced
11 kg grain
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SOIL + FERTILIZER N : kg ha-!

Nitrogen rate studies (1982) using spring wheat as
the test crop.
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Spring wheat N rate study (1983)!

CHANGES! IN SOIL — N SINCE CULTIVATION?:

Soil zone
Dark
Brown Brown Black

Soil + fert. N

efficiency Ib N bu'! 2311 23104 23107
Fertilizer N

efficiency 1b N bu! 3.5%1.0 4.2+20 39104
Ck yield bu ac’! 14+4.8 18+2.7 27120
Yield increase 12.5+4.1 15.3+8.0 18.4+6.0

The data are the average for Zt and CT treatments as there
was no significant tillage effect.

CROPLAND STATISTICS IN SASK.!

Present
(1960-75) Decrease 70 yrs

Soil zone kgN/ha kgN/ha kgN/ha/yr
Brown 3330 2620 37
Dark Brown 3910 3070 44
Black 4930 3290 55
Grey Black 5380 3260 65
Grey 2160 1170 2

y =47

' Total change is equivalent to 46.02 X 106 tonnes or $(1981)
= 27.6 billion dollars.
2Rennie, et al, 1976.

A simplified nitrogen balance for the first 60 years

Ha X 10¢ of cultivation — Saskatchewan!
Total Seeded Fallow 9 Fallow Mineralised
nitrogen kg N/ha
1960-1979 17.8 10.6 -2 40.5 Per 60 Total
Year Years tonnes X 106
1981 18.4 11.7 6.7 36.4

I Statistics Canada, 1983. Released from the soil 42 2520 40.8
Sold off the Farm 14 840 13.6
Leached 11 660 10.7
Denitrified and erosion losses 17 1020 16.5

I Rennie et al., 1976.
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Changes in the nitrogen supplying power of a
Black soil — Saskatchewan!

Period of cultivation

(years) kg N - ha - yr
0- 20 143
21 - 40 93
41 - 60 27
61 - 80 9
81 - 100 7

1 Crop-Crop-Fallow rotation (Voroney et al., 1981).

Change (decrease) in Potentially Mineralizable — N in
Saskatchewan soils!

Present P.M.N. Decrease
Level since
kgN /ha %N cultivation %

Brown 2160 12 55
Dark Brown 3600 .20 65
Black (thin) 3240 .18 67
Gray 1800 .10 40

I Campbell and Souster, 1982.

Denitrification measurements under field
conditions — Saskatchewan

N losses, kg N / ha / yr

Soil Texture Fallow Cropped
Loam 16 13
Clay loam 23 18
Clay 54 35

Chatarpaul, L., Personal Communication.
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The wheat-fallow cropping system is the major factor
causing a rapid drop in soil organic matter in the first
30-70 years while erosion is the prime cause of subsequent
decreases (Voroney et al., 1981).

N —SON — ey - 6y

A115210, pue SaLIAYSLY ‘In)NOLIFY vz

$861-€-8



8-3-1984 Agriculture, péches et foréts

2A

i

400 [

[t A
|
™ A
O Dark Brown
< Soils
| i
[}
< / o |
2 o00l— " / Black Soils
/ :

100 — % grﬁy - Black
oils D/D
/

o
Ho-akeTE

DEPTH (meters)

Mean cumulative nitrate-nitrogen profiles for 11 Dark
Brown, 5 Black and 5 Dark Gray Chernozemic soils
(Rennie and Ellis, 1976),
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APPENDICE «2-A»

Blé d’hiver — 1982 - 1983
Moyenne — 12 parcelles

r=.249 X + 14.2
34 |Ib. N/ boisseau de céréales

| 1 | ] | | | | |

11 33 55 77 99
SOL + ENGRAIS —N :liv./acre

Réaction du blé d’hiver a I'azote et efficacité com-
parable a celle du blé de printemps.
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BLE D’'HIVER, 1982-1983
o, L = Localisation MOMENT DE L'EPANDAGE RESULTATS PARTICULIERS
g| LS = Local de la semence D'AZOTE 46-0-0 $4-0-0
% | BL = Bandes latérales . { !
2| PS = Plei rf = g Déc. Avril Déc. Avril
@ = Fleine surface o T z LUCKY LAKE 24 48 41 44
" oL | o 5 < - MOSSBANK 17 25 26 33
LS ; u FOAMLAKE 33 34 42 31
i l 74
l £ Au-
30 | o tomne Déc. Auvril
MOSSBANK 36 17 25
[70] [ [72] (2]
| o Mgt ISa | ‘et LIPTON 44 35 46
18 Bl 22z =12 CANORA 3 25 41
20 |- | MR & KINDERSLEY 33 26 27
| 33|23
®leo|lol®®
S ial o | alVo
0= el gl I c': | 1 | 1
o o o
ZI zl 1 ] | ] ol I I ]
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TRAITEMENTS

La localisation de I'’engrais azoté et le moment de I'épan-
dage ont eu une incidence appréciable sur le rendement
de blé d’hiver (La localisation (L) n’a pas modifié le

rendement.)
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3000 -

T

2000

1000 - Efficacité de N = 1 kg N produit
11 kg céréales

RENDEMENT DE CEREALES kg ha'

| 1 I 11 | | ]
30 60 90 120 150 180

SOL + ENGRAIS N : kg ha!

Etudes du taux d'azote (1982) effectuées en utilisant
le blé de printemps comme culture d’essai.
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Etude du taux d’azote - blé de printemps (1983)!

VARIATIONS! DE N DANS LE SOL APRES CULTURE?

Zone de sols

Brun
Bruns foncé Noirs

Efficacité sol + engrais N

Ib N boisseau! 23%11 0 23504 2.340.7
Efficacité engrais N

Ib N boisseau-! 3.5%1.0 42+2.0 39+04
Rendement des parcelles

témoins boisseau/acre 14+4.8 18+2.7 27%12.0
Augm. du rendement 12.5+4.1 15.318.0 18.4%6.0

Les données correspondent aux moyennes pour le non-labour
et les labours traditionnels puisque le mode de travail du sol
n’avait aucun effet appréciable.

STATISTIQUES DES TERRES CULTIVEES
EN SASKATCHEWAN!

Ha X 106
Ense- %
Total  Jachéres mencées  jachére
1960-1979 17.8 10.6 7.2 40.5
1981 18.4 11.7 6.7 36.4

I Statistique Canada, 1983.

Actuel Dimi- 70 ans
(1960-1975)  nution kgN/ha/

Zone de sols kgN/ha kgN/ha année
Bruns 3330 2620 37
Brun foncé 3910 3070 44
Noirs 4930 3290 55
Gris noir 5380 3260 65
Gris 2160 1170 29
y =47

I Variation totale équivalant a 46.02 X 106 tonnes ou $(1981)
= 27.6 milliards de dollars.
2Rennie, et al., 1976.

Bilan simplifié de I'azote pendant les 60 premiéres
années de culture — Saskatchewan!

Azote miné-
ralisé kg N/ha

Par 60 Total
année années tonnes X 106
Libéré par le sol 42 2520 40.8
Exporté hors ferme 14 840 13.6
Lessivé 11 660 10.7
Dénitrification et pertes
dues a I'érosion 17 1020 16.5

I Rennie et al., 1976.
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Variation de la capacité de production de
I'azote des sols noirs — Saskatchewan!

Période de culture

(années) kg N - ha - année
0- 20 143
21 - 40 39
41 - 60 27
61 - 80 9
81 - 100 7

I Rotation culture-jachére (Voroney et al., 1981).

Variation (diminution) de I'azote minéralisable dans
les sols de la Saskatchewan!

Niveau Diminution en
actuel % de 'AM
kgN /ha %N aprés culture

Bruns 2160 A2 29
Brun foncé 3600 .20 65
Noirs (minces) 3240 18 67
Gris 1800 .10 40

ICampbell and Souster, 1982.

Mesures de la dénitrification en fonction
de conditions réelles — Saskatchewan

Pertes de N, kg N/ha/année

Texture du sol Jachére Terres cultivées
LLoam 16 13
Loam argileux 23 18
Argile 54 35

Chatarpaul, L., Communication personnelle.
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